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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On February 19, 2013, Herbalife Ltd., or the Company, filed its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, or the Original 10-K.
Subsequent to the filing of the Original 10-K, as previously disclosed, on April 8, 2013, KPMG LLP, or KPMG, notified the Company that KPMG resigned, effective
immediately, as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. KPMG stated it had concluded it was no longer independent because of the then-alleged insider
trading in the Company’s securities by one of KPMG’s former partners who, until April 5, 2013, was the KPMG engagement partner on the Company’s audit. KPMG advised
the Company it resigned as the Company’s independent accountant solely due to the impairment of KPMG’s independence resulting from its now former partner’s unlawful
activities and not for any reason related to the Company’s financial statements, its accounting practices, the integrity of the Company’s management or for any other reason.

As a result of the then-alleged insider trading activity by its now former partner and KPMG’s resulting resignation on April 8, 2013, KPMG notified the Company its
independence had been impaired and had no option but to withdraw its audit reports on the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010, 2011
and 2012 and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and that such reports should no longer be relied upon as a
result of KPMG’s lack of independence created by the circumstances described above. The Original 10-K included a report of KPMG that has now been withdrawn.

On May 21, 2013, the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or PwC, to serve as the Company’s new
independent registered public accounting firm to audit the Company’s financial statements for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2013 and to re-audit the Company’s financial
statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, including the audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012
required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. PwC has also been engaged to review the Company’s interim financial information for the three months ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and for the subsequent interim periods.

As previously disclosed, as part of the engagement process, the Company and PwC identified certain non-audit services that PwC or another firm in its global network of
firms had performed for the Company that are not permitted under the auditor independence rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. The Audit
Committee and PwC discussed these non-audit services and concluded that the provision of these non-audit services would not affect PwC’s objectivity or its impartiality and
would not impair its ability to serve as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. In reaching this conclusion, the Audit Committee and PwC noted that all
of these services, with one exception described below with respect to the Company’s U.S. payroll department, were provided to entities that were immaterial to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements in each of the prior years. PwC also noted that none of the professionals who provided such services would serve on the re-audit or future
audits of the Company’s financial statements. In selecting PwC, the Audit Committee determined that PwC was well qualified to serve as the Company’s auditor because of its
experience with large global companies, including large accelerated filers and other multinational issuers and a number of companies in the network marketing industry, and
PwC’s extensive resources and qualifications, including the strength of its national office and its thought leadership regarding complex accounting issues. In considering the
appointment of a new auditor, the Company identified firms that it believed were qualified to serve as auditor for a company of the size and complexity of Herbalife. In each
case the Company, in communication with the relevant audit firm, identified independence issues which arose in the three-year period for which KPMG withdrew its previously
issued reports.

The services that PwC or another firm in PwC’s global network of firms previously performed for certain of the Company’s subsidiaries are set forth below. Unless
specifically noted below, the services were performed by a firm in PwC’s global network of firms rather than by PwC.
 

Country   
Type of
Service

Bulgaria   - Routine corporate and administrative legal advisory and financial statement filing services in 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Colombia   - Payroll and administrative services in 2013 and 2012.

Ghana   - Payroll services in 2013, 2012 and 2011, and executive recruitment services in 2011.

India   - Secondment services in 2012, 2011 and 2010, and tax services pursuant to a contingent fee arrangement in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Israel   - Financial reporting, secondment and bookkeeping services in 2012 and 2011.
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Macedonia  - Routine corporate and administrative legal advisory services in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Romania  - Routine corporate and administrative legal advisory services in 2013 and 2012.

Russia  - Routine corporate and administrative legal advisory services in 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Slovakia  - Routine corporate and administrative legal advisory services in 2013 and 2012.

United States  - Seconded two PwC staff members who served in the U.S. payroll department for the Company for a few months in 2010.

The assets and revenues of the Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries in the countries noted above represented in the aggregate less than 5% and 8.5% of the Company’s total
consolidated assets and revenues, respectively, in each year from 2010 through 2013; none of these non-U.S. subsidiaries individually represented more than 2.5% or 3.6% of
the Company’s total consolidated assets or revenues, respectively, in any of these years. The fees paid to PwC and firms in PwC’s global network of firms for the services
described above were approximately $55,000 in 2013, $250,000 in 2012, $192,000 in 2011 and $330,000 in 2010. PwC and the other firms in the global network of firms
ceased providing these services to the Company’s subsidiaries upon being engaged as the Company’s auditor in May 2013. As an additional measure in relation to this matter,
the Audit Committee engaged a separate independent registered public accounting firm to issue an audit report with respect to certain of the Company’s 2010 payroll accounts
that were the subject of the services previously provided by PwC to the Company’s U.S. payroll department.

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to the Original 10-K, or the Amendment, is being filed to include PwC’s audit report on the Company’s financial statements for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, and to
make certain revisions to the Company’s financial statements and notes thereto for such periods in respect of the prior period income tax errors, or the Prior Period Errors,
discussed in greater detail in Note 2, Basis of Presentation under the heading Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements in this Amendment. In addition, due to the
Company filing this Amendment, the Company as required has revised Note 13, Fair Value Measurements, relating to the retrospective adoption of Accounting Standards
Update, or ASU, 2011-11 and ASU 2013-01, which were effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2013. See Note 2, Basis of Presentation under the
heading New Accounting Pronouncements in this Amendment for additional information. In addition, Note 14, Subsequent Events, and Part II, Item 7, have also been updated to
disclose the Company’s subsequent engagement of legal and advisory firms to assist in connection with a hedge fund manager’s publicly raised allegations. As a result, the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto incorporated by reference into Part II, Item 8 of the Original 10-K are hereby updated and superseded to reflect
the foregoing. In addition, Part II, Items 6, 7 and 9A of the Original 10-K are amended and restated herein in their entirety to address the Prior Period Errors. Item 14 of Part III
of the Form 10-K is also updated hereby to disclose the aggregate fees billed by PwC for the re-audit of the Company’s financial statements described above. In connection with
the filing of this Amendment and pursuant to SEC Exchange Act Rule 12b-15, the Company is filing as exhibits to this Amendment new certifications of the Company’s
principal executive officer and principal financial officer under Part IV, Item 15 hereof in respect of the periods covered by the Amendment. In addition, the Company is filing
as exhibit 101 to this Amendment the amended and restated financial statements and related notes formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language) under Part IV,
Item 15 hereof to reflect the revisions to the Company’s financial statements described above.

Other than those changes outlined above, there are no changes to the Original 10-K and this Amendment does not change the other disclosures contained in the Original
10-K. In addition, except as specifically described above, this Amendment does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Original 10-K, nor does it modify or update
disclosures therein in any way other than as required to reflect the revisions described above. Among other things, forward-looking statements made in the Original 10-K have
not been revised to reflect events that occurred or facts that became known to the Company after the filing of the Original 10-K, and such forward looking statements should be
read in their historical context.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements other than statements of historical fact are “forward-looking statements” for purposes of federal and state securities laws,
including any projections of earnings, revenue or other financial items; any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations; any
statements concerning proposed new services or developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements of belief; and any
statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Forward-looking statements may include the words “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “intend,” “continue,” “believe,”
“expect” or “anticipate” and any other similar words.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results could differ materially from those projected
or assumed in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change
and to inherent risks and uncertainties, such as those disclosed or incorporated by reference in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Important factors that
could cause our actual results, performance and achievements, or industry results to differ materially from estimates or projections contained in our forward-looking
statements include, among others, the following:
 

 •  any collateral impact resulting from the ongoing worldwide financial environment, including the availability of liquidity to us, our customers and our suppliers or
the willingness of our customers to purchase products in a difficult economic environment;

 

 •  our relationship with, and our ability to influence the actions of, our distributors;
 

 •  improper action by our employees or distributors in violation of applicable law;
 

 •  adverse publicity associated with our products or network marketing organization, including our ability to comfort the marketplace and regulators regarding our
compliance with applicable laws;

 

 •  changing consumer preferences and demands;
 

 •  our reliance upon, or the loss or departure of any member of, our senior management team which could negatively impact our distributor relations and operating
results;

 

 •  the competitive nature of our business;
 

 •  regulatory matters governing our products, including potential governmental or regulatory actions concerning the safety or efficacy of our products and network
marketing program, including the direct selling market in which we operate;

 

 •  legal challenges to our network marketing program;
 

 •  risks associated with operating internationally and the effect of economic factors, including foreign exchange, inflation, disruptions or conflicts with our third party
importers, pricing and currency devaluation risks, especially in countries such as Venezuela;

 

 •  uncertainties relating to the application of transfer pricing, duties, value added taxes, and other tax regulations, and changes thereto;
 

 •  uncertainties relating to interpretation and enforcement of legislation in China governing direct selling;
 

 •  uncertainties relating to the interpretation, enforcement or amendment of legislation in India governing direct selling;
 

 •  our inability to obtain the necessary licenses to expand our direct selling business in China;
 

 •  adverse changes in the Chinese economy, Chinese legal system or Chinese governmental policies;
 

 •  our dependence on increased penetration of existing markets;
 

 •  contractual limitations on our ability to expand our business;
 

 •  our reliance on our information technology infrastructure and outside manufacturers;
 

 •  the sufficiency of trademarks and other intellectual property rights;
 

 •  product concentration;
 

 •  changes in tax laws, treaties or regulations, or their interpretation;
 

 •  taxation relating to our distributors;
 

 •  product liability claims;
 

 •  whether we will purchase any of our shares in the open markets or otherwise; and
 

 •  share price volatility related to, among other things, speculative trading and certain traders shorting our common shares.
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Additional factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements are set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, including
under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and in our Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
Notes, and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors.”

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A speak only as of the date hereof, and forward-looking statements in documents attached that are
incorporated by reference speak only as of the date of those documents. We do not undertake any obligation to update or release any revisions to any forward-looking
statement or to report any events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law.

The Company

Unless otherwise noted, the terms “we,” “our,” “us,” “Company” and “Herbalife” refer to Herbalife Ltd. and its subsidiaries. Herbalife Ltd. is a holding company, with
substantially all of its assets consisting of the capital stock of its direct and indirectly-owned subsidiaries.

PART II
 
 Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain of our historical financial data. We have derived the selected historical consolidated financial data for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008 from our audited financial statements and the related notes. Not all periods shown below are discussed in this Amendment.
The selected consolidated historical financial data set forth below are not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction with the
discussion under Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and the historical consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included elsewhere in this document.
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2009   2008  
   (In thousands except per share data)  
Income Statement Data:       
Net sales   $4,072,330   $3,454,537   $2,734,226   $2,324,577   $2,359,213  
Cost of sales    812,583    680,084    558,811    493,134    458,396  

  

Gross profit    3,259,747    2,774,453    2,175,415    1,831,443    1,900,817  
Royalty overrides    1,338,633    1,137,560    900,248    761,501    796,718  
Selling, general and administrative expenses(1)    1,259,667    1,074,623    887,655    773,911    771,847  

  

Operating income(1)    661,447    562,270    387,512    296,031    332,252  
Interest expense, net    10,541    2,491    7,417    5,103    13,222  

  

Income before income taxes    650,906    559,779    380,095    290,928    319,030  
Income taxes    186,944    144,820    87,212    89,036    97,625  

  

Net income   $ 463,962   $ 414,959   $ 292,883   $ 201,892   $ 221,405  
  

Earnings per share       
Basic   $ 4.13   $ 3.53   $ 2.46   $ 1.65   $ 1.74  
Diluted   $ 3.94   $ 3.32   $ 2.32   $ 1.60   $ 1.68  

Weighted average shares outstanding       
Basic    112,359    117,540    119,004    122,442    127,570  
Diluted    117,856    124,846    126,495    126,194    131,538  

Other Financial Data:       
Retail sales(2)   $6,404,334   $5,427,844   $4,306,262   $3,690,061   $3,811,159  
Net cash provided by (used in):       
Operating activities    567,784    510,540    387,875    285,056    272,988  
Investing activities    (125,000)   (92,086)   (69,136)   (71,322)   (84,964) 
Financing activities    (371,241)   (339,008)   (261,953)   (213,327)   (205,067) 
Depreciation and amortization    74,384    71,853    68,621    62,437    48,732  
Capital expenditures(3)    122,797    90,855    68,125    60,128    106,813  
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   As of December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010    2009    2008  
   (In thousands except per share data)  
Balance Sheet Data:           
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 333,534    $ 258,775    $ 190,550    $ 150,801    $ 150,847  
Receivables, net    116,139     89,660     85,612     76,958     70,002  
Inventories    339,411     247,696     182,467     145,962     134,392  
Total working capital    221,685     206,128     118,720     82,463     77,643  
Total assets    1,724,143     1,463,075     1,241,110     1,152,830     1,131,448  
Total debt    487,607     203,621     178,166     250,333     351,631  
Shareholders’ equity(4)    395,483     548,144     473,996     351,218     235,092  
Cash dividends per common share    1.20     0.73     0.45     0.40     0.40  
 
(1) The years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 include severance and related expenses associated with restructuring activities of approximately $1.3 million and

$6.7 million, respectively.
(2) Retail sales represent the gross sales amount reflected on our invoices to our distributors and are based on suggested retail prices. We do not receive the full retail sales

amount. “Product sales” represent the actual product purchase price paid to us by our distributors, after giving effect to all discounts provided to our distributors referred to
as “distributor allowances,” which total approximately 50% of suggested retail sales prices. Distributor allowances as a percentage of sales may vary by country depending
upon regulatory restrictions that limit or otherwise restrict distributor allowances. “Net sales” represents product sales and shipping & handling revenues.

Retail sales data is discussed in greater detail in Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Our use of retail
sales reflects the fundamental role of “retail sales” in our systems, internal controls and operations, including the basis upon which the distributors are being paid. In addition,
information in daily and monthly reports reviewed by our management includes retail sales data.

The following represents the reconciliation of retail sales to net sales for each of the periods set forth above:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2009   2008  
   (In thousands)  
Retail sales   $ 6,404,334   $ 5,427,844   $ 4,306,262   $ 3,690,061   $ 3,811,159  
Distributor allowance    (2,927,408)   (2,483,122)   (1,968,769)   (1,696,444)   (1,778,866) 

  

Product sales    3,476,926    2,944,722    2,337,493    1,993,617    2,032,293  
Shipping & handling revenues    595,404    509,815    396,733    330,960    326,920  

  

Net sales   $ 4,072,330   $ 3,454,537   $ 2,734,226   $ 2,324,577   $ 2,359,213  
  

 
(3) Includes acquisition of property, plant and equipment from capitalized leases and other long-term debt of $1.3 million, $0.4 million, $0, $0.4 million, and $18.2 million,

for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.
(4) During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, we paid an aggregate $135.1 million, $85.5 million, $53.7 million, $48.7 million, and

$50.7 million in dividends, respectively, and repurchased $527.8 million, $298.8 million, $150.1 million, $73.2 million, and $137.0 million of our common shares through
open market purchases, respectively.

Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements

Certain selected financial data disclosed above as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008 have been revised due to the Prior Period
Errors. See Note 2, Basis of Presentation, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on the Prior Period Errors and the related revisions. The effects of the Prior
Period Errors in the selected financial data presented above are as follows:
 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 2012    
Year Ended

December 31, 2011    
Year Ended

December 31, 2010  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Income Statement Data:             
Income taxes   $ 173,716    $ 186,944    $ 147,201    $ 144,820    $ 80,880    $ 87,212  
Net income   $ 477,190    $ 463,962    $ 412,578    $ 414,959    $ 299,215    $ 292,883  
Basic earnings per share   $ 4.25    $ 4.13    $ 3.51    $ 3.53    $ 2.51    $ 2.46  
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Year Ended

December 31, 2012   
Year Ended

December 31, 2011   
Year Ended

December 31, 2010  

   
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted  
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted  
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Diluted earnings per share   $ 4.05   $ 3.94   $ 3.30   $ 3.32   $ 2.37   $ 2.32  
Other Financial Data:        
Operating activities   $ 567,784   $ 567,784   $ 509,331   $ 510,540   $ 389,084   $ 387,875  
Financing activities   $ (371,241)  $ (371,241)  $ (337,799)  $ (339,008)  $ (263,162)  $ (261,953) 
 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 2009   
Year Ended

December 31, 2008  

   
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted  
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Income Statement Data:      
Income taxes   $ 87,582   $ 89,036   $ 97,840   $ 97,625  
Net income   $ 203,346   $ 201,892   $ 221,190   $ 221,405  
Basic earnings per share   $ 1.66   $ 1.65   $ 1.73   $ 1.74  
Diluted earnings per share   $ 1.61   $ 1.60   $ 1.68   $ 1.68  
Other Financial Data:      
Operating activities   $ 285,056   $ 285,056   $ 272,988   $ 272,988  
Financing activities   $ (213,327)  $ (213,327)  $ (205,067)  $ (205,067) 
 

   
As of

December 31, 2012    
As of

December 31, 2011    
As of

December 31, 2010  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted    
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted    
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted  
   (In thousands)  
Balance Sheet Data:             
Total working capital   $ 246,957    $ 221,685    $ 220,130    $ 206,128    $ 124,770    $ 118,720  
Total assets   $ 1,703,944    $1,724,143    $ 1,446,209    $1,463,075    $ 1,232,220    $1,241,110  
Shareholders’ equity   $ 420,755    $ 395,483    $ 560,188    $ 548,144    $ 487,212    $ 473,996  
 

   
As of

December 31, 2009    
As of

December 31, 2008  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted    
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted  
   (In thousands)  
Balance Sheet Data:         
Total working capital   $ 83,536    $ 82,463    $ 82,869    $ 77,643  
Total assets   $ 1,146,050    $1,152,830    $ 1,121,318    $1,131,448  
Shareholders’ equity   $ 359,311    $ 351,218    $ 241,731    $ 235,092  

 
 Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with Item 6 — Selected Financial Data and our consolidated financial statements and related
notes, each included elsewhere this Amendment.

We are a leading global nutrition company that sells weight management products, nutritional supplements, energy, sports & fitness products and personal care products
utilizing network marketing distribution. As of December 31, 2012, we sold our products to and through a network of 3.2 million distributors, which include approximately
0.2 million China sales representatives, sales officers, and independent service providers, many of whom are simply discount customers. In China, we currently sell our products
through retail stores, sales representatives, sales officers and independent service providers. We pursue our mission of “changing people’s lives” by providing high quality,
science-based products to distributors and their customers who seek a healthy lifestyle and we also offer a financially rewarding business opportunity to those distributors who
seek part time or full time income. We believe the global obesity epidemic has made our quality products more relevant and the effectiveness of our distribution network,
coupled with geographic expansion, have been the primary reasons for our success throughout our 33-year operating history. As of December 31, 2012, we sold our products in
88 countries.
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Our products are grouped in four principal categories: weight management, targeted nutrition, energy, sports & fitness and Outer Nutrition, along with literature and
promotional items. Our products are often sold through a series of related products and literature designed to simplify weight management and nutrition for consumers and
maximize our distributors’ cross-selling opportunities.

Industry-wide factors that affect us and our competitors include the global obesity epidemic and the aging of the worldwide population, which are driving demand for
nutrition and wellness-related products along with the global increase in under employment and unemployment which can affect the recruitment and retention of distributors
seeking part time or full time income opportunities.

While we continue to monitor the current global financial environment, we remain focused on the opportunities and challenges in retailing of our products, recruiting and
retaining distributors, improving distributor productivity, opening new markets, further penetrating existing markets, globalizing successful Distributor Methods of Operation,
or DMOs, such as Nutrition Clubs and Weight Loss Challenges, introducing new products and globalizing existing products, developing niche market segments and further
investing in our infrastructure. Management also continues to monitor the Venezuelan market and especially the limited ability to repatriate cash.

We report revenue from our six regions:
 

 •  North America;
 

 •  Mexico;
 

 •  South and Central America;
 

 •  EMEA, which consists of Europe, the Middle East and Africa;
 

 •  Asia Pacific (excluding China); and
 

 •  China.

Volume Points by Geographic Region

A key non-financial measure we focus on is Volume Points on a Royalty Basis, or Volume Points, which is essentially our weighted average measure of product sales
volume. Volume Points, which are unaffected by exchange rates or price changes, are used by management as a proxy for sales trends because in general, an increase in Volume
Points in a particular geographic region or country indicates an increase in our local currency net sales while a decrease in Volume Points in a particular geographic region or
country indicates a decrease in our local currency net sales.

We assign a Volume Point value to a product when it is first introduced into a market and the value is unaffected by subsequent exchange rate and price changes. The
specific number of Volume Points assigned to a product, generally consistent across all markets, is based on a Volume Point to suggested retail price ratio for similar products.
If a product is available in different quantities then the various sizes will have different Volume Point values. In general, once assigned, a Volume Point value is consistent in
each region and country and does not change from year to year. The reason Volume Points are used in the manner described above is that we use Volume Points for distributor
qualification and recognition purposes and therefore we attempt to keep Volume Points for a similar or like product consistent on a global basis. However, because Volume
Points are a function of value rather than product type or size, they are not a reliable measure for product mix. As an example, an increase in Volume Points in a specific
country or region could mean a significant increase in sales of less expensive products or a marginal increase in sales of expensive products.
 
   For the Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    % Change  2011    2010    % Change 
   (Volume points in millions)  
North America    1,157.8     987.1     17.3%   987.1     888.5     11.1% 
Mexico    815.4     704.5     15.7%   704.5     563.0     25.1% 
South & Central America    740.4     569.9     29.9%   569.9     427.4     33.3% 
EMEA    602.5     545.0     10.6%   545.0     486.6     12.0% 
Asia Pacific (excluding China)    1,197.8     961.6     24.6%   961.6     723.6     32.9% 
China    206.5     153.8     34.3%   153.8     144.2     6.7% 

          

Worldwide    4,720.4     3,921.9     20.4%   3,921.9     3,233.3     21.3% 
          

Average Active Sales Leaders by Geographic Region

With the continued expansion of daily consumption DMOs in our different markets, we believe the Average Active Sales Leader is a useful metric. It represents the
monthly average number of sales leaders that place an order, including orders of their non-sales leaders downline, during a given period. We rely on this metric as an indication
of the engagement level of sales leaders in a given region. Changes in the Average Active Sales Leader metric may be indicative of the current momentum in a region as well as
the potential for changes in the annual retention levels and future sales growth rate through utilization of daily consumption DMOs.
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   For the Year Ended December 31,   For the Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    % Change  2011    2010    % Change 
North America    66,054     56,741     16.4%   56,741     49,305     15.1% 
Mexico    57,651     47,697     20.9%   47,697     38,084     25.2% 
South & Central America    44,980     34,938     28.7%   34,938     28,821     21.2% 
EMEA    44,098     38,607     14.2%   38,607     33,531     15.1% 
Asia Pacific (excluding China)    63,255     48,195     31.2%   48,195     35,899     34.3% 
China    11,683     8,814     32.6%   8,814     6,848     28.7% 
Worldwide(1)    277,803     227,308     22.2%   227,308     185,774     22.4% 
 
(1) Worldwide average active sales leaders may not equal the sum of the average active sales leaders in each region due to the calculation being an average of sales leaders

active in a period, not a summation, and the fact that some sales leaders are active in more than one region but are counted only once in the worldwide amount.

Number of Sales Leaders and Retention Rates by Geographic Region as of Re-qualification Period

Our compensation system requires each sales leader to re-qualify for such status each year, prior to February, in order to maintain their 50% discount on products and be
eligible to receive royalty payments. In February of each year, we demote from the rank of sales leader those distributors who did not satisfy the re-qualification requirements
during the preceding twelve months. The re-qualification requirement does not apply to new sales leaders (i.e. those who became sales leaders subsequent to the January re-
qualification of the prior year).
 

Sales Leaders Statistics (Excluding China)   2012   2011   2010  
   (In thousands)  
January 1 total sales leaders    501.3    434.2    431.3  
January & February new sales leaders    34.8    28.9    21.2  
Demoted sales leaders (did not re-qualify)    (151.3)   (144.8)   (165.9) 
Other sales leaders (resigned, etc)    (0.8)   (0.8)   (1.1) 

  

End of February total sales leaders    384.0    317.5    285.5  
  

The distributor statistics below further highlight the calculation for retention.
 

Sales Leaders Retention (Excluding China)   2012   2011   2010  
   (In thousands)  
Sales leaders needed to re-qualify    314.9    283.2    290.9  
Demoted sales leaders (did not re-qualify)    (151.3)   (144.8)   (165.9) 

  

Total re-qualified    163.6    138.4    125.0  
  

Retention rate    52.0%   48.9%   43.0% 
  

The table below reflects the number of sales leaders as of the end of February of the year indicated (subsequent to the annual re-qualification date) and sales leader
retention rate by year and by region.
 
   Number of Sales Leaders    Sales Leaders Retention Rate  
   2012    2011    2010    2012   2011   2010  
North America    79,150     72,152     64,668     51.1%   48.6%   43.3% 
Mexico    67,959     54,526     47,068     59.2%   57.9%   50.4% 
South & Central America    65,653     50,288     51,060     55.7%   47.3%   34.1% 
EMEA    55,121     49,696     47,080     61.5%   58.6%   51.9% 
Asia Pacific (excluding China)    116,158     90,822     75,635     40.2%   38.4%   38.6% 

        

Total Sales leaders    384,041     317,484     285,511     52.0%   48.9%   43.0% 
China    26,262     30,543     27,415      

        

Worldwide Total Sales Leaders    410,303     348,027     312,926      
        

The number of sales leaders by geographic region as of the quarterly reporting dates will normally be higher than the number of sales leaders by geographic region as of
the re-qualification period because sales leaders who do not re-qualify during the relevant twelve-month period will be removed from the rank of sales leader the following
February. Since sales leaders purchase most of our products for resale to other distributors and consumers, comparisons of sales leader totals on a year-to-year basis are
indicators of our recruitment and retention efforts in different geographic regions.
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We provide distributors with products, support materials, training, special events and a competitive compensation program. If a distributor wants to pursue the Herbalife
business opportunity, the distributor is responsible for growing his or her business and personally pays for the sales activities related to attracting new customers and recruiting
distributors by hosting events such as Herbalife Opportunity Meetings or Success Training Seminars; by advertising Herbalife’s products; by purchasing and using promotional
materials such as t-shirts, buttons and caps; by utilizing and paying for direct mail and print material such as brochures, flyers, catalogs, business cards, posters and banners and
telephone book listings; by purchasing inventory for sale or use as samples; and by training, mentoring and following up (in person or via the phone or internet) with customers
and recruits on how to use Herbalife products and/or pursue the Herbalife business opportunity.

Presentation

“Retail sales” represent the suggested retail price of products we sell to our distributors and is the gross sales amount reflected on our invoices. This is not the price paid
to us by our distributors. Our distributors purchase product from us at a discount from the suggested retail price. We refer to these discounts as “Distributor Allowance”, and we
refer to retail sales less distributor allowances as “Product Sales”.

Total distributor allowances are a fixed percentage of approximately 50% of suggested retail sales prices. Distributor allowances as a percentage of retail sales may vary
by country depending upon regulatory restrictions that limit or otherwise restrict distributor allowances. We also offer reduced distributor allowances with respect to certain
products worldwide. Each distributor’s level of discount is determined by qualification based on volume of purchases. In cases where a distributor has qualified for less than the
maximum discount, the remaining discount is received by their sponsoring distributors. Therefore, product sales are recognized net of product returns and distributor allowances.

“Net Sales” equal product sales plus “shipping and handling revenues”, and generally represents what we collect.

We do not have visibility to all of the sales from our independent distributors to their customers, but such a figure would differ from our reported “retail sales” by factors
including (a) the amount of product purchased by our distributors for their own personal consumption and (b) prices charged by our distributors to their customers other than our
suggested retail prices. We discuss retail sales because of its fundamental role in our systems, internal controls and operations, including its role as the basis upon which
distributor discounts, royalties and bonuses are awarded. In addition, it is used as the basis for certain information included in daily and monthly reports reviewed by our
management. However, such a measure is not in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. Retail sales should not be considered in
isolation from, nor as a substitute for, net sales and other consolidated income or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, or as a measure of
profitability or liquidity. A reconciliation of retail sales to net sales is presented below under “Results of Operations.”

Our international operations have provided and will continue to provide a significant portion of our total net sales. As a result, total net sales will continue to be affected
by fluctuations in the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies. In order to provide a framework for assessing how our underlying businesses performed excluding the effect of
foreign currency fluctuations, in addition to comparing the percent change in net sales from one period to another in U.S. dollars, we also compare the percent change in net sales
from one period to another period using “net sales in local currency” disclosure. Net sales in local currency is not a U.S. GAAP financial measure. Net sales in local currency
removes from net sales in U.S. dollars the impact of changes in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the functional currencies of our foreign subsidiaries, by translating
the current period net sales into U.S. dollars using the same foreign currency exchange rates that were used to translate the net sales for the previous comparable period. We
believe presenting net sales in local currency is useful to investors because it allows a more meaningful comparison of net sales of our foreign operations from period to period.
However, net sales in local currency measures should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to net sales in U.S. dollars measures that reflect current period exchange
rates, or to other financial measures calculated and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Our “gross profit” consists of net sales less “cost of sales,” which represents our manufacturing costs, the price we pay to our raw material suppliers and manufacturers
of our products as well as shipping and handling costs related to product shipments, duties and tariffs, freight expenses relating to shipment of products to distributors and
importers and similar expenses.

While all distributors can potentially profit from their activities by reselling our products for amounts greater than the prices they pay us, distributors that develop, retain,
and manage other distributors can earn additional compensation for those activities, which we refer to as “Royalty overrides”. Royalty overrides are our most significant
operating expense and consist of:
 

 •  royalty overrides and production bonuses which total approximately 15% and 7%, respectively, of the retail sales of weight management, targeted nutrition, energy,
sports & fitness, Outer Nutrition and promotional products;

 

 •  the Mark Hughes bonus payable to some of our most senior distributors in the aggregate amount of up to 1% of retail sales of weight management, targeted
nutrition, energy, sports & fitness, Outer Nutrition products and promotional products; and

 

 •  other discretionary incentive cash bonuses to qualifying distributors.
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Royalty overrides are generally earned based on retail sales and provide potential earnings to distributors of up to 23% of retail sales or approximately 33% of our net
sales. Royalty overrides are compensation to distributors for the development, retention and improved productivity of their sales organizations and are paid to several levels of
distributors on each sale. Royalty overrides are compensation for services rendered to the Company and as such are recorded as an operating expense.

Due to restrictions on direct selling in China, our sales employees in China, prior to the transfer into independent service providers, were compensated with wages,
bonuses and benefits and our independent service providers in China are compensated with service fees instead of the distributor allowances and royalty overrides utilized in our
traditional marketing program. Compensation to China sales employees and independent service providers are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Because of local country regulatory constraints, we may be required to modify our distributor incentive plans as described above. We also pay reduced royalty overrides
with respect to certain products worldwide. Consequently, the total royalty override percentage may vary over time and from the percentages noted above.

Royalty overrides together with distributor allowances of up to 50% of suggested retail sales prices represent the potential earnings to our distributors of up to
approximately 73% of retail sales.

Our “contribution margins” consist of net sales less cost of sales and royalty overrides.

“Selling, general and administrative expenses” represent our operating expenses, which include labor and benefits, sales events, professional fees, travel and
entertainment, distributor promotions, occupancy costs, communication costs, bank fees, depreciation and amortization, foreign exchange gains and losses and other
miscellaneous operating expenses.

Most of our sales to distributors outside the United States are made in the respective local currencies. In preparing our financial statements, we translate revenues into
U.S. dollars using average exchange rates. Additionally, the majority of our purchases from our suppliers generally are made in U.S. dollars. Consequently, a strengthening of
the U.S. dollar versus a foreign currency can have a negative impact on our reported sales and contribution margins and can generate transaction losses on intercompany
transactions. Throughout the last five years, foreign currency exchange rates have fluctuated significantly. From time to time, we enter into foreign exchange forward and option
contracts to partially mitigate our foreign currency exchange risk as discussed in further detail in Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk in the
Original 10-K.

Results of Operations

Our results of operations for the periods below are not necessarily indicative of results of operations for future periods, which depend upon numerous factors, including
our ability to recruit new distributors and retain existing distributors, open new markets, further penetrate existing markets, introduce new products and programs that will help
our distributors increase their retail efforts and develop niche market segments.

The following table sets forth selected results of our operations expressed as a percentage of net sales for the periods indicated:
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011   

Year Ended
December 31,

2010  
Operations:     
Net sales    100.0%   100.0%   100.0% 
Cost of sales    19.9    19.7    20.4  

  

Gross profit    80.1    80.3    79.6  
Royalty overrides(1)    32.9    32.9    32.9  
Selling, general and administrative expenses(1)    30.9    31.1    32.5  

  

Operating income    16.3    16.3    14.2  
Interest expense    0.4    0.3    0.4  
Interest income    0.1    0.2    0.1  

  

Income before income taxes    16.0    16.2    13.9  
Income taxes    4.6    4.2    3.2  

  

Net income    11.4    12.0    10.7  
  

 
(1) Compensation to our China sales employees and service fees to our independent service providers in China are included in selling, general and administrative expenses

while distributor compensation for all other countries is included in royalty overrides.

Changes in net sales are directly associated with the recruiting and retention of our distributor force, retailing of our products, the quality and completeness of our
product offerings that the distributor force has to sell and the number of countries in which we operate. Management’s role, both in-country and at the region and corporate
level, is to provide distributors with a competitive and
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broad product line, encourage strong teamwork and distributor leadership and offer leading edge business tools and technology services to make doing business with Herbalife
simple. Management uses the distributor marketing program coupled with educational and motivational tools and promotions to incentivize distributors to increase recruiting,
retention and retailing, which in turn affect net sales. Such tools include Company sponsored sales events such as Extravaganzas, Leadership Development Weekends and
World Team Schools where large groups of distributors gather, thus allowing them to network with other distributors, learn recruiting, retention and retailing techniques from
our leading distributors and become more familiar with how to market and sell our products and business opportunities. Accordingly, management believes that these
development and motivation programs increase the productivity of the sales leader network. The expenses for such programs are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses. Sales are driven by several factors, including the number and productivity of distributors and sales leaders who continually build, educate and motivate their
respective distribution and sales organizations. We also use event and non-event product promotions to motivate distributors to increase recruiting, retention and retailing
activities. These promotions have prizes ranging from qualifying for events to product prizes and vacations. The costs of these promotions are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

The factors described above have helped distributors increase their business, which in turn helps drive Volume Point growth in our business, and thus, net sales growth.
The discussion below of net sales by geographic region further details some of the specific drivers of growth of our business and causes of sales fluctuations during the year
ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011 and during the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the same period in 2010, as well as the unique
growth or contraction factors specific to certain geographic regions or significant countries within a region during these periods. We believe that the correct business
foundation, coupled with ongoing training and promotional initiatives, is required to increase recruiting and retention of distributors and retailing of our products. The correct
business foundation includes strong country management that works closely with the distributor leadership, actively engaged and unified distributor leadership, a broad product
line that appeals to local consumer needs, a favorable regulatory environment, a scalable and stable technology platform and an attractive distributor marketing plan. Initiatives,
such as Success Training Seminars, Leadership Development Weekends, Promotional Events and regional Extravaganzas are integral components of developing a highly
motivated and educated distributor sales organization that will work toward increasing the recruitment and retention of distributors.

We anticipate that our strategy will continue to include creating and maintaining growth within existing markets while expanding into new markets. In addition, new
ideas and DMOs are being generated in many of our markets and are globalized where applicable through the combined efforts of distributors, country management or regional
and corporate management. While we support a number of different DMOs, one of the more popular DMOs is the daily consumption DMO. Under our traditional DMO, a
distributor typically sells to its customers on a somewhat infrequent basis (e.g., monthly) which provides fewer opportunities for interaction with their customers. Under a daily
consumption DMO, a distributor interacts with its customers on a more frequent basis which enables the distributor to better educate and advise customers about nutrition and
the proper use of the products and helps promote daily usage as well, thereby helping the distributor grow his or her business. Specific examples of DMOs include the Club
concept in Mexico, Premium Herbalife Opportunity Meetings in Korea, the Healthy Breakfast concept in Russia, and the Internet/Sampling and Weight Loss Challenge in the
U.S. Management’s strategy is to review the applicability of expanding successful country initiatives throughout a region, and where appropriate, financially support the
globalization of these initiatives.

Financial Results for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased 17.9% to $4,072.3 million as compared to $3,454.5 million in 2011. In local currency, net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2012 increased 22.6% as compared to the same period in 2011. The increase in net sales was primarily due to the continued successful adoption and
operation of daily consumption DMOs; increased distributor engagement and an increase in average active sales leaders; branding activities and increased distributor recruiting.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased 11.8% to $464.0 million, or $3.94 per diluted share, compared to $415.0 million, or $3.32 per diluted share,
for the same period in 2011. The increase was primarily due to higher contribution margin driven by net sales growth discussed above, partially offset by higher selling, general
and administrative expenses to support the growth of our business, higher interest expense and higher income taxes.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2011 included a $0.9 million pre-tax ($0.7 million post-tax) additional interest expense from the write-off of unamortized
deferred financing costs resulting from the debt refinancing arrangement in March 2011. See Note 4, Long Term Debt, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on our debt refinancing.
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Net Sales

The following chart reconciles retail sales to net sales:

Sales by Geographic Region
 
   Year Ended December 31,    

Change
in Net
Sales  

   2012    2011    

   
Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

   (Dollars in millions)  
North America   $1,334.2    $ (635.8)  $ 698.4    $ 142.8    $ 841.2    $1,111.4    $ (530.5)  $ 580.9    $ 117.7    $ 698.6     20.4% 
Mexico    802.1     (391.7)   410.4     85.7     496.1     706.0     (344.4)   361.6     75.3     436.9     13.6% 
South & Central America    1,134.2     (544.5)   589.7     99.1     688.8     904.9     (430.8)   474.1     80.3     554.4     24.2% 
EMEA    1,018.3     (492.7)   525.6     102.2     627.8     991.0     (476.4)   514.6     100.6     615.2     2.0% 
Asia Pacific    1,780.6     (806.2)   974.4     165.5     1,139.9     1,469.4     (666.7)   802.7     135.9     938.6     21.4% 
China    334.9     (56.5)   278.4     0.1     278.5     245.1     (34.3)   210.8     —     210.8     32.1% 

                  

Worldwide   $6,404.3    $ (2,927.4)  $3,476.9    $ 595.4    $4,072.3    $5,427.8    $ (2,483.1)  $2,944.7    $ 509.8    $3,454.5     17.9% 
                  

North America

The North America region reported net sales of $841.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net sales increased $142.6 million, or 20.4%, for the year ended
December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 20.5% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same
period in 2011. The overall increase in net sales in the region was a result of net sales growth in the U.S. of $140.0 million, or 20.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as
compared to the same period in 2011.

In the U.S. we continue to see the success of our distributors converting their business focus toward daily consumption DMOs, especially the Nutrition Club.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 16.4% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.

In January 2012, the region hosted a U.S. Latin market Future President’s Team Retreat with over 900 attendees. The region also hosted Latin market Leadership
Development Weekends in February with approximately 9,400 attendees. In March 2012, we hosted our annual global Herbalife Summit event in Los Angeles, California where
President Team members from around the world met and shared best practices, conducted leadership training and management awarded distributors $52.3 million of Mark
Hughes bonus payments related to 2011 performance. In April 2012, the region hosted General Market Leadership Development Weekends with approximately 5,000 attendees
and Latin Market Leadership Development Weekends in June 2012 with approximately 13,000 attendees. In July 2012, the region hosted a series of Leadership Development
Weekends with approximately 5,800 attendees. During the fourth quarter the region hosted two regional extravaganzas (one Latin Market and one General Market) with a total
of approximately 20,800 attendees. The region also hosted two Future President Team Retreats (one Latin Market and one General Market) with a total of over 1,600 attendees.

Mexico

The Mexico region reported net sales of $496.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased $59.2 million,
or 13.6%, as compared to the same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased 20.4% as compared to the same period in 2011.
The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $30.1 million on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The growth in net sales is primarily the result of increased distributor engagement as well as the continued success of the Nutrition Club DMO. One of the recent growth
drivers in Mexico has been the ongoing transition from home clubs to commercial clubs by many distributors, which are able to generate higher volumes of sales through the
servicing of more customers and longer operating hours.

Average active sales leaders in Mexico increased 20.9% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.

In January 2012, the region hosted a Future President’s Team Retreat and Future Millionaire’s Team Retreat in Cancun, Mexico with approximately 600 and 1,525
attendees, respectively. In May 2012, the region hosted Leadership Weekends in two cities with a total of approximately 15,000 attendees. In September 2012, the region hosted
Extravaganzas in Mexico City and Guadalajara with approximately 21,200 and 12,200 attendees, respectively.

South and Central America

The South and Central America region reported net sales of $688.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net sales increased $134.4 million, or 24.2%, for the
year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 33.4% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the
same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a $50.9 million unfavorable impact on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net
sales for
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the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was due to an increase in net sales in almost every country in the region led by Brazil, Venezuela
and Peru. This growth was primarily driven by the adoption and expansion of daily consumption DMOs throughout the region.

In Brazil, the region’s largest market, net sales increased $9.2 million, or 3.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. In local
currency, net sales increased 19.8% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a $51.4
million unfavorable impact on net sales in Brazil for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net sales was primarily the result of the successful adoption of Nutrition
Clubs and other daily consumption DMOs.

Venezuela, the region’s second largest market, experienced a net sales increase of $76.8 million, or 117.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the
same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 117.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The sales growth was
primarily due to increased distributor engagement and growth in the Nutrition Club DMO. We also had price increases of 9.5% in January 2012 and of 15.0% in December 2012
which contributed to the increase in sales. There was no exchange rate impact to sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011 as the 5.3
Venezuelan Bolivars to U.S. dollar exchange rate for which we remeasure sales in Venezuela did not change during the comparative period. See Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Working Capital and Operating Activities below for further discussion of currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 28.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.

In February 2012, the region hosted two Extravaganzas in Panama City, Panama and Santiago, Chile with 8,700 and 9,000 attendees, respectively. In May 2012, the
region held three Extravaganzas in Brazil with a total of approximately 13,000 attendees. During the fourth quarter Brazil held a World Team School with over 4,700 attendees.

EMEA

The EMEA region reported net sales of $627.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net sales increased $12.6 million, or 2.0%, for the year ended
December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 9.6% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period
in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact on net sales of $46.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net sales for
the year ended December 31, 2012 was primarily driven by increases in Russia and the United Kingdom, partially offset by a decrease in Italy.

Net sales in Russia, our largest market in the region, increased $27.9 million, or 38.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.
In local currency, net sales increased 45.5% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a $5.5
million unfavorable impact on net sales in Russia for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in Russia was driven by the ongoing adoption of the Commercial
Nutrition Club, additional sales centers which have increased access to our products and improving brand image including the sponsorship of FC Spartak Moscow football club.

Net sales in Italy, our second largest market in the region, decreased $20.8 million, or 17.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in
2011. In local currency, net sales decreased 10.6% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had
an $8.2 million unfavorable impact on net sales in Italy for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decline in Italy is driven by a decrease in distributor activity. While we
believe it is too early to know for certain, indicators suggest that the market may be beginning to embrace daily consumption DMOs which generally cause short to medium
term declines in the business.

Net sales in Spain, our third largest market in the region, increased $1.4 million, or 2.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.
In local currency, net sales in Spain increased 11.6% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates
had a $4.6 million unfavorable impact on net sales in Spain for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in Spain was mainly due to the positive effect of increased
distributor activity which was aided by our sponsorship of FC Barcelona.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 14.2% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.

In September 2012, the region hosted three Extravaganzas in Spain, Ukraine, and Turkey with a total of over 23,200 total attendees.
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Asia Pacific

The Asia Pacific region, which excludes China, reported net sales of $1,139.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net sales increased $201.3 million, or
21.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 26.0% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as
compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact of $42.5 million on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012.
The increase in net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 reflected growth in almost all the countries in the region led by South Korea, Indonesia, Malaysia and India.

Net sales in South Korea, our largest market in the region, increased $77.8 million, or 22.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in
2011. In local currency, net sales increased 25.2% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had
an unfavorable impact on net sales of $8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net sales was primarily driven by the successful adoption and
operation of the Nutrition Club and other daily consumption DMOs along with the Mega and Premium Herbalife Opportunity Meetings.

Net sales in Taiwan, our second largest market in the region, decreased $1.7 million, or 1.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in
2011. In local currency, net sales decreased 0.4% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had
an unfavorable impact on net sales of $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The modest decline in net sales reflects the formation of a stable platform for future
growth following strategic actions taken to address certain distributor business training practices around nutrition clubs, resulting in the closure of a significant number of clubs.

Net sales in India, our third largest market in the region, increased $26.8 million, or 22.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in
2011. In local currency, net sales increased 40.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had
an unfavorable impact on net sales of $20.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 was primarily driven
by increased product access and the successful adoption of the daily consumption DMOs, especially the Nutrition Club.

Net sales in Malaysia, our fourth largest market in the region, increased $34.2 million, or 40.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period
in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 42.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates
had an unfavorable impact on net sales of $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net sales was primarily driven by the continued success of the
Road Show DMO and Mega Herbalife Opportunity Meetings which generated positive distributor momentum. Also contributing to growth for the period was increased
distributor activity including increased activity in Nutrition Clubs.

Net sales in Indonesia, our fifth largest market in the region, increased $42.1 million, or 83.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in
2011. In local currency, net sales increased 96.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had
an unfavorable impact on net sales of $6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The primary catalyst driving the sales increase in Indonesia was the growth in
Nutrition Clubs.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 31.2% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011.

During the first quarter the region hosted a series of Spectaculars in eight countries with a total of approximately 43,000 attendees. In May 2012, the region hosted two
regional extravaganzas, in South Korea and Singapore, with approximately 19,800 and 24,800 attendees, respectively. In September 2012, the region hosted an Asia Pacific
University training in Macau with 11,300 attendees and a World Team School in India with 3,500 attendees.

China

Net sales in China were $278.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net sales increased $67.7 million, or 32.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2012, as
compared to the same period in 2011. In local currency, net sales increased 29.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. The
fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact of $6.4 million on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The current focus in China is to expand the Nutrition Club DMO to enhance the emphasis on daily consumption DMOs. We believe that the Nutrition Club concept
continues to gain traction. While we believe the Nutrition Club DMO has potential to expand throughout China, this process will most likely build gradually over the next few
years.

Average active sales leaders in China increased 32.6% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011. We believe that the increase in
distributor engagement as reflected in the average active sales leader numbers is indicative of the market transitioning to daily consumption DMOs.
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As of December 31, 2012, we were operating 67 retail stores in 29 provinces in China. During May 2012, we received direct selling licenses for 8 additional provinces in
China, bringing the total provinces covered by our direct selling licenses to 24 out of the 29 provinces in which we operated as of December 31, 2012. We continue to seek
additional provincial licenses.

In April 2012, the region hosted its annual China Extraordinary Tour (Honors) with approximately 12,800 attendees. During the fourth quarter China held an
Anniversary Rally in Xiamen with approximately 13,400 attendees.

Sales by Product Category
 
   Year Ended December 31,    

% Change
in Net
Sales  

   2012    2011    

   
Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

   (Dollars in millions)  
Weight Management   $4,118.8    $ (1,946.8)  $2,172.0    $ 382.9    $2,554.9    $3,479.4    $ (1,647.5)  $1,831.9    $ 326.8    $2,158.7     18.4% 
Targeted Nutrition    1,523.1     (719.9)   803.2     141.6     944.8     1,272.7     (602.6)   670.1     119.5     789.6     19.7% 
Energy, Sports and Fitness    337.5     (159.5)   178.0     31.4     209.4     273.6     (129.5)   144.1     25.7     169.8     23.3% 
Outer Nutrition    235.9     (111.5)   124.4     21.9     146.3     238.1     (112.7)   125.4     22.4     147.8     (1.0)% 
Literature, Promotional and Other(1)    189.0     10.3    199.3     17.6     216.9     164.0     9.2    173.2     15.4     188.6     15.0% 

                  

Total   $6,404.3    $ (2,927.4)  $3,476.9    $ 595.4    $4,072.3    $5,427.8    $ (2,483.1)  $2,944.7    $ 509.8    $3,454.5     17.9% 
                  

 
(1) Product buybacks and returns in all product categories are included in the literature, promotional and other category.

Net sales for all product categories increased for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the same period in 2011, except for a slight decrease in Outer
Nutrition. The growth factors described in the above discussions of the individual geographic regions apply generally to all product categories.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $3,259.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $2,774.4 million for the same period in 2011. As a percentage of net sales,
gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased to 80.1%, as compared to 80.3% for the same period in 2011, or an unfavorable net decrease of 20 basis points. The
net 20 basis point decrease for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily due to the unfavorable impact of foreign currency
fluctuations, country mix and other costs partially offset by the benefit from our net source savings initiatives and favorable changes in inventory write-downs.

Royalty Overrides

Royalty overrides were $1,338.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $1,137.6 million for the same period in 2011. Royalty overrides as a
percentage of net sales was 32.9% for both the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. Generally, this ratio varies slightly from period to period due to changes in the mix of
products and countries because full royalty overrides are not paid on certain products and in certain countries. Compensation to our sales employees and independent service
providers in China is included in selling, general and administrative expenses as opposed to royalty overrides where it is included for all other distributors under our worldwide
marketing plan. We anticipate fluctuations in royalty overrides as a percentage of net sales reflecting the growth prospect of our China business relative to that of our worldwide
business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $1,259.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $1,074.6 million for the same period in 2011.
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales were 30.9% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to 31.1% for the same period in 2011.

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2012 included $59.7 million in higher salaries, bonuses and benefits,
excluding China sales employees, $20.2 million in higher professional fees, excluding China independent service providers, higher variable expenses related to sales growth
including $24.7 million in higher distributor promotion and event costs, $3.9 million in higher advertising expenses, $26.7 million in higher expenses related to China sales
employees and independent service providers, $10.9 million in higher non-income tax expenses such as value added tax and sales tax and $5.2 million in higher foreign
exchange loss.
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Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense is as follows:
 

Net Interest Expense   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011  
   (Dollars in millions)  
Interest expense   $ 16.7   $ 9.9  
Interest income    (6.2)   (7.4) 

  

Net Interest Expense   $ 10.5   $ 2.5  
  

The increase in net interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily due to higher outstanding balances on
the Credit Facility, and lower interest received related to non-income tax refunds.

Income Taxes

Income taxes were $186.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to $144.8 million for the same period in 2011. As a percentage of pre-tax income,
the effective income tax rate was 28.7% for the year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to 25.9% for the same period in 2011. The increase in the effective tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2012, as compared to the same period in 2011, was primarily due to lower net benefits from discrete events, changes in the geographic mix of the
Company’s income, and increased accruals for tax contingencies. See Note 12, Income Taxes, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion.

Financial Results for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2010

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased 26.3% to $3,454.5 million as compared to $2,734.2 million in 2010. In local currency, net sales for the year
ended December 31, 2011 increased 22.8% as compared to the same period in 2010. The increase in net sales was primarily due to the continued successful adoption and
operation of daily consumption DMOs; increased distributor engagement as reflected by record 2011 sales leader retention and an increase in average active sales leaders;
branding activities and increased distributor recruiting.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased 41.7% to $415.0 million, or $3.32 per diluted share, compared to $292.9 million, or $2.32 per diluted share,
for the same period in 2010. The increase was primarily due to higher contribution margin driven by net sales growth discussed above, partially offset by higher selling, general
and administrative expenses to support the growth of our business and higher income taxes. In addition, net income for the year ended December 31, 2010 was also negatively
impacted by matters related to Venezuela, as described below.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2011 included a $0.9 million pre-tax ($0.7 million post-tax) additional interest expense from the write-off of unamortized
deferred financing costs resulting from the debt refinancing arrangement in March 2011. See Note 4, Long Term Debt, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on our debt refinancing.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2010 included a $15.1 million unfavorable impact related to the remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities resulting
from Venezuela being designated as a highly inflationary economy beginning January 1, 2010; a $12.7 million unfavorable impact related to incremental U.S. dollar costs of
2009 imports into Venezuela which were recorded at the unfavorable parallel market exchange rate and were not devalued based on 2010 exchange rates, but rather recorded to
cost of sales at their historical dollar costs as products were sold in the first quarter of 2010; a $5.8 million favorable impact resulting from receipt of U.S. dollars approved by
the Venezuelan government’s foreign exchange commission, CADIVI, at the official exchange rate relating to 2009 product importations which were previously registered with
CADIVI; a $14.5 million one-time favorable impact to income taxes related to Venezuela becoming a highly inflationary economy; a $4.0 million pre-tax ($2.6 million post-
tax) foreign exchange gain in Herbalife Venezuela as a result of remeasuring its Bolivar denominated monetary assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2010 at the SITME rate of
5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar as opposed to the last parallel market rate of 8.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. See Liquidity and Capital Resources — Working Capital and Operating
Activities below for further discussion of currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2010 also included a $3.2 million tax benefit
from an international income tax audit settlement.
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Net Sales

The following chart reconciles retail sales to net sales:

Sales by Geographic Region
 
   Year Ended December 31,    

Change
in Net
Sales  

   2011    2010    

   
Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

   (Dollars in millions)  
North America   $1,111.4    $ (530.5)  $ 580.9    $ 117.7    $ 698.6    $ 977.3    $ (465.9)  $ 511.4    $ 102.7    $ 614.1     13.8% 
Mexico    706.0     (344.4)   361.6     75.3     436.9     539.8     (263.4)   276.4     57.6     334.0     30.8% 
South & Central America    904.9     (430.8)   474.1     80.3     554.4     637.8     (303.4)   334.4     56.0     390.4     42.0% 
EMEA    991.0     (476.4)   514.6     100.6     615.2     854.5     (413.6)   440.9     86.9     527.8     16.6% 
Asia Pacific    1,469.4     (666.7)   802.7     135.9     938.6     1,088.5     (498.5)   590.0     93.5     683.5     37.3% 
China    245.1     (34.3)   210.8     —       210.8     208.4     (24.0)   184.4     —       184.4     14.3% 

                  

Worldwide   $5,427.8    $ (2,483.1)  $2,944.7    $ 509.8    $3,454.5    $4,306.3    $ (1,968.8)  $2,337.5    $ 396.7    $2,734.2     26.3% 
                  

North America

The North America region reported net sales of $698.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net sales increased $84.5 million, or 13.8%, for the year ended
December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales increased 13.6% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same
period in 2010. The overall increase in net sales in the region was a result of net sales growth in the U.S. of $81.5 million, or 13.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as
compared to the same period in 2010.

In the U.S. we continued to see the success of our distributors converting their business focus toward a daily consumption DMO, especially the Nutrition Club DMO, and
its extension into Commercial Clubs, along with the continued development of the Weight Loss Challenge DMO. The success of these DMOs has resulted in higher levels of
distributor engagement and momentum.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 15.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. Average active sales leaders
in the U.S. increased 15.2% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the region hosted three regional Extravaganzas with approximately 21,600 attendees. The region also hosted a Future President Team
Retreat with 370 attendees.

Mexico

The Mexico region reported net sales of $436.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased $102.9 million,
or 30.8%, as compared to the same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased 28.6% as compared to the same period in 2010.
The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact of $7.4 million on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The growth in net sales was primarily the result of increased distributor engagement as well as the continued success of the Nutrition Club DMO. In addition, since the
beginning of 2010 we have significantly expanded our distribution network and product access throughout the country.

Average active sales leaders in Mexico increased 25.2% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

In September 2011, the region hosted an Extravaganza in Mexico City with approximately 20,000 attendees.

South and Central America

The South and Central America region reported net sales of $554.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net sales increased $164.0 million, or 42.0%, for the
year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales increased 36.7% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the
same period in 2010. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a $20.6 million favorable impact on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in net sales
for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was due to an increase in net sales in every country in the region led by Brazil and Venezuela.
This growth was primarily driven by the adoption and expansion of daily consumption DMOs throughout the region.

In Brazil, the region’s largest market, net sales increased $91.3 million, or 42.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. In
local currency, net sales increased 35.9% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The increase in local currency net sales was primarily
the result of the successful adoption of Nutrition Clubs and other daily consumption DMOs. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a $14.3 million favorable impact on
net sales in Brazil for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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Venezuela, the region’s second largest market, experienced a net sales increase of $24.0 million, or 58.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the
same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales increased 48.3% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The sales growth in local
currency was partially driven by price increases of 10% and 4.5% in February 2011 and August 2011, respectively. See Liquidity and Capital Resources — Working Capital and
Operating Activities below for further discussion of currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 21.2% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

In February 2011, the region hosted two Extravaganzas in Buenos Aires, Argentina and Bogota, Colombia. Together, the events had over 15,000 attendees. In April
2011, the region hosted three Extravaganzas in Brazil with a total of almost 15,000 attendees. In June 2011, the region also hosted Leadership Development Weekends in 14
cities with a total of almost 13,000 attendees. During the fourth quarter 2011 Brazil held a World Team School with over 5,600 attendees.

EMEA

The EMEA region reported net sales of $615.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net sales increased $87.4 million, or 16.6%, for the year ended
December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales increased 12.2% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same
period in 2010. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact on net sales of $23.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in net sales
for the year ended December 31, 2011 was driven by increases in the majority of the countries in the region led by Russia, Spain, Italy, Belgium and several of the Eastern
European markets.

Net sales in Italy, our largest market in the region, increased $7.4 million, or 6.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. In
local currency, net sales increased 1.6% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

Net sales in Russia, our second largest market in the region, increased $29.3 million, or 66.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in
2010. In local currency, net sales increased 61.3% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The increase in Russia was driven by the
ongoing adoption of the Commercial Nutrition Club, additional sales centers which have increased access to our products and improving brand image including the sponsorship
of FC Spartak Moscow football club.

Net sales in Spain, our third largest market in the region, increased $11.1 million, or 27.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in
2010. In local currency, net sales in Spain increased 21.3% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The increase in Spain was mainly
due to the positive effect of increased distributor engagement and recruitment which was aided by our sponsorship of FC Barcelona.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 15.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

The region hosted two Extravaganzas in September 2011 with approximately 15,500 attendees in Barcelona, Spain and 2,000 in Istanbul, Turkey.

Asia Pacific

The Asia Pacific region, which excludes China, reported net sales of $938.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net sales increased $255.1 million, or 37.3%,
for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales increased 32.2% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as
compared to the same period in 2010. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact of $34.9 million on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011. The
increase in net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflected broad-based growth across the region, especially in South Korea, India, Indonesia, and Malaysia, partially
offset by a decrease in Taiwan.

Net sales in South Korea, our largest market in the region, increased $134.7 million, or 64.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in
2010. In local currency, net sales increased 57.3% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The increase in net sales was primarily driven
by the successful adoption and operation of the Nutrition Club DMO, in the form of Commercial Clubs along with the Mega and Premium Herbalife Opportunity Meetings. The
fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact on net sales of $15.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

Net sales in Taiwan, our second largest market in the region, decreased $11.4 million, or 6.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in
2010. In local currency, net sales decreased 13.0% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The decline in net sales was mainly due to
strategic actions taken to address certain distributor business training practices around nutrition clubs, resulting in the closure of a significant number of clubs. The fluctuation of
foreign currency rates had a favorable impact on net sales of $10.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.
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Net sales in India, our third largest market in the region, increased $62.0 million, or 112.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in
2010. In local currency, net sales increased 117.5% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The increase in net sales for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was primarily driven by the successful adoption of the Nutrition Club DMO. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had an unfavorable impact on net
sales of $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

Net sales in Malaysia, our fourth largest market in the region, increased $19.5 million, or 30.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period
in 2010, reflecting the continued success of the Road Show DMO, which has generated positive distributor momentum and increased recruiting. In local currency, net sales
increased 23.9% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact on net sales of
$4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

Average active sales leaders in the region increased 34.3% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010.

In May 2011, the region hosted an Extravaganza in Bangkok, Thailand with over 22,000 attendees. In September 2011, the region hosted an Asia Pacific University
training in Seoul, South Korea with approximately 13,000 attendees.

China

Net sales in China were $210.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Net sales increased $26.4 million, or 14.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2011, as
compared to the same period in 2010. In local currency, net sales increased 9.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. The
fluctuation of foreign currency rates had a favorable impact of $9.6 million on net sales for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Average active sales leaders in China increased 28.7% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010. We believe that the increase in
distributor engagement as reflected in the average active sales leader numbers was indicative of the market transitioning to daily consumption DMOs.

As of December 31, 2011, we had direct-selling licenses in 16 provinces and we were operating 67 retail stores in 29 provinces in China. The 16 provinces in which we
had direct-selling licenses represented a then-addressable population of approximately 844 million.

In September 2011, the region hosted their Anniversary Rally in Qingdao, Shandong with over 10,100 attendees.

Sales by Product Category
 
   Year Ended December 31,    

% Change
in Net
Sales  

   2011    2010    

   
Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

Retail
Sales    

Distributor
Allowance   

Product
Sales    

Shipping &
Handling
Revenues    

Net
Sales    

   (Dollars in millions)  
Weight Management   $3,479.4    $ (1,647.5)  $1,831.9    $ 326.8    $2,158.7    $2,749.1    $ (1,303.4)  $1,445.7    $ 253.2    $1,698.9     27.1% 
Targeted Nutrition    1,272.7     (602.6)   670.1     119.5     789.6     1,018.2     (482.8)   535.4     93.8     629.2     25.5% 
Energy, Sports and Fitness    273.6     (129.5)   144.1     25.7     169.8     196.3     (93.1)   103.2     18.1     121.3     40.0% 
Outer Nutrition    238.1     (112.7)   125.4     22.4     147.8     206.3     (97.8)   108.5     19.0     127.5     15.9% 
Literature, Promotional and Other(1)    164.0     9.2    173.2     15.4     188.6     136.4     8.3    144.7     12.6     157.3     19.9% 

                  

Total   $5,427.8    $ (2,483.1)  $2,944.7    $ 509.8    $3,454.5    $4,306.3    $ (1,968.8)  $2,337.5    $ 396.7    $2,734.2     26.3% 
                  

 
(1) Product buybacks and returns in all product categories are included in the literature, promotional and other category.

Net sales for all product categories increased for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the same period in 2010. The growth factors described in the above
discussions of the individual geographic regions apply generally to all product categories.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $2,774.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $2,175.4 million for the same period in 2010. As a percentage of net sales,
gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased to 80.3%, as compared to 79.6% for the same period in 2010, or a favorable net increase of 70 basis points. The net
70 basis point increase for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily due to a favorable 51 basis point net increase related to
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circumstances surrounding Herbalife Venezuela and Venezuela’s highly inflationary economy. The remaining net increase of 19 basis points was primarily due to the favorable
impact from net source savings, foreign exchange fluctuations partially offset by an unfavorable impact from country mix and inventory write-downs. Specifically, the 51 basis
point increase resulted from the combination of (i) 47 favorable basis points from recognizing an unfavorable foreign exchange impact of $12.7 million during the first quarter
2010 relating to the incremental U.S. dollar cost of importing finished goods into Venezuela at the unfavorable parallel market rate rather than the CADIVI official rate, and
(ii) 4 favorable basis points from the impact of remeasuring Herbalife Venezuela’s Bolivar net sales at the SITME rate during the year ended December 31, 2011, as opposed to
being remeasured at the less favorable old parallel market rate during the first five months of fiscal year 2010 prior to the change to remeasuring at the SITME rate. See
Liquidity and Capital Resources — Venezuela below for further discussion on currency exchange rate issues in Venezuela.

Royalty Overrides

Royalty overrides were $1,137.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $900.2 million for the same period in 2010. Royalty overrides as a
percentage of net sales was 32.9% for both the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Generally, this ratio varies slightly from period to period due to changes in the mix of
products and countries because full royalty overrides are not paid on certain products and in certain countries. Compensation to our sales employees and independent service
providers in China is included in selling, general and administrative expenses as opposed to royalty overrides where it is included for all other distributors under our worldwide
marketing plan. We anticipate fluctuations in royalty overrides as a percentage of net sales reflecting the growth prospect of our China business relative to that of our worldwide
business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $1,074.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $887.7 million for the same period in 2010.
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales were 31.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 32.5% for the same period in 2010.

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2011 included $54.0 million in higher salaries, bonuses and benefits,
excluding China sales employees; higher variable expenses as a result of sales growth including $38.6 million in higher distributor promotion and event costs, $7.7 million in
higher advertising expenses, $21.5 million in higher non-income tax expenses such as value added tax and sales tax, $8.3 million in higher credit card fees, $9.4 million in higher
expenses related to China sales employees, sales officers and independent service providers and $4.1 million in higher foreign exchange loss, which included the effect of
Herbalife Venezuela’s $7.4 million net foreign exchange loss recorded in the first and second quarter of 2010.

Net Interest Expense

Net interest expense is as follows:
 

Net Interest Expense   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011   

Year Ended
December 31,

2010  
   (Dollars in millions)  
Interest expense   $ 9.9   $ 9.7  
Interest income    (7.4)   (2.3) 

  

Net Interest Expense   $ 2.5   $ 7.4  
  

The decrease in net interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily due to $2.6 million of interest
received on VAT refunds during 2011 and an increase in interest income earned on our outstanding cash and cash equivalents balances which had increased during 2011.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes were $144.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to $87.2 million for the same period in 2010. As a percentage of pre-tax income,
the effective income tax rate was 25.9% for the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 22.9% for the same period in 2010. The increase in the effective tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, was primarily due to the conversion of Venezuela to a highly inflationary economy in 2010, a tax
benefit from an international income tax audit settlement recognized in 2010, and the change in the operating effective rate reflecting changes in the country mix. See Note 12,
Income Taxes, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion.

During the second quarter of 2011, we had a change in method of accounting for excess tax benefits recognized as a result of the exercise of employee stock options,
stock appreciation rights, or SARs, and other share-based equity grants from the tax-law-ordering method to the with-and-without method which impacted our income tax
expenses recognized within our consolidated statement of income. This change in accounting principle was applied to all periods presented within our 2011 Annual Report for
comparative purposes. This change in accounting principle does not impact the consolidated financial statements related to fiscal years prior to 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010

We have historically met our working capital and capital expenditure requirements, including funding for expansion of operations, through net cash flows provided by
operating activities. Variations in sales of our products would directly affect the availability of funds. There are no material contractual restrictions on the ability to transfer and
remit funds among our international affiliated companies. However, there are foreign currency restrictions in certain countries, such as Venezuela as discussed below, which
could reduce our ability to timely obtain U.S. dollars. However, we believe we will have sufficient resources, including cash flow from operating activities, to meet debt service
obligations in a timely manner and be able to continue to meet our objectives.

Our existing debt has not resulted from the need to fund our normal operations, but instead has effectively resulted from our share repurchase and dividend activities
over recent years, which together, since the inception of these programs in 2007, amounted to approximately $2.0 billion. While a significant net sales decline could potentially
affect the availability of funds, many of our largest expenses are variable in nature, which we believe protects our funding in all but a dramatic net sales downturn. Further, as
discussed in greater detail below, we maintain the Credit Facility, executed on March 9, 2011 and amended on July 26, 2012, which had $695.2 million of undrawn capacity as
of December 31, 2012. As discussed further below, on July 26, 2012, we amended the Credit Facility and entered into a $500.0 million term loan with a syndicate of financial
institutions which matures in March 2016, or the Term Loan. See Subsequent Events below for discussion of borrowings made under the Credit Facility for share repurchases
made subsequent to December 31, 2012.

We utilized the majority of the proceeds from the Term Loan to pay down our outstanding balance on our revolving credit facility, which then provided us with
additional undrawn capacity. This available undrawn capacity, in addition to cash flow from operations, can be used to support general corporate purposes, including, our future
share repurchase programs, dividends, and strategic investment opportunities. Although we believe we will continue to have adequate cash flows from operations to fund our
business objectives, the increase in our borrowing capacity will provide us with greater flexibility.

We also have a cash pooling arrangement with a financial institution for cash management purposes. This cash pooling arrangement allows certain of our participating
subsidiaries to withdraw cash from this financial institution based upon our aggregate cash deposits held by subsidiaries who participate in the cash pooling arrangement. We
did not owe any amounts to this financial institution under the pooling arrangement as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, we generated $567.8 million of operating cash flow, as compared to $510.5 million for the same period in 2011. The increase in
cash generated from operations was primarily due to an increase in operating income of $99.2 million driven by a 17.9% growth in net sales for the year ended December 31,
2012 as compared to the same period in 2011. For the year ended December 31, 2011, we generated $510.5 million of operating cash flow, as compared to $387.9 million for the
same period in 2010. The increase in cash generated from operations was primarily due to an increase in operating income of $174.8 million driven by a 26.3% growth in net
sales for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the same period in 2010.

Capital expenditures, including capital leases, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $122.8 million, $90.9 million, and $68.1 million,
respectively. The majority of these expenditures represented investments in management information systems, the development of our distributor internet initiatives, and the
expansion of our warehouse, sales centers and manufacturing facilities domestically and internationally. We expect to incur total capital expenditures of approximately $165
million to $185 million for the full year of 2013, which includes capital expenditures associated with the Winston-Salem, North Carolina facility that was acquired December
2012. See Note 2, Basis of Presentation, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the purchase of the Winston-Salem, North Carolina facility.
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We entered into a $300.0 million senior secured credit facility, or the Prior Credit Facility, comprised of a $200.0 million term loan and a revolving credit facility of
$100.0 million, with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders in July 2006. In September 2007, we amended the Prior Credit Facility, increasing the revolving credit
facility by $150.0 million to $250.0 million to fund the increase in our share repurchase program. The term loan was to mature on July 21, 2013 and the revolving credit facility
was to be available until July 21, 2012. The term loan bore interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.5%, or the base rate, which represented the prime rate offered by major
U.S. banks, plus a margin of 0.50%. The revolving credit facility bore interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.25%, or the base rate, which represented the prime rate offered by
major U.S. banks, plus a margin of 0.25%.

On March 9, 2011, we entered into a $700.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility, or the Credit Facility, with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders and
terminated the Prior Credit Facility. The Credit Facility has a five year maturity and expires on March 9, 2016. Based on our consolidated leverage ratio, U.S. dollar borrowings
under the Credit Facility bear interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin between 1.50% and 2.50% or the base rate plus the applicable margin between 0.50% and
1.50%. The base rate under the Credit Facility represents the highest of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%, one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%, and the prime rate offered by Bank
of America. We, based on our consolidated leverage ratio, pay a commitment fee between 0.25% and 0.50% per annum on the unused portion of the Credit Facility. The Credit
Facility also permits us to borrow limited amounts in Mexican Peso and Euro currencies based on variable rates.

In March 2011, we used $196.0 million in U.S. dollar borrowings under the Credit Facility to repay all amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Facility. We incurred
approximately $5.7 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Credit Facility. These debt issuance costs were recorded as deferred financing costs on our consolidated
balance sheet and are being amortized over the term of the Credit Facility.

On July 26, 2012, we amended the Credit Facility to include the Term Loan. The Term Loan is a part of the Credit Facility and is in addition to our current revolving
credit facility. The Term Loan matures on March 9, 2016. We will make regular scheduled payments for the Term Loan consisting of both principal and interest components.
Based on our consolidated leverage ratio, the Term Loan bears interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin between 1.50% and 2.50% or the base rate plus the
applicable margin between 0.50% and 1.50%, which are the same terms as our revolving credit facility.

In July 2012, we used all $500.0 million of the borrowings under the Term Loan to pay down amounts outstanding under our revolving credit facility. We incurred
approximately $4.5 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Term Loan. The debt issuance costs are recorded as deferred financing costs on our consolidated
balance sheet and will be amortized over the life of the Term Loan. On December 31, 2012 and 2011, the weighted average interest rate for borrowings under the Credit
Facility, which included borrowings under the Term Loan as of December 31, 2012, was 1.96% and 1.89%, respectively. At December 31, 2010, the weighted average interest
rate for borrowings under the Prior Credit Facility was 1.75%.

The Credit Facility requires us to comply with a leverage ratio and a coverage ratio. In addition, the Credit Facility contains customary covenants, including covenants
that limit or restrict our ability to incur liens, incur indebtedness, make investments, dispose of assets, make certain restricted payments, pay dividends, repurchase its common
shares, merge or consolidate and enter into certain transactions with affiliates. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we were in compliance with the debt covenants under the
Credit Facility.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we borrowed $1,428.0 million and paid a total of $1,142.5 million under the Credit Facility. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, we borrowed $859.7 million and $54.0 million under the Credit Facility and the Prior Credit Facility, respectively, and paid a total of $657.7 million and
$228.9 million of the Credit Facility and Prior Credit Facility, respectively. During 2010, we borrowed $427.0 million and paid $487.0 million under the Prior Revolving Credit
Facility. As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility was $487.5 million and $202.0 million, respectively.
The $487.5 million U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, related to the Term Loan and there were no amounts outstanding on the
revolving credit facility. There were no outstanding foreign currency borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 under the Credit Facility.

We use our revolving credit facility to manage normal variations in cash created by significant cash items such as taxes, dividends, share repurchases, capital
expenditures and other large cash flow items. Our revolving credit facility provides us with the ability to access significant funds on a timely basis and then repay the
outstanding balances as cash from operations becomes available to us. During 2012, a large portion of our borrowings were used to fund the $427.9 million share repurchase
agreement with Merrill Lynch International discussed below. We expect to continue borrowing against our revolving credit facility as needed, including funding for future share
repurchases. During 2012, we also borrowed $500 million against the Term Loan in order to pay down our revolving credit facility as discussed above.
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The following summarizes our contractual obligations including interest at December 31, 2012, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and
cash flows in future periods:
 
   Payments Due by Period  

   Total    2013    2014 - 2015   2016 - 2017   
2018 &

Thereafter 
   (Dollars in millions)  
Borrowings under the senior secured credit facility(1)   $512.0    $ 65.6    $ 195.5    $ 250.9    $ —    
Capital leases    0.1     0.1     —       —       —    
Operating leases    193.2     50.1     76.8     36.1     30.2  
Other    92.4     28.1     30.2     12.0     22.1  

          

Total(2)   $797.7    $143.9    $ 302.5    $ 299.0    $ 52.3  
          

 
(1) The estimated interest payments on our Credit Facility are based on interest rates effective at December 31, 2012.
(2) Our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 included $45.6 million in unrecognized tax benefits. The future payments related to these unrecognized tax

benefits have not been presented in the table above due to the uncertainty of the amounts and potential timing of cash settlements with the tax authorities, and whether any
settlement would occur.

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the total amount of our foreign subsidiary cash was $321.3 million and $246.0 million, respectively, of which $6.9
million and $9.2 million, respectively, was invested in U.S. dollars. For earnings not considered to be indefinitely reinvested, deferred taxes have been provided. For earnings
considered to be indefinitely reinvested, deferred taxes have not been provided. Should we make a determination to remit the cash and cash equivalents from our foreign
subsidiaries to our U.S. consolidated group for the purpose of repatriation of undistributed earnings, we would need to accrue and pay taxes. As of December 31, 2012, our U.S.
consolidated group had approximately $66.4 million of permanently reinvested unremitted earnings from its subsidiaries, and if these monies were ever needed to be remitted,
the impact of any tax consequences on our overall liquidity position would not be material. As of December 31, 2012, our parent, Herbalife Ltd., had $1.6 billion of
permanently reinvested unremitted earnings relating to its operating subsidiaries. We do not have any plans to repatriate these unremitted earnings to our parent; therefore, we
do not have any liquidity concerns relating to these unremitted earnings and related cash and cash equivalents. See Note 12, Income Taxes, to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had no material off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K.

Share Repurchases

On April 17, 2009, our share repurchase program adopted on April 18, 2007 expired pursuant to its terms. On April 30, 2009, our board of directors authorized a new
program for us to repurchase up to $300 million of our common shares during the following two years, at such times and prices as determined by management, as market
conditions warrant. On May 3, 2010, our board of directors approved an increase to the repurchase program from $300 million to $1 billion. In addition, our board of directors
approved the extension of the expiration date from April 2011 to December 2014.

On May 2, 2012, we entered into an agreement with Merrill Lynch International to repurchase $427.9 million of our common shares, which was the remaining
authorized capacity under existing repurchase program at that time. Under the terms of the repurchase agreement, we paid $427.9 million on May 4, 2012 and the agreement
expired on July 27, 2012. We received 5.3 million and 3.9 million of our common shares under the repurchase agreement during June 2012 and July 2012, respectively. The
total number of common shares repurchased under the agreement was determined generally upon a discounted volume-weighted average share price of our common shares
over the course of the agreement. On July 27, 2012, we completed the repurchase program upon the final delivery of common shares repurchased under the repurchase
agreement.

On July 30, 2012, we announced that our board of directors authorized a new $1 billion share repurchase program that will expire on June 30, 2017. This repurchase
program allows us to repurchase our common shares, at such times and prices as determined by us as market conditions warrant. The Credit Facility permits us to repurchase
our common shares as long as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not exceeded. As of December 31, 2012,
the remaining authorized capacity under the repurchase program was $950.0 million.
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During the year ended December 31, 2012, we repurchased 11.0 million of our common shares through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of approximately
$527.8 million, or an average cost of $47.78 per share. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we repurchased 5.5 million of our common shares through open market
purchases at an aggregate cost of approximately $298.8 million, or an average cost of $54.27 per share. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we repurchased 5.7 million
of our common shares through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of approximately $150.1 million, or an average cost of $26.13 per share.

The number of shares issued upon vesting or exercise for certain restricted stock units and SARs granted, pursuant to our share-based compensation plans, is net of the
minimum statutory withholding requirements that we pay on behalf of our employees. Although shares withheld are not issued, they are treated as common share repurchases
for accounting purposes, as they reduce the number of shares that would have been issued upon vesting. These shares do not count against the authorized capacity under the
repurchase program described above.

Dividends

The declaration of future dividends is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon various factors, including our earnings, financial condition,
restrictions imposed by the Credit Facility and the terms of any other indebtedness that may be outstanding, cash requirements, future prospects and other factors deemed
relevant by our board of directors. The Credit Facility permits payments of dividends as long as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated leverage ratio specified
in the Credit Facility is not exceeded.

During the second quarter of 2007, our board of directors adopted a regular quarterly cash dividend program. Our board of directors authorized a $0.10 per common
share cash dividend each quarter from the adoption of the program through the second quarter of 2010. On August 2, 2010, we announced that our board of directors approved
an increase in the quarterly cash dividend to $0.13 per common share, an increase of $0.03 per common share from prior quarters. On May 2, 2011, we announced that our
board of directors approved an increase in the quarterly cash dividend to $0.20 per common share, an increase of $0.07 per common share from prior quarters. On February 21,
2012, we announced that our board of directors approved an increase in the quarterly cash dividend to $0.30 per common share, an increase of $0.10 per common share from
prior quarters.

The aggregate amount of dividends paid and declared during fiscal year 2012, 2011, and 2010, was approximately $135.1 million, $85.5 million, and $53.7 million,
respectively.

Working Capital and Operating Activities

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had positive working capital of $221.7 million and $206.1 million, respectively, or an increase of $15.6 million.
This increase was primarily related to the increase in our cash and cash equivalents, receivables and inventories, partially offset by the increases in our current liabilities
primarily related to our accounts payables, royalty overrides, accrued expenses, and current portion of long-term debt. The increase in receivables primarily relates to increases
in receivables from credit card companies due to the sales growth of our business. The increase in inventory primarily relates to increases in finished goods to support sales
growth and strategic sourcing initiatives.

We expect that cash and funds provided from operations and available borrowings under the Credit Facility will provide sufficient working capital to operate our
business, to make expected capital expenditures and to meet foreseeable liquidity requirements, including payment of amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility, for the next
twelve months and thereafter.

The majority of our purchases from suppliers are generally made in U.S. dollars, while sales to our distributors generally are made in local currencies. Consequently,
strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus a foreign currency can have a negative impact on net sales and contribution margins and can generate transaction losses on intercompany
transactions. For discussion of our foreign exchange contracts and other hedging arrangements, see Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk in
the Original 10-K.

Currency Restrictions in Venezuela

Currency restrictions enacted by the Venezuelan government have become more restrictive and have impacted the ability of the Company’s subsidiary in Venezuela,
Herbalife Venezuela, to timely obtain U.S. dollars in exchange for Venezuelan Bolivars, or Bolivars, at the official foreign exchange rates from the Venezuelan government and
its foreign exchange commission, CADIVI. The application and approval process continue to be delayed and our ability to timely obtain U.S. dollars at the official exchange
rates remains uncertain.

In June 2010, the Venezuelan government introduced additional regulations under a new regulated system, SITME, which is controlled by the Central Bank of
Venezuela. SITME provides a mechanism to exchange Bolivars into U.S. dollars through the purchase and sale of U.S. dollar denominated bonds issued in Venezuela. However,
SITME is only available in certain limited circumstances. Specifically, SITME can only be used for product purchases and is not available for other matters such as the payment
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of dividends. Also, SITME can only be used for amounts of up to $50,000 per day and $350,000 per month and is generally only available to the extent the applicant has not
exchanged and received U.S. dollars via the CADIVI process within the previous 90 days. Effective January 1, 2012, additional laws were enacted that required companies to
register with the Registry of Users of the System of Transactions with Securities in Foreign Currency, or RUSITME, prior to transacting with the SITME, the regulated system,
which is controlled by the Central Bank of Venezuela. As an alternative exchange mechanism, we have also participated in certain bond offerings from the Venezuelan
government and from Petróleos de Venezuela, S.A. or PDVSA, a Venezuelan state-owned petroleum company, where we effectively purchased bonds with our Bolivars and
then sold the bonds for U.S. dollars. In other instances, we have also used other alternative legal exchange mechanisms for currency exchanges.

Highly Inflationary Economy and Accounting in Venezuela

Venezuela’s inflation rate as measured using the blended National Consumer Price Index and Consumer Price Index rate exceeded a three-year cumulative inflation rate
of 100% as of December 31, 2009. Accordingly, effective January 1, 2010, Venezuela was considered a highly inflationary economy. Pursuant to the highly inflationary basis
of accounting under U.S. GAAP, Herbalife Venezuela changed its functional currency from the Bolivar to the U.S. dollar. Subsequent movements in the Bolivar to U.S. dollar
exchange rate will impact the Company’s consolidated earnings. Prior to January 1, 2010 when the Bolivar was the functional currency, movements in the Bolivar to U.S. dollar
were recorded as a component of equity through other comprehensive income. Pursuant to highly inflationary accounting rules, we no longer translate Herbalife Venezuela’s
financial statements as its functional currency is the U.S. dollar.

Based on relevant facts and circumstances at the applicable times, under the highly inflationary basis of accounting, we used the parallel market exchange rate for
remeasurement purposes until the parallel market was discontinued in May 2010. On January 1, 2010, in connection with the determination that Venezuela was a highly
inflationary economy, we remeasured Herbalife Venezuela’s opening balance sheet’s monetary assets and liabilities at the parallel market rate and recorded a non-tax deductible
foreign exchange loss of $15.1 million. Nonmonetary assets, such as inventory, reported on our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2009, remained at historical cost
subsequent to Venezuela becoming a highly inflationary economy. Therefore, the incremental costs related to our 2009 imported products recorded at the parallel market
exchange rate negatively impacted our consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2010 by approximately $12.7 million as these products were sold
during the first quarter of 2010. This amount is not tax deductible. See Note 12, Income Taxes, for additional discussion on the income tax impact related to Venezuela
becoming a highly inflationary economy.

Official Exchange Rate Devaluations in Venezuela

In early January 2010, Venezuela announced an official exchange rate devaluation of the Bolivar to an official rate of 4.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar for non-essential items
and 2.6 Bolivars per U.S. dollar for essential items. Our imports use to fall into both classifications. During 2010, because we used the parallel market exchange rate for
remeasurement purposes until the parallel market was discontinued in May 2010 and then used the SITME rate thereafter, any U.S. dollars obtained from CADIVI at the official
rate had a positive impact to our consolidated net earnings. The majority of Herbalife Venezuela’s 2010 importations were not registered with CADIVI so the official exchange
rates were not available to pay for these U.S. imports.

In late December 2010, Venezuela announced the CADIVI official exchange rate of 2.6 Bolivars per U.S. dollar would be eliminated. The CADIVI official exchange of
4.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar is used for all essential items and non-essential items beginning January 2011. This devaluation did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements since the SITME rate was used for remeasurement purposes.

Remeasurement of Herbalife Venezuela’s Monetary Assets and Liabilities

We recorded $5.8 million of foreign exchange gains to selling, general and administrative expenses within our consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2010, as a result of receiving U.S. dollars approved by CADIVI at the favorable official exchange rate compared to the less favorable parallel market and SITME
rates. During the second quarter of 2010, we also recorded a $4.0 million pre-tax ($2.6 million post-tax) net foreign exchange gain to selling, general and administrative
expenses, within our consolidated statement of income, as a result of remeasuring its Bolivar denominated monetary assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2010 at the SITME rate
of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar as opposed to the last parallel market rate prior to the closure of the parallel market in May 2010 of 8.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. During the third
quarter of 2010 and thereafter, we continued to use the SITME rate of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar to remeasure its Bolivar denominated transactions.
 

27



Table of Contents

In February 2011, Herbalife Venezuela purchased U.S. dollar denominated bonds with a face value of $20 million U.S. dollars in a bond offering from PDVSA for
86 million Bolivars and then immediately sold the bonds for $15 million U.S. dollars, resulting in an average effective conversion rate of 5.7 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. This
Bolivar to U.S. dollar conversion resulted in us recording a net pre-tax loss of $1.3 million U.S. dollars during the first quarter of 2011 which is included in its consolidated
statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2011. We were unsuccessful in accessing any subsequent PDVSA bond offerings and the frequency of future bond
offerings is unknown. During 2011, we also accessed the SITME market in order to exchange its Bolivars to U.S. dollars. In less frequent instances, we have also accessed
alternative legal exchange mechanisms, to exchange Bolivars for U.S. dollars, at less favorable rates than the SITME rate, which resulted in us recognizing $1.2 million of
losses in selling, general and administration expenses included within our consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2011.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we continued accessing the SITME market in order to exchange its Bolivars to U.S. dollars and the daily and monthly
restrictions continue. In other instances, we recognized an aggregate of $4.8 million of foreign exchange losses as a result of exchanging Bolivars for U.S. dollars using
alternative legal exchange mechanisms that were on average approximately 43% less favorable than the 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar published SITME rate. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, we have exchanged 59.2 million Bolivars for $6.4 million U.S. dollars using these alternative legal exchange mechanisms. We continue to remeasure
our Bolivars at the published SITME rate given the limited availability of alternative exchange mechanisms and the uncertainty in the effective exchange rate for alternative
exchange mechanisms.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Herbalife Venezuela’s net monetary assets and liabilities denominated in Bolivars was approximately $82.9 million
and $26.8 million, respectively, and included approximately $99.2 million and $34.8 million, respectively, in Bolivar denominated cash and cash equivalents. Our Bolivar
denominated cash and cash equivalents increased during 2012, primarily due to the current exchange restrictions in Venezuela which has limited our ability to timely exchange
our Bolivars to U.S. dollars. These remeasured amounts, including cash and cash equivalents, being reported on our consolidated balance sheet using the published SITME rate
of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar may not accurately represent the amount of U.S. dollars that we could ultimately realize. While we continue to monitor the exchange mechanisms
and restrictions under SITME, and assess and monitor the current economic and political environment in Venezuela, there is no assurance that we will be able to exchange
Bolivars into U.S. dollars on a timely basis.

Consolidation of Herbalife Venezuela and Foreign Exchange Risk

We plan to continue our operation in Venezuela and to import products into Venezuela despite the foreign currency constraints that exist in the country. Herbalife
Venezuela will continue to apply for legal exchange mechanisms to convert its Bolivars to U.S. dollars. Despite the currency exchange restrictions in Venezuela, we continue to
control Herbalife Venezuela and its operations. The mere existence of the exchange restrictions discussed above does not in and of itself create a presumption that this lack of
exchangeability is other-than-temporary, nor does it create a presumption that an entity should deconsolidate its Venezuelan operations. Therefore, we continue to consolidate
Herbalife Venezuela in our consolidated financial statements for U.S. GAAP purposes.

We plan to utilize the SITME market and CADIVI rate to the extent allowable under current restrictions in order to exchange Bolivars for U.S. dollars. We also plan to
access government, PDVSA bond offerings, and alternative legal exchange mechanisms when they are made available. As discussed above, these alternative legal exchange
mechanisms could cause us to recognize significant foreign exchange losses if they are less favorable than the SITME rate, which could also result in our Bolivar denominated
cash and cash equivalents reported on our consolidated balance sheet being significantly reduced. To illustrate our sensitivity to potential future changes in the SITME rate or
using unfavorable alternative legal exchange mechanisms to exchange Bolivars to U.S. dollars, if the exchange rate was approximately 43% less favorable than the current 5.3
SITME rate and this unfavorable exchange rate was used to convert our Bolivar denominated cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012, our $99.2 million in Bolivar
denominated cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012 would be reduced by $42.2 million and result in a corresponding foreign exchange loss to our operating profit.
This 43% less favorable exchange rate is not necessarily representative of exchange rates which could be available to us for future exchanges and represents the weighted
average rate that we received when using alternative exchange mechanisms during fiscal year 2012. Our ability to access the official exchange rate and the SITME rate could
impact what exchange rates will be used for remeasurement purposes in future periods. We continue to assess and monitor the current economic and political environment in
Venezuela.

Although Venezuela is an important market in our South and Central America Region, Herbalife Venezuela’s net sales represented approximately 4%, 2%, and 2% of
our consolidated net sales for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, and its total assets represented approximately 7% and 3% of our consolidated
total assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. See Subsequent Events below for further discussion of Herbalife Venezuela.
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Quarterly Results of Operations
 
   Quarter Ended  

   
December 31,

2012    
September 30,

2012    
June 30,

2012    
March 31,

2012    
December 31,

2011   
September 30,

2011    
June 30,

2011    
March 31,

2011  
   (In thousands except per share data)  
Operations:                
Net sales   $ 1,059,320    $ 1,016,887    $1,031,948    $964,175    $ 884,569   $ 895,218    $879,654    $795,096  
Cost of sales    211,105     201,597     203,737     196,144     170,960    175,308     171,023     162,793  

              

Gross profit    848,215     815,290     828,211     768,031     713,609    719,910     708,631     632,303  
Royalty overrides    355,658     330,247     335,195     317,533     293,109    290,842     289,232     264,377  
Selling, general and administrative expenses    332,764     324,200     306,310     296,393     286,151    277,721     266,225     244,526  

              

Operating income    159,793     160,843     186,706     154,105     134,349    151,347     153,174     123,400  
Interest expense, net    2,453     3,546     3,169     1,373     (1,357)   345     855     2,648  

              

Income before income taxes    157,340     157,297     183,537     152,732     135,706    151,002     152,319     120,752  
Income taxes(1)    45,133     45,424     51,586     44,801     25,634    43,543     43,718     31,925  

              

Net income(1)   $ 112,207    $ 111,873    $ 131,951    $107,931    $ 110,072   $ 107,459    $108,601    $ 88,827  
              

Earnings per share                
Basic(1)   $ 1.04    $ 1.03    $ 1.13    $ 0.93    $ 0.95   $ 0.92    $ 0.91    $ 0.75  
Diluted(1)   $ 1.00    $ 0.98    $ 1.09    $ 0.88    $ 0.90   $ 0.86    $ 0.86    $ 0.71  

Weighted average shares outstanding                
Basic    107,444     108,816     116,557     116,191     115,989    116,975     119,007     118,206  
Diluted    112,230     113,646     121,482     122,373     122,640    124,275     126,617     125,625  

 
(1) Income taxes, net income, basic earnings per share, and diluted earnings per share for the disclosed quarterly periods during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

have been revised due to the Prior Period Errors. See Note 2, Basis of Presentation, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on these income tax errors
and the related revisions.

Contingencies

See Note 7, Contingencies, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on our contingencies as of December 31, 2012.

Subsequent Events

On February 19, 2013, we announced that our board of directors approved a quarterly cash dividend of $0.30 per common share to shareholders of record as of March 5,
2013, payable on March 19, 2013.

Subsequent to the year-ended December 31, 2012, borrowings under our revolving credit facility, excluding the Term Loan portion, increased to $500.0 million, and
there was approximately $195.2 million of unused available credit as of February 19, 2013. These borrowed monies were primarily used for common share repurchases under
our share repurchase program described below. As of February 19, 2013, we had approximately $987.5 million of total borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility,
including the Term Loan and revolving credit facility.

During January and February 2013, we repurchased approximately 4.0 million of our common shares through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of
approximately $162.4 million, or an average cost of $40.61 per share.

In February 2013, the Venezuela government announced it is devaluing its Bolivar currency. They announced that the current 5.3 SITME rate will be eliminated and that
the CADIVI rate will be devalued from 4.3 Bolivars to 6.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. As of December 31, 2012, Herbalife Venezuela’s net monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in Bolivars was approximately $82.9 million and included approximately $99.2 million in Bolivar denominated cash and cash equivalents which were remeasured
at the published SITME rate of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. This new 6.3 CADIVI rate is 16% less favorable than the previously published 5.3 SITME rate. If during 2013, this
new 6.3 CADIVI rate or an alternative unfavorable exchange rate is used for remeasurement purposes, then we will have to record a foreign exchange loss to our fiscal year
2013 consolidated statement of income to the extent this exchange rate is less favorable than the previously published 5.3 SITME rate, and our Bolivar denominated cash and
cash equivalents will have to be reduced accordingly. If during the first quarter of 2013, we were to use the 6.3 CADIVI rate to remeasure
 

29



Table of Contents

Herbalife Venezuela’s $82.9 million net monetary Bolivar denominated assets and liabilities, then we would recognize an approximate $14 million pre-tax foreign exchange
loss to our 2013 consolidated statement of income and our $99.2 million Bolivar denominated cash and cash equivalents, which is included in our Bolivar denominated
monetary assets, would be reduced by approximately $16 million. We continue to monitor the current exchange restrictions in Venezuela and we are currently assessing what
exchange rate we should use prospectively for remeasurement purposes.

In late 2012, a hedge fund manager publicly raised allegations regarding the legality of our network marketing program and announced that the hedge fund manager had
taken a significant short position regarding our common shares, leading to intense public scrutiny and significant stock price volatility. We believe that the hedge fund
manager’s allegations are inaccurate and misleading. Subsequently, we have engaged legal and advisory firms to assist with responding to the allegations and to perform other
related services in connection to these recent events.

Critical Accounting Policies

U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. We regularly evaluate our estimates and assumptions related to revenue
recognition, allowance for product returns, inventory, share-based compensation expense, goodwill and purchased intangible asset valuations, deferred income tax asset
valuation allowances, uncertain tax positions, tax contingencies, and other loss contingencies. We base our estimates and assumptions on current facts, historical experience and
various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities and the recording of revenue, costs and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We consider the following policies to be most critical in
understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing the financial statements and the uncertainties that could impact our operating results, financial condition and cash
flows.

We are a nutrition company that sells a wide range of weight management products, nutritional supplements, energy, sports & fitness products and personal care
products within one industry segment as defined under Financial Accounting Standard Board, or FASB, Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 280, Segment
Reporting. Our products are manufactured by third party providers and manufactured in our Suzhou, China facility, and in our manufacturing facility located in Lake Forest,
California, and then are sold to independent distributors who sell Herbalife products to retail consumers or other distributors. As of December 31, 2012, we sold products in 88
countries throughout the world and we are organized and managed by geographic region. We have elected to aggregate our operating segments into one reporting segment,
except China, as management believes that our operating segments have similar operating characteristics and similar long term operating performance. In making this
determination, management believes that the operating segments are similar in the nature of the products sold, the product acquisition process, the types of customers to whom
products are sold, the methods used to distribute the products, and the nature of the regulatory environment.

We generally recognize revenue upon delivery and when both the title and risk and rewards pass to the independent distributor or importer, or as products are sold in our
retail stores in China or through our independent service providers in China. Net sales include product sales and shipping and handling revenues. Product sales are recognized
net of product returns, and discounts referred to as “distributor allowances.” We generally receive the net sales price in cash or through credit card payments at the point of sale.
Related royalty overrides and allowances for product returns are recorded when revenue is recognized.

Allowances for product returns, primarily in connection with our buyback program, are provided at the time the product is shipped. This accrual is based upon historical
return rates for each country and the relevant return pattern, which reflects anticipated returns to be received over a period of up to 12 months following the original sale.
Historically, product returns and buybacks have not been significant. Product returns and buybacks were approximately 0.3%, 0.4%, and 0.4% of product sales for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

We adjust our inventories to lower of cost or market. Additionally we adjust the carrying value of our inventory based on assumptions regarding future demand for our
products and market conditions. If future demand and market conditions are less favorable than management’s assumptions, additional inventory write-downs could be required.
Likewise, favorable future demand and market conditions could positively impact future operating results if previously written down inventories are sold. We have obsolete and
slow moving inventories which have been adjusted downward $18.0 million and $17.6 million to present them at their lower of cost or market in our consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Goodwill and marketing related intangible assets not subject to amortization are tested annually for impairment, and are tested for impairment more frequently if events
and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. As discussed
below, for goodwill impairment testing, we have the option to perform a qualitative assessment of whether it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than
its carrying amount before applying the two-step goodwill impairment test. If we conclude it is not more likely than not that the
 

30



Table of Contents

fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then there is no need to perform the two-step impairment test. Currently, we do not use this qualitative assessment
option but we could in the future elect to use this option. For our marketing related intangible assets a similar qualitative option is also currently available. However, we
currently use a discounted cash flow model, or the income approach, under the relief-from-royalty method to determine the fair value of our marketing related intangible assets
in order to confirm there is no impairment required. For our marketing related intangible assets, if we do not use this qualitative assessment option, we could still in the future
elect to use this option.

In order to estimate the fair value of goodwill, we also primarily use an income approach. The determination of impairment is made at the reporting unit level and
consists of two steps. First, we determine the fair value of a reporting unit and compare it to its carrying amount. The determination of the fair value of the reporting units
requires us to make significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include estimates of future revenues and expense growth rates, capital expenditures
and the depreciation and amortization related to these capital expenditures, discount rates, and other inputs. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates,
actual future results could differ. Changes in assumptions regarding future results or other underlying assumptions could have a significant impact on the fair value of the
reporting unit. Second, if the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting
unit’s goodwill and other intangibles over the implied fair value as determined in Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. Also, if during Step 1 of a goodwill impairment test we
determine we have reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts, then we perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not that a goodwill
impairment exists. During Step 2 of a goodwill impairment test, the implied fair value of goodwill is determined in a similar manner as how the amount of goodwill recognized
in a business combination is determined, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations. We would assign the fair value of a reporting unit to all of the
assets and liabilities of that reporting unit as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the price paid to acquire
the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. As of both
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had goodwill of approximately $105.5 million and marketing related intangible assets of approximately $310.0 million. No
marketing related intangibles or goodwill impairment was recorded during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, as their estimated fair value significantly
exceeded their carrying amounts.

Contingencies are accounted for in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 450, Contingencies, or ASC 450. ASC 450 requires that we record an estimated loss from a
loss contingency when information available prior to issuance of our financial statements indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We also disclose material contingencies when we believe a loss is not
probable but reasonably possible as required by ASC 450. Accounting for contingencies such as legal and non-income tax matters requires us to use judgment related to both
the likelihood of a loss and the estimate of the amount or range of loss. Many of these legal and tax contingencies can take years to be resolved. Generally, as the time period
increases over which the uncertainties are resolved, the likelihood of changes to the estimate of the ultimate outcome increases.

Deferred income tax assets have been established for net operating loss and interest carryforwards of certain foreign subsidiaries and have been reduced by a valuation
allowance to reflect them at amounts estimated to be ultimately realized. Although realization is not assured, we believe it is more likely than not that the net carrying value will
be realized. The amount of the carryforwards that is considered realizable, however, could change if estimates of future taxable income are adjusted. In the ordinary course of
our business, there are many transactions and calculations where the tax law and ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As part of the process of preparing our consolidated
financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate prior to the completion and filing of tax returns for such
periods. This process requires estimating both our geographic mix of income and our uncertain tax positions in each jurisdiction where we operate. These estimates involve
complex issues and require us to make judgments about the likely application of the tax law to our situation, as well as with respect to other matters, such as anticipating the
positions that we will take on tax returns prior to us actually preparing the returns and the outcomes of disputes with tax authorities. The ultimate resolution of these issues may
take extended periods of time due to examinations by tax authorities and statutes of limitations. In addition, changes in our business, including acquisitions, changes in our
international corporate structure, changes in the geographic location of business functions or assets, changes in the geographic mix and amount of income, as well as changes in
our agreements with tax authorities, valuation allowances, applicable accounting rules, applicable tax laws and regulations, rulings and interpretations thereof, developments in
tax audit and other matters, and variations in the estimated and actual level of annual pre-tax income can affect the overall effective income tax rate.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, or ASC 740, which provides guidance on the determination of how
tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under ASC 740, we must recognize the tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the
position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of
being realized upon ultimate resolution.
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We account for foreign currency transactions in accordance with ASC Topic 830, Foreign Currency Matters. In a majority of the countries where we operate, the
functional currency is the local currency. Our foreign subsidiaries’ asset and liability accounts are translated for consolidated financial reporting purposes into U.S. dollar
amounts at year-end exchange rates. Revenue and expense accounts are translated at the average rates during the year. Our foreign exchange translation adjustments are
included in accumulated other comprehensive loss on our accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses and foreign currency
remeasurements are generally included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

 
 Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and the reports of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, are set forth in
the Index to Financial Statements under Item 15 — Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules of this Amendment, and is incorporated herein by reference.

 
 Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act.
Based on an evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2012 conducted by the Company’s management, with the participation of the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and notwithstanding the Prior Period Errors disclosed in Note 2, Basis of Presentation, to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31,
2012.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The SEC, as directed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, adopted rules which require the Company to include in this Amendment, an assessment by
management of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. In addition, the Company’s
independent auditors must attest to and report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
and procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based upon this evaluation, under the framework in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework, and notwithstanding the Prior Period Errors disclosed in Note 2, Basis of Presentation, to the Consolidated Financial Statements, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2012.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report in Item 8 of this Amendment.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act that occurred during the fourth quarter ended
December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART III.
 
 Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Fees to Independent Registered Public Accountants for Fiscal 2011 and 2012

Following the resignation of KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm on April 8, 2013, the Audit Committee of the Company’s
Board of Directors engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or PwC, on May 21, 2013, to serve as the Company’s new independent registered public accounting firm to audit the
Company’s financial statements for its fiscal year ending December 31, 2013 and to re-audit the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010,
2011 and 2012 included in the Original 10-K, including the audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 required by Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. PwC has provided audit services in the aggregate amount of approximately $15 million for the re-audit of the financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, included within this Amendment.

As previously disclosed, the following services were provided by KPMG LLP during fiscal years 2011 and 2012:
 

   2011    2012  
Audit Fees(1)   $3,839,000    $3,940,000  
Audit-related fees(2)    —      $ 82,000  
Tax fees(3)   $ 474,000    $ 773,000  
All other fees    —       —    

    

Total   $4,313,000    $4,795,000  
    

 
(1) Audit fees consist of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, including the audit of internal controls required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the review of
financial statements included in the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and for services that are normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory
and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Audit-related fees consist of assurance and related services that were reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and which are not reported above under “Audit fees.” These fees primarily relate to accounting consultation services.

(3) Tax fees were billed for the following services: tax compliance and international tax guidance.

Pre-Approval Policy

The audit committee has adopted pre-approval policies and procedures for audit and non-audit services which the Company’s independent auditors have historically
provided. Pursuant to those policies and procedures, the Company’s external auditor cannot be engaged to provide any audit or non-audit services to the Company unless the
engagement is pre-approved by the audit committee in compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. All fees and services described above were pre-approved pursuant to
this policy.
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PART IV
 
 Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this Amendment, or incorporated herein by reference:

1. Financial Statements. The following financial statements of Herbalife Ltd. are filed as part of this Amendment on the pages indicated:
 
   Page No. 
HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES   
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm    38  
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011    39  
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010    40  
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010    41  
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December  31, 2012, 2011 and 2010    42  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010    43  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements    44  

2. Financial Statement Schedules. Schedules are omitted because the required information is inapplicable, not material, or the information is presented in the
consolidated financial statements or related notes.

3. Exhibits. The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immediately below are filed as part of this Amendment, or are incorporated by reference herein.

EXHIBIT INDEX
 
Exhibit
Number  Description   Reference 

3.1   Form of Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of Herbalife Ltd.    (d) 

4.1   Form of Share Certificate    (d) 

10.1   Form of Indemnity Agreement between Herbalife International Inc. and certain officers and directors of Herbalife International, Inc.    (a) 

10.2#   Herbalife International of America, Inc.’s Senior Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, effective January 1, 1996, as amended    (a) 

10.3#   Herbalife International of America, Inc.’s Management Deferred Compensation Plan, effective January 1, 1996, as amended    (a) 

10.4#   Master Trust Agreement between Herbalife International of America, Inc. and Imperial Trust Company, Inc., effective January 1, 1996    (a) 

10.5#   Herbalife International Inc. 401K Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, as amended    (a) 

10.6
  

Notice to Distributors regarding Amendment to Agreements of Distributorship, dated as of July 18, 2002 between Herbalife International, Inc.
and each Herbalife Distributor    (a) 

10.7

  

Indemnity agreement dated as of July 31, 2002, by and among WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd., WH Acquisition Corp., Whitney & Co.,
LLC, Whitney V, L.P., Whitney Strategic Partners V, L.P., GGC Administration, L.L.C., Golden Gate Private Equity, Inc., CCG Investments
(BVI), L.P., CCG Associates-AI, LLC, CCG Investment Fund-AI, LP, CCG AV, LLC-Series C, CCG AV, LLC-Series C, CCG AV, LLC-Series
E, CCG Associates-QP, LLC and WH Investments Ltd.    (a) 

10.8#   WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan, as restated, dated as of November 5, 2003    (a) 

10.9#   Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2003 between WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd. and Michael O. Johnson    (a) 

10.10#
  

Side Letter Agreement dated as of April 3, 2003 by and among WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd., Michael O. Johnson and the Shareholders
listed therein    (a) 

10.11#  Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Non-Executive Agreement)    (a) 

10.12#  Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Executive Agreement)    (a) 

10.13   Indemnity Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2004, among WH Capital Corporation and Brett R. Chapman    (a) 

10.14#  First Amendment to Amended and Restated WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan, dated November 5, 2003    (a) 
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Exhibit
Number  Description   Reference 

10.15

  

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002, by and among WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd., Whitney V, L.P., Whitney
Strategic Partners V, L.P., WH Investments Ltd., CCG Investments (BVI), L.P., CCG Associates-QP, LLC, CCG Associates-AI, LLC, CCG
Investment Fund-AI, L.P., CCG AV, LLC-Series C and CCG AV, LLC-Series E.    (b) 

10.16

  

Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002, by and among WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd., Whitney Strategic Partners V, L.P.,
WH Investments Ltd., Whitney V, L.P., CCG Investments (BVI), L.P., CCG Associates-QP, LLC, CCG Associates-AI, LLC, CCG Investment
Fund-AI, LP, CCG AV, LLC-Series C and CCG AV, LLC-Series E.    (b) 

10.17   Form of Indemnification Agreement between Herbalife Ltd. and the directors and certain officers of Herbalife Ltd.    (c) 

10.18#  Herbalife Ltd. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, effective December 1, 2004    (c) 

10.19

  

Indemnification Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2004, by and among Herbalife Ltd., Herbalife International, Inc., Whitney V, L.P.,
Whitney Strategic Partners V, L.P., CCG Investments (BVI), L.P., CCG Associates-QP, LLC, CCG Associates-AI, LLC, CCG Investment Fund-
AI, LP, CCG AV, LLC-Series C, CCG AV, LLC-Series E, CCG CI, LLC and GGC Administration, LLC.    (d) 

10.20#  Amendment No. 1 to Herbalife Ltd. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan    (e) 

10.21#  Form of 2004 Herbalife Ltd. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement    (l) 

10.22#  Form of 2004 Herbalife Ltd. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreement    (l) 

10.23#  Amended and Restated Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan    (f) 

10.24#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement    (p) 

10.25#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement    (p) 

10.26#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement applicable to Michael O. Johnson    (p) 

10.27#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement applicable to Michael O. Johnson    (p) 

10.28#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement applicable to Messrs. Richard P. Goudis and Brett R. Chapman    (p) 

10.29#
  

Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement applicable to Messrs. Richard P. Goudis and Brett
R. Chapman    (p) 

10.30#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement applicable to Mr. Michael O. Johnson    (s) 

10.31#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement applicable to Mr. Michael O. Johnson    (s) 

10.32#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement applicable to Messrs. Brett R. Chapman and Richard Goudis    (s) 

10.33#
  

Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement applicable to Messrs. Brett R. Chapman and
Richard Goudis    (s) 

10.34#
  

Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement
   (s) 

10.35#  Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement    (s) 

10.36#  Herbalife Ltd. Employee Stock Purchase Plan    (g) 

10.37#  Employment Agreement dated as of March 27, 2008 between Michael O. Johnson and Herbalife International of America, Inc.    (h) 

10.38#  Stock Unit Award Agreement by and between Herbalife Ltd. and Michael O. Johnson, dated March 27, 2008.    (h) 

10.39#  Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement by and between Herbalife Ltd. and Michael O. Johnson, dated March 27, 2008.    (h) 

10.40#  Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement by and between Herbalife Ltd. and Michael O. Johnson, dated March 27, 2008.    (h) 

10.41#  Amendment to Herbalife International Inc. 401K Profit Sharing Plan and Trust    (i) 

10.42#  Form of Independent Directors Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement    (j) 

10.43#  Herbalife Ltd. Amended and Restated Independent Directors Deferred Compensation and Stock Unit Plan    (j) 

10.44#

  

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Richard P. Goudis and Herbalife International of America, Inc., dated as of
January 1, 2010.    (k) 

10.45#
  

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Richard P. Goudis and Herbalife International of
America, Inc., dated as of December 28, 2010.    (n) 

 
35



Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number   Description   Reference 

10.46#
  

First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Brett R. Chapman and Herbalife International of
America, Inc., dated as of December 26, 2010.    (n) 

10.47#   Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Unit Award Agreement    (l) 

10.48#   Amended and Restated Non-Management Directors Compensation Plan    (l) 

10.49#   Form of Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Employee Directors Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement    (l) 

10.50#
  

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between Brett Chapman and Herbalife International of America, Inc., dated as of June
1, 2010.    (m) 

10.51#   Severance Agreement by and between John DeSimone and Herbalife International of America, Inc., dated as of February 23, 2011.    (o) 

10.52#   Amended and Restated Severance Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2011, by Desmond Walsh and Herbalife International of America, Inc.    (o) 

10.53

  

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2011, by and among Herbalife International, Inc. (“HII”), Herbalife Ltd., Herbalife International
Luxembourg S.a.R.L., certain subsidiaries of HII as guarantors, the lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer.    (p) 

10.54

  

First Amendment, dated July 26, 2012, to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2011, by and among Herbalife International, Inc. (“HII”),
Herbalife Ltd., Herbalife International Luxembourg S.a.R.L., certain subsidiaries of HII as guarantors, the lenders from time to time party
thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer.    (s) 

10.55#   Amendment to Amended and Restated Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan    (q) 

10.56#   Stock Appreciation Right Award Agreement, dated August 4, 2011, by and between Herbalife Ltd. and Michael O. Johnson    (r) 

10.57   Confirmation between Merrill Lynch International and Herbalife Ltd.    (s) 

21.1   Subsidiaries of the Registrant    (t) 

31.1   Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer    *  

31.2   Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer    *  

32.1   Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer    *  

32.2   Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer    *  

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document    *  

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document    *  

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document    *  

101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document    *  

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document    *  

101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document    *  
 
* Filed herewith.
# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
(a) Previously filed on October 1, 2004 as an Exhibit to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated herein by reference.
(b) Previously filed on November 9, 2004 as an Exhibit to Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated

herein by reference.
(c) Previously filed on December 2, 2004 as an Exhibit to Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated

herein by reference.
(d) Previously filed on December 14, 2004 as an Exhibit to Amendment No. 5 to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-119485) and is incorporated

herein by reference.
(e) Previously filed on February 17, 2005 as an Exhibit to the Company’s registration statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-122871) and is incorporated herein by reference.
(f) Previously filed on April 30, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
(g) Previously filed on February 26, 2008 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and is incorporated herein by

reference.
(h) Previously filed on April 7, 2008 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
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(i) Previously filed on May 4, 2009 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 and is incorporated by reference.
(j) Previously filed on May 3, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 and is incorporated by reference.
(k) Previously filed on June 17, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
(l) Previously filed on August 2, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 and is incorporated by reference.
(m) Previously filed on August 3, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
(n) Previously filed on December 29, 2010 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
(o) Previously filed on March 1, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
(p) Previously filed on May 2, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 and is incorporated by reference.
(q) Previously filed on April 29, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
(r) Previously filed on August 10, 2011 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, and is incorporated herein by reference.
(s) Previously filed on July 30, 2012 as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2012 and is incorporated herein by

reference.
(t) Previously filed on February 19, 2013 as an Exhibit to the Original 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Herbalife Ltd.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Herbalife Ltd. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012 based on our audits
(which was an integrated audit in 2012). We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects as of December 31, 2012. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Los Angeles, California
December 16, 2013
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
 
   December 31,  
   2012   2011  

   
(In thousands, except share

amounts)  
ASSETS   

CURRENT ASSETS:    
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 333,534   $ 258,775  
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,273 (2012) and $2,250 (2011)    116,139    89,660  
Inventories    339,411    247,696  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    145,624    134,605  
Deferred income taxes    49,339    54,949  

  

Total current assets    984,047    785,685  
  

Property, plant and equipment — at cost:    
Land and Building    22,193    —    
Furniture and fixtures    8,625    6,020  
Equipment    373,028    301,689  
Leasehold improvements    94,902    79,729  

  

   498,748    387,438  
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization    (255,862)   (193,735) 

  

Net property, plant and equipment    242,886    193,703  
  

Deferred compensation plan assets    24,267    20,511  
Other assets    48,805    41,125  
Deferred financing costs, net    7,462    4,797  
Marketing related intangibles and other intangible assets, net    311,186    311,764  
Goodwill    105,490    105,490  

  

Total assets   $1,724,143   $1,463,075  
  

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   
CURRENT LIABILITIES:    
Accounts payable   $ 75,209   $ 57,095  
Royalty overrides    243,351    197,756  
Accrued compensation    95,220    76,435  
Accrued expenses    181,523    152,744  
Current portion of long-term debt    56,302    1,542  
Advance sales deposits    49,432    31,702  
Income taxes payable    61,325    62,283  

  

Total current liabilities    762,362    579,557  
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:    
Long-term debt, net of current portion    431,305    202,079  
Deferred compensation plan liability    29,454    23,702  
Deferred income taxes    62,982    70,390  
Other non-current liabilities    42,557    39,203  

  

Total liabilities    1,328,660    914,931  
  

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES    
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:    
Common shares, $0.001 par value, 1.0 billion shares authorized, 106.9 million (2012) and 115.8 million (2011) shares outstanding    107    116  
Paid-in capital in excess of par value    303,975    291,950  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss    (31,695)   (37,809) 
Retained earnings    123,096    293,887  

  

Total shareholders’ equity    395,483    548,144  
  

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity   $1,724,143   $1,463,075  
  

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010  
   (In thousands, except per share amounts)  
Product sales   $3,476,926    $2,944,722    $2,337,493  
Shipping & handling revenues    595,404     509,815     396,733  

      

Net sales    4,072,330     3,454,537     2,734,226  
Cost of sales    812,583     680,084     558,811  

      

Gross profit    3,259,747     2,774,453     2,175,415  
Royalty overrides    1,338,633     1,137,560     900,248  
Selling, general and administrative expenses    1,259,667     1,074,623     887,655  

      

Operating income    661,447     562,270     387,512  
Interest expense    16,736     9,864     9,664  
Interest income    6,195     7,373     2,247  

      

Income before income taxes    650,906     559,779     380,095  
Income taxes    186,944     144,820     87,212  

      

NET INCOME   $ 463,962    $ 414,959    $ 292,883  
      

Earnings per share       
Basic   $ 4.13    $ 3.53    $ 2.46  
Diluted   $ 3.94    $ 3.32    $ 2.32  

Weighted average shares outstanding       
Basic    112,359     117,540     119,004  
Diluted    117,856     124,846     126,495  

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011   

Year Ended
December 31,

2010  
   (In thousands)  
Net income   $ 463,962   $ 414,959   $ 292,883  
Other comprehensive income:     

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of income taxes of $283 (2012), ($3,090) (2011), and $0 (2010)    9,821    (16,757)   583  
Unrealized (loss) gain on derivatives, net of income taxes of ($1,161) (2012), $1,455 (2011), and ($1,222)

(2010)    (3,707)   6,233    (4,472) 
  

Total other comprehensive income (loss)    6,114    (10,524)   (3,889) 
  

Total comprehensive income   $ 470,076   $ 404,435   $ 288,994  
  

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
 

   
Common

Shares   

Paid-in
Capital in
Excess of
par Value   

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss   

Retained
Earnings   

Total
Shareholders’

Equity  
   (In thousands, except per share amounts)  
Balance at December 31, 2009   $ 120   $222,882   $ (23,396)  $ 151,612   $ 351,218  
Issuance of 3.3 million common shares from exercise of stock options, SARs,

restricted stock units, and employee stock purchase plan    4    15,305      15,309  
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options, SARs and restricted stock grants     9,254      9,254  
Additional capital from share based compensation     22,969      22,969  
Repurchases of 6.0 million common shares    (6)   (21,088)    (138,914)   (160,008) 
Dividends and dividend equivalents ($0.45 per share)     580     (54,320)   (53,740) 
Net income       292,883    292,883  
Foreign currency translation adjustment      583     583  
Unrealized loss on derivatives, net of income taxes of ($1,222)      (4,472)    (4,472) 

  

Balance at December 31, 2010   $ 118   $249,902   $ (27,285)  $ 251,261   $ 473,996  
  

Issuance of 3.7 million common shares from exercise of stock options, SARs,
restricted stock units, employee stock purchase plan, and 0.4 million from
exercise of warrants    4    26,463      26,467  

Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options, SARs and restricted stock grants     26,241      26,241  
Additional capital from share based compensation     24,133      24,133  
Repurchases of 6.0 million common shares    (6)   (35,427)    (286,206)   (321,639) 
Dividends and dividend equivalents ($0.73 per share)     638     (86,127)   (85,489) 
Net income       414,959    414,959  
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of income taxes of ($3,090)      (16,757)    (16,757) 
Unrealized gain on derivatives, net of income taxes of $1,455      6,233     6,233  

  

Balance at December 31, 2011   $ 116   $291,950   $ (37,809)  $ 293,887   $ 548,144  
  

Issuance of 2.1 million common shares from exercise of stock options, SARs,
restricted stock units, and employee stock purchase plan, and 0.4 million from
exercise of warrants    3    11,261      11,264  

Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options, SARs and restricted stock grants     29,684      29,684  
Additional capital from share based compensation     28,133      28,133  
Repurchases of 11.5 million common shares    (12)   (57,655)    (499,060)   (556,727) 
Dividends and dividend equivalents ($1.20 per share)     602     (135,693)   (135,091) 
Net income       463,962    463,962  
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of income taxes of $283      9,821     9,821  
Unrealized loss on derivatives, net of income taxes of ($1,161)      (3,707)    (3,707) 

  

Balance at December 31, 2012   $ 107   $303,975   $ (31,695)  $ 123,096   $ 395,483  
  

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010  
   (In thousands)  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
Net income   $ 463,962   $ 414,959   $ 292,883  
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation and amortization    74,384    71,853    68,621  
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements    (29,684)   (26,241)   (8,937) 
Share based compensation expenses    27,906    24,133    22,969  
Amortization of discount and deferred financing costs    1,797    1,007    500  
Deferred income taxes    (7,758)   (21,271)   (33,338) 
Unrealized foreign exchange transaction loss (gain)    2,121    9,403    (7,142) 
Write-off of deferred financing costs    —      914    —    
Foreign exchange loss from adoption of highly inflationary accounting in Venezuela    —      —      15,131  
Other    532    2,206    2,527  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
Receivables    (28,186)   (9,687)   (7,593) 
Inventories    (82,177)   (84,880)   (31,516) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    249    3,229    10,254  
Other assets    (5,288)   (13,864)   (3,485) 
Accounts payable    17,034    15,427    6,650  
Royalty overrides    41,868    44,041    15,732  
Accrued expenses and accrued compensation    39,440    28,749    31,092  
Advance sales deposits    17,790    (1,538)   12,439  
Income taxes    28,042    48,565    (2,450) 
Deferred compensation plan liability    5,752    3,535    3,538  

  

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES    567,784    510,540    387,875  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
Purchases of property, plant and equipment    (121,524)   (90,408)   (68,125) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    280    297    115  
Deferred compensation plan assets    (3,756)   (1,975)   (1,126) 

  

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES    (125,000)   (92,086)   (69,136) 
  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Dividends paid    (135,091)   (85,489)   (53,740) 
Borrowings from long-term debt    1,430,560    914,200    427,000  
Principal payments on long-term debt    (1,146,580)   (888,865)   (499,451) 
Deferred financing costs    (4,460)   (5,718)   —    
Share repurchases    (556,727)   (321,639)   (160,008) 
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements    29,684    26,241    8,937  
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and sale of stock under employee stock purchase plan    11,373    22,262    15,309  

  

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES    (371,241)   (339,008)   (261,953) 
  

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH    3,216    (11,221)   (17,037) 
  

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    74,759    68,225    39,749  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR    258,775    190,550    150,801  

  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR   $ 333,534   $ 258,775   $ 190,550  
  

CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR     
Interest paid   $ 14,268   $ 8,800   $ 9,295  

  

Income taxes paid   $ 169,725   $ 118,906   $ 111,497  
  

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERBALIFE LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Herbalife Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempt limited liability company, or Herbalife, was incorporated on April 4, 2002. Herbalife Ltd. (and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Company”) is a leading global nutrition company that sells weight management products, nutritional supplements, energy, sports & fitness products and personal care
products utilizing network marketing distribution. As of December 31, 2012, the Company sold its products to and through a network of 3.2 million independent distributors,
which included 0.2 million in China. In China, the Company currently sells its products through retail stores, sales representatives, sales officers and independent service
providers. The Company reports revenue in six geographic regions: North America; Mexico; South and Central America; EMEA, which consists of Europe, the Middle East and
Africa; Asia Pacific (excluding China); and China.

2. Basis of Presentation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements refer to Herbalife and its subsidiaries.

Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements

During the quarter ended June 30, 2013, in connection with preparing the interim financial information presented in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for that period,
prior period errors were identified which affected the interim period ended June 30, 2013, and the annual periods ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, including the
applicable interim periods therein. These income tax errors primarily relate to income tax expenses calculated on intercompany inventory transactions and the Company’s
application of ASC 740-10-25-3(e) and ASC 810-10-45-8. As a result of its misapplication of these accounting standards, the Company’s income tax expenses and net income
within its consolidated statement of income were misstated. There were also certain amounts within the Company’s other consolidated financial statements that were misstated.
The Company has reflected the correction of these identified prior period errors in the periods in which they originated.

In evaluating whether the Company’s previously issued consolidated financial statements were materially misstated, the Company considered the guidance in ASC
Topic 250, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, ASC Topic 250-10-S99-1, Assessing Materiality, and ASC Topic 250-10-S99-2, Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements. The Company concluded that these errors were not material, individually or in the
aggregate, to any of the prior reporting periods, and therefore, amendments of previously filed reports were not required. If the entire correction was recorded in the second
quarter of 2013, it is expected that the cumulative amount would not be material for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. As such, this cumulative amount could have
been recorded as an out of period adjustment during the second quarter of 2013. However, because the Company is amending its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2012 due to its predecessor auditors withdrawing their opinions, and will amend its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarters ended
March 31, 2013, June 30, 2013, and September 30, 2013 that were deficient due to the absence of a Statement of Auditing Standards No. 100 review, the Company decided to
revise its applicable prior period financial statements in the amendments to its Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
March 31, 2013 so that the financial statements included herein and therein do not include these income tax errors. The Company believes this approach is more beneficial to
investors due to the Company’s unusual facts and circumstances surrounding its predecessor auditors resigning and withdrawing their audit opinions and the Company being
required to file amendments to its Annual Report on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q referenced above. As such, the revisions for these corrections are reflected
herein and will be reflected in the financial information of the applicable prior periods and will be reflected in future filings containing such financial information.
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The effects of these prior period errors in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Consolidated Balance Sheets
 

   December 31, 2012    December 31, 2011  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted    
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted  
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   $ 125,425    $ 145,624    $ 117,073    $ 134,605  
Deferred income taxes   $ 49,339    $ 49,339    $ 55,615    $ 54,949  
Total current assets   $ 963,848    $ 984,047    $ 768,819    $ 785,685  
Total assets   $ 1,703,944    $1,724,143    $ 1,446,209    $1,463,075  
Income taxes payable   $ 15,854    $ 61,325    $ 31,415    $ 62,283  
Total current liabilities   $ 716,891    $ 762,362    $ 548,689    $ 579,557  
Deferred income taxes   $ 62,982    $ 62,982    $ 72,348    $ 70,390  
Total liabilities   $ 1,283,189    $1,328,660    $ 886,021    $ 914,931  
Retained earnings   $ 148,368    $ 123,096    $ 305,931    $ 293,887  
Total shareholders’ equity   $ 420,755    $ 395,483    $ 560,188    $ 548,144  
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity   $ 1,703,944    $1,724,143    $ 1,446,209    $1,463,075  

Consolidated Statements of Income
 

   

Three months Ended
March 31, 2012

(Unaudited)    

Three months Ended
June 30, 2012
(Unaudited)    

Three months Ended
September 30, 2012

(Unaudited)  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Income taxes   $ 44,570    $ 44,801    $ 50,169    $ 51,586    $ 39,518    $ 45,424  
Net Income   $ 108,162    $ 107,931    $ 133,368    $ 131,951    $ 117,779    $ 111,873  
Basic earnings per share   $ 0.93    $ 0.93    $ 1.14    $ 1.13    $ 1.08    $ 1.03  
Diluted earnings per share   $ 0.88    $ 0.88    $ 1.10    $ 1.09    $ 1.04    $ 0.98  

   

Three months Ended
December 31, 2012

(Unaudited)    

Three months Ended
March 31, 2011

(Unaudited)    

Three months Ended
June 30, 2011
(Unaudited)  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Income taxes   $ 39,459    $ 45,133    $ 32,733    $ 31,925    $ 41,139    $ 43,718  
Net Income   $ 117,881    $ 112,207    $ 88,019    $ 88,827    $ 111,180    $ 108,601  
Basic earnings per share   $ 1.10    $ 1.04    $ 0.74    $ 0.75    $ 0.93    $ 0.91  
Diluted earnings per share   $ 1.05    $ 1.00    $ 0.70    $ 0.71    $ 0.88    $ 0.86  
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Three months Ended
September 30, 2011

(Unaudited)    

Three months Ended
December 31, 2011

(Unaudited)  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Income taxes   $ 42,980    $ 43,543    $ 30,349    $ 25,634  
Net Income   $ 108,022    $ 107,459    $ 105,357    $ 110,072  
Basic earnings per share   $ 0.92    $ 0.92    $ 0.91    $ 0.95  
Diluted earnings per share   $ 0.87    $ 0.86    $ 0.86    $ 0.90  

 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 2012    
Year Ended

December 31, 2011    
Year Ended

December 31, 2010  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Income taxes   $ 173,716    $ 186,944    $ 147,201    $ 144,820    $ 80,880    $ 87,212  
Net Income   $ 477,190    $ 463,962    $ 412,578    $ 414,959    $ 299,215    $ 292,883  
Basic earnings per share   $ 4.25    $ 4.13    $ 3.51    $ 3.53    $ 2.51    $ 2.46  
Diluted earnings per share   $ 4.05    $ 3.94    $ 3.30    $ 3.32    $ 2.37    $ 2.32  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 2012    
Year Ended

December 31, 2011    
Year Ended

December 31, 2010  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Net Income   $ 477,190    $ 463,962    $ 412,578    $ 414,959    $ 299,215    $ 292,883  
Total comprehensive income   $ 483,304    $ 470,076    $ 402,054    $ 404,435    $ 295,326    $ 288,994  

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
 

   
Paid-in Capital in Excess of par

Value    Retained Earnings    Total Shareholders’ Equity  

   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted    
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted   
As Previously

Reported    As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Balance at December 31, 2009   $ 222,882    $ 222,882    $ 159,705    $ 151,612    $ 359,311    $ 351,218  
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options, SARs and restricted stock

grants   $ 8,045    $ 9,254        $ 8,045    $ 9,254  
Net income       $ 299,215    $ 292,883    $ 299,215    $ 292,883  
Balance at December 31, 2010   $ 248,693    $ 249,902    $ 265,686    $ 251,261    $ 487,212    $ 473,996  
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options, SARs and restricted stock

grants   $ 27,450    $ 26,241        $ 27,450    $ 26,241  
Net income       $ 412,578    $ 414,959    $ 412,578    $ 414,959  
Balance at December 31, 2011   $ 291,950    $ 291,950    $ 305,931    $ 293,887    $ 560,188    $ 548,144  
Net income       $ 477,190    $ 463,962    $ 477,190    $ 463,962  
Balance at December 31, 2012   $ 303,975    $ 303,975    $ 148,368    $ 123,096    $ 420,755    $ 395,483  
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
 

   
Year Ended

December 31, 2012   
Year Ended

December 31, 2011   
Year Ended

December 31, 2010  

   
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted  
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted  
As Previously

Reported   As Adjusted 
   (In thousands, except per share amount)  
Net income   $ 477,190   $ 463,962   $ 412,578   $ 414,959   $ 299,215   $ 292,883  
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements   $ (29,684)  $ (29,684)  $ (27,450)  $ (26,241)  $ (7,728)  $ (8,937) 
Deferred income taxes   $ (9,050)  $ (7,758)  $ (12,984)  $ (21,271)  $ (33,313)  $ (33,338) 
Income taxes   $ 16,106   $ 28,042   $ 42,659   $ 48,565   $ (8,807)  $ (2,450) 
Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 567,784   $ 567,784   $ 509,331   $ 510,540   $ 389,084   $ 387,875  
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements   $ 29,684   $ 29,684   $ 27,450   $ 26,241   $ 7,728   $ 8,937  
Net cash used in financing activities   $ (371,241)  $ (371,241)  $ (337,799)  $ (339,008)  $ (263,162)  $ (261,953) 

In addition, the Company also identified income tax errors related to certain deferred income tax assets, which carry full valuation allowances. These deferred income
tax assets relate to deferred interest expense carryforwards and net operating loss carryforwards which resulted in the gross deferred tax assets and related valuation allowance
assets being overstated by $40.2 million as of December 31, 2011. These errors had no net impact to the Company’s financial position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, or to
the Company’s results of operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. However, certain information presented within Note 12, Income
Taxes, included in the Original 10-K was misstated. The Company is revising its applicable disclosures in Note 12 in this Amendment so that the disclosures included herein do
not include these immaterial errors.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, No. 2012-02, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic
350): Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment. This ASU allows an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the
quantitative impairment test for indefinite-lived intangible assets. An organization that elects to perform a qualitative assessment is required to perform the quantitative
impairment test for an indefinite-lived intangible asset if it is more likely than not that the asset is impaired. This ASU, which applies to all public, private, and not-for-profit
organizations, is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted, including for
annual and interim impairment tests performed as of a date before July 27, 2012, if a public entity’s financial statements for the most recent annual or interim period have not
yet been issued or, for nonpublic entities, have not yet been made available for issuance. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, as it was intended to simplify the impairment assessment for indefinite-lived intangible assets.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities which provides
further clarification relating to the scope of ASU 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosure about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. Effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after January 1, 2013, ASU 2011-11 requires an entity to include additional disclosures about financial instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the statement of
financial position, as well as financial instruments subject to a master netting agreement or similar arrangement. ASU 2013-01 added further scope clarification that ASU 2011-
11 applies to derivatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending
transactions that are either offset or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. This pronouncement may increase the Company’s disclosures,
including disclosures about its derivatives described in Note 11, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and will not have a material effect on the Company’s operating
results or financial position. This ASU will be effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Due to the
Company filing this Amendment, the Company has retrospectively adopted ASU 2013-01 and ASU 2011-11 and has presented the required disclosures within Note 13, Fair
Value Measurements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation Policy

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Herbalife Ltd. and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been
eliminated.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

In the majority of the countries that the Company operates, the functional currency is the local currency. The Company’s foreign subsidiaries’ asset and liability accounts
are translated for consolidated financial reporting purposes into U.S. dollar amounts at year-end exchange rates. Revenue and expense accounts are translated at the average
rates during the year. Foreign exchange translation
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adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses, which
include the cost of foreign currency derivative contracts and the related settlement gains and losses but excluding certain foreign currency derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges as discussed in Note 11, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income. The Company recorded net foreign currency transaction losses of $16.7 million, $11.4 million, and $7.3 million, for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively, which includes the foreign exchange impact relating to the Company’s Venezuelan subsidiary, Herbalife Venezuela. Herbalife Venezuela’s
foreign currency financial statement impact is discussed further below within this Note.

Forward Exchange Contracts, Option Contracts and Interest Rate Swaps

The Company enters into foreign currency derivative instruments such as forward exchange contracts and option contracts in managing its foreign exchange risk on sales
to distributors, purchase commitments denominated in foreign currencies, and intercompany transactions and bank loans. The Company also enters into interest rate swaps in
managing its interest rate risk on its variable rate credit facility. The Company does not use the contracts for trading purposes.

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, or ASC 815, the Company designates certain of its
derivative instruments as cash flow hedges and formally documents its hedge relationships, including identification of the hedging instruments and the hedged items, as well as
its risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking the hedge transaction, at the time the derivative contract is executed. The Company assesses the effectiveness of
the hedge both at inception and on an ongoing basis and determines whether the hedge is highly or perfectly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item. The
Company records the effective portion of changes in the estimated fair value in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassifies the related amount
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to earnings when the hedged item and underlying transaction impacts earnings. If it is determined that a derivative has
ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company will discontinue hedge accounting for such transaction. For derivatives that are not designated as hedges, all changes in
estimated fair value are recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are comprised
primarily of foreign and domestic bank accounts. To reduce its credit risk, the Company monitors the credit standing of the financial institutions that hold the Company’s cash
and cash equivalents.

During 2011, the Company entered into a cash pooling arrangement with a financial institution for cash management purposes. This cash pooling arrangement allows
certain of the Company’s participating foreign locations to withdraw cash from this financial institution to the extent aggregate cash deposits held by its participating locations
are available at the financial institution. To the extent any participating location on an individual basis is in an overdraft position, these overdrafts will be recorded as liabilities
and reflected as financing activities in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of cash flows, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, the Company did not owe any amounts to this financial institution.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s subsidiary in Venezuela, Herbalife Venezuela, had $99.2 million and $34.8 million, respectively, in Bolivar
denominated cash and cash equivalents. Please see Remeasurement of Herbalife Venezuela’s Monetary Assets and Liabilities below for a further description of Herbalife
Venezuela’s cash and cash equivalents balances.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist principally of receivables from credit card companies, arising from the sale of products to the Company’s distributors, and receivables from
importers, who are utilized in a limited number of countries to sell products to distributors. The Company believes the concentration of its collection risk related to its credit
card receivables is diminished due to the geographic dispersion of its receivables. The receivables from credit card companies were $81.1 million and $65.1 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Substantially all of the receivables from credit card companies were current as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. Although
receivables from importers can be significant, the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its importers and maintains an allowance for potential credit losses. The
Company considers customer credit-worthiness, past and current transaction history with the customer, contractual terms, current economic industry trends, and changes in
customer payment terms when determining whether collectability is reasonably assured and whether to record allowances for its receivables. If the financial condition of the
Company’s customers deteriorates and adversely affects their ability to make payments, additional allowances will be recorded. The Company believes that it provides adequate
allowances for receivables from its distributors and importers which are not material to its consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the majority
of the Company’s total outstanding accounts receivable were current.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company applies the provisions of FASB authoritative guidance as it applies to the nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities. The FASB authoritative guidance
clarifies the definition of fair value, prescribes methods for measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. As disclosed in Note 13, Fair Value Measurements, the Company has properly measured and disclosed its financial instruments.

The Company has estimated the fair value of its financial instruments using the following methods and assumptions:
 

 •  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments;
 

 •  The fair value of option and forward contracts are based on dealer quotes; and
 

 •  The carrying values of the Company’s variable rate debt instruments are considered to approximate their fair values because interest rates of those instruments
approximate current rates offered to the Company.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost (primarily on the first-in, first-out basis) or market.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent fees and expenses related to the borrowing of the Company’s long-term debt and are amortized over the term of the related debt using
the interest method.

Long-Lived Assets

In December 2012, the Company purchased an approximate 800,000 square foot facility in Winston-Salem, North Carolina, for approximately $22.2 million. As of
December 31, 2012, the Company allocated $18.8 million and $3.4 million between buildings and land respectively, based on their relative fair values. As of December 31,
2012, these amounts have been reflected in property, plant and equipment on the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Depreciation of furniture, fixtures, and equipment (includes computer hardware and software) is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets, which range from three to ten years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related asset or the term of the lease,
whichever is shorter. Buildings are depreciated over 40 years. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation and amortization expenses recorded to selling, general and administrative
expenses totaled $70.9 million, $68.9 million, and $67.7 million, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment, based on undiscounted cash flows, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be recoverable. Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the estimated fair value of the asset.

Goodwill and marketing related intangible assets with indefinite lives are evaluated on an annual basis for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. For goodwill, the Company uses a discounted cash flow approach to estimate the fair value of a reporting unit. If the
fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying value then the implied fair value of the goodwill must be determined. If the implied fair value of the goodwill is less than
its carrying value then a goodwill impairment amount is recorded for the difference. For the marketing related intangible assets, the Company uses a discounted cash flow
model under the relief-from-royalty method in order to determine the fair value. If the fair value is less than its carrying value then an impairment amount is recorded for the
difference. During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, there were no goodwill or marketing related intangible asset impairments. At December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, the marketing related intangible asset balance was $310.0 million which consisted of the Company’s trademark, trade name, and marketing franchise. As of
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, the goodwill balance was $105.5 million, $105.5 million, and $102.9 million, respectively. The $2.6 million increase in goodwill in 2011
from 2010 was primarily due to the acquisition of iChange Network, Inc., a privately held software company, where the purchase price was not material to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their expected lives, and are expected to be fully amortized over the next four years. As of December 31, 2012, the
Company’s intangible assets with finite lives decreased to $1.1 million. As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s intangible assets with finite lives increased to $1.7 million,
net of $0.6 million amortization, due to the iChange Network acquisition. As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s intangible assets with finite lives decreased to $0.8 million.
The annual amortization expense for finite life intangibles was $0.6 million, $0.6 million, and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. At December 31, 2012, the annual expected amortization expense is as follows: 2013 — $0.4 million; 2014 — $0.3 million; 2015 — $0.3 million; and 2016 —
$0.1 million.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense includes income taxes payable for the current year and the change in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences of
events that have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements or income tax returns. A valuation allowance is recognized to reduce the carrying value of deferred
income tax assets if it is believed to be more likely than not that a component of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized.
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The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with FASB authoritative guidance which clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements. This guidance prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. See Note 12, Income Taxes, for a further description on income taxes.

Royalty Overrides

An independent distributor may earn commissions, called royalty overrides which include production bonuses, based on retail sales volume. Royalty overrides are based
on the retail sales volume of certain other distributors who are sponsored directly or indirectly by the distributor. Royalty overrides are recorded when the products are delivered
and revenue is recognized. The royalty overrides are compensation to distributors for services rendered including the development, retention and the improved productivity of
their sales organizations. As such royalty overrides are classified as an operating expense. Non-U.S. royalty override checks that have aged, for a variety of reasons, beyond a
certainty of being paid, are taken back into income. Management has estimated this period of certainty to be three years worldwide.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net earnings, foreign currency translation adjustments and the effective portion of the unrealized gains or losses on derivatives.

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

   December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010  
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax   $(28,788)  $(38,609)  $(21,852) 
Unrealized loss on derivatives, net of tax    (2,907)   800    (5,433) 

  

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   $(31,695)  $(37,809)  $(27,285) 
  

Operating Leases

The Company leases most of its physical properties under operating leases. Certain lease agreements generally include rent holidays and tenant improvement allowances.
The Company recognizes rent holiday periods on a straight-line basis over the lease term beginning when the Company has the right to the leased space. The Company also
records tenant improvement allowances and rent holidays as deferred rent liabilities and amortizes the deferred rent over the terms of the lease to rent expense.

Research and Development

The Company’s research and development is performed by in-house staff and outside consultants. For all periods presented, research and development costs were
expensed as incurred and were not material.

Professional Fees

The Company expenses professional fees, including legal fees, as incurred. These professional fees are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
Company’s consolidated statements of income.

Advertising

Advertising costs, including Company sponsorships, are expensed as incurred and amounted to approximately $42.3 million, $38.4 million, and $30.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. These expenses are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share represents net income for the period common shares were outstanding, divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
for the period. Diluted earnings per share represents net income divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, inclusive of the effect of dilutive
securities such as outstanding stock options, SARs, stock units and warrants.
 

50



Table of Contents

The following are the common share amounts used to compute the basic and diluted earnings per share for each period (in thousands):
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010  
Weighted average shares used in basic computations    112,359     117,540     119,004  
Dilutive effect of exercise of equity grants outstanding    5,457     7,046     7,059  
Dilutive effect of warrants    40     260     432  

      

Weighted average shares used in diluted computations    117,856     124,846     126,495  
      

There were an aggregate of 4.0 million, 2.1 million, and 1.5 million of equity grants, consisting of stock options, SARs, and stock units that were outstanding during the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would be anti-
dilutive.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generally recognizes revenue upon delivery and when both the title and risk and rewards pass to the independent distributor or importer, or as products are
sold in retail stores in China or through the Company’s independent service providers in China. Product sales are recognized net of product returns and discounts referred to as
“distributor allowances.” Net sales include product sales and shipping and handling revenues. Shipping and handling costs paid by the Company are included in cost of sales.
The Company generally receives the net sales price in cash or through credit card payments at the point of sale. The Company currently presents sales taxes collected from
customers on a net basis. Allowances for product returns, primarily in connection with the Company’s buyback program, are provided at the time the sale is recorded. This
accrual is based upon historical return rates for each country and the relevant return pattern, which reflects anticipated returns to be received over a period of up to 12 months
following the original sale.

Share-Based Payments

The Company accounts for share-based compensation in accordance with FASB authoritative guidance which requires the measurement of share-based compensation
expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees for service. The Company measures share-based compensation cost at the grant date, based on the fair value of
the award, and recognizes the expense on a straight-line basis over the employee’s requisite service period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using
historical experience and other factors, including the current economic environment, which the Company believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. Illiquid credit markets, volatile equity, and foreign currency have combined to increase the
uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ from these estimates.
Changes in estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial statements in future periods.

Currency Restrictions in Venezuela

Currency restrictions enacted by the Venezuelan government have become more restrictive and have impacted the ability of the Company’s subsidiary in Venezuela,
Herbalife Venezuela, to timely obtain U.S. dollars in exchange for Venezuelan Bolivars, or Bolivars, at the official foreign exchange rates from the Venezuelan government and
its foreign exchange commission, CADIVI. The application and approval process continue to be delayed and the Company’s ability to timely obtain U.S. dollars at the official
exchange rates remains uncertain.

In June 2010, the Venezuelan government introduced additional regulations under a new regulated system, SITME, which is controlled by the Central Bank of
Venezuela. SITME provides a mechanism to exchange Bolivars into U.S. dollars through the purchase and sale of U.S. dollar denominated bonds issued in Venezuela. However,
SITME is only available in certain limited circumstances. Specifically, SITME can only be used for product purchases and is not available for other matters such as the payment
of dividends. Also, SITME can only be used for amounts of up to $50,000 per day and $350,000 per month and is generally only available to the extent the applicant has not
exchanged and received U.S. dollars via the CADIVI process within the previous 90 days. Effective January 1, 2012, additional laws were enacted that required companies to
register with the Registry of Users of the System
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of Transactions with Securities in Foreign Currency, or RUSITME, prior to transacting with the SITME, the regulated system, which is controlled by the Central Bank of
Venezuela. As an alternative exchange mechanism, the Company has also participated in certain bond offerings from the Venezuelan government and from Petróleos de
Venezuela, S.A. or PDVSA, a Venezuelan state-owned petroleum company, where the Company effectively purchased bonds with its Bolivars and then sold the bonds for
U.S. dollars. In other instances, the Company has also used other alternative legal exchange mechanisms for currency exchanges.

Highly Inflationary Economy and Accounting in Venezuela

Venezuela’s inflation rate as measured using the blended National Consumer Price Index and Consumer Price Index rate exceeded a three-year cumulative inflation rate
of 100% as of December 31, 2009. Accordingly, effective January 1, 2010, Venezuela was considered a highly inflationary economy. Pursuant to the highly inflationary basis
of accounting under U.S. GAAP, Herbalife Venezuela changed its functional currency from the Bolivar to the U.S. dollar. Subsequent movements in the Bolivar to U.S. dollar
exchange rate will impact the Company’s consolidated earnings. Prior to January 1, 2010 when the Bolivar was the functional currency, movements in the Bolivar to U.S. dollar
were recorded as a component of equity through other comprehensive income. Pursuant to highly inflationary accounting rules, the Company no longer translates Herbalife
Venezuela’s financial statements as its functional currency is the U.S. dollar.

Based on relevant facts and circumstances at the applicable times, under the highly inflationary basis of accounting, the Company used the parallel market exchange rate
for remeasurement purposes until the parallel market was discontinued in May 2010. On January 1, 2010, in connection with the determination that Venezuela was a highly
inflationary economy, the Company remeasured Herbalife Venezuela’s opening balance sheet’s monetary assets and liabilities at the parallel market rate and recorded a non-tax
deductible foreign exchange loss of $15.1 million. Nonmonetary assets, such as inventory, reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2009,
remained at historical cost subsequent to Venezuela becoming a highly inflationary economy. Therefore, the incremental costs related to the Company’s 2009 imported products
recorded at the parallel market exchange rate negatively impacted the Company’s consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2010 by approximately
$12.7 million as these products were sold during the first quarter of 2010. This amount is not tax deductible. See Note 12, Income Taxes, for additional discussion on the income
tax impact related to Venezuela becoming a highly inflationary economy.

Official Exchange Rate Devaluations in Venezuela

In early January 2010, Venezuela announced an official exchange rate devaluation of the Bolivar to an official rate of 4.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar for non-essential items
and 2.6 Bolivars per U.S. dollar for essential items. The Company’s imports use to fall into both classifications. During 2010, because the Company used the parallel market
exchange rate for remeasurement purposes until the parallel market was discontinued in May 2010 and then used the SITME rate thereafter, any U.S. dollars obtained from
CADIVI at the official rate had a positive impact to the Company’s consolidated net earnings. The majority of Herbalife Venezuela’s 2010 importations were not registered with
CADIVI so the official exchange rates were not available to pay for these U.S. imports.

In late December 2010, Venezuela announced the CADIVI official exchange rate of 2.6 Bolivars per U.S. dollar would be eliminated. The CADIVI official exchange of
4.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar is used for all essential items and non-essential items beginning January 2011. This devaluation did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements since the SITME rate was used for remeasurement purposes.

Remeasurement of Herbalife Venezuela’s Monetary Assets and Liabilities

The Company recorded $5.8 million of foreign exchange gains to selling, general and administrative expenses within the Company’s consolidated statement of income
for the year ended December 31, 2010, as a result of receiving U.S. dollars approved by CADIVI at the favorable official exchange rate compared to the less favorable parallel
market and SITME rates. During the second quarter of 2010, the Company also recorded a $4.0 million pre-tax ($2.6 million post-tax) net foreign exchange gain to selling,
general and administrative expenses, within the Company’s consolidated statement of income, as a result of remeasuring its Bolivar denominated monetary assets and liabilities
as of June 30, 2010 at the SITME rate of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar as opposed to the last parallel market rate prior to the closure of the parallel market in May 2010 of 8.3
Bolivars per U.S. dollar. During the third quarter of 2010 and thereafter, the Company continued to use the SITME rate of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar to remeasure its Bolivar
denominated transactions.

In February 2011, Herbalife Venezuela purchased U.S. dollar denominated bonds with a face value of $20 million U.S. dollars in a bond offering from PDVSA for
86 million Bolivars and then immediately sold the bonds for $15 million U.S. dollars, resulting in an average effective conversion rate of 5.7 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. This
Bolivar to U.S. dollar conversion resulted in the Company recording a net pre-tax loss of $1.3 million U.S. dollars during the first quarter of 2011 which is included in its
consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2011. The Company was unsuccessful in accessing any subsequent PDVSA bond offerings and the
frequency of future bond offerings is unknown. During 2011, the Company also accessed the SITME market in order to exchange its Bolivars to U.S. dollars. In less frequent
instances, the Company has also accessed alternative legal exchange mechanisms, to exchange Bolivars for U.S. dollars, at less favorable rates than the SITME rate, which
resulted in the Company recognizing $1.2 million of losses in selling, general and administration expenses included within its consolidated statement of income for the year
ended December 31, 2011.
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During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company continued accessing the SITME market in order to exchange its Bolivars to U.S. dollars and the daily and
monthly restrictions continues. In other instances, the Company recognized an aggregate of $4.8 million of foreign exchange losses as a result of exchanging Bolivars for U.S.
dollars using alternative legal exchange mechanisms that were approximately 43% less favorable than the 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar published SITME rate. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, the Company has exchanged 59.2 million Bolivars for $6.4 million U.S. dollars using these alternative legal exchange mechanisms. The Company
continues to remeasure its Bolivars at the published SITME rate given the limited availability of alternative exchange mechanisms and the uncertainty in the effective exchange
rate for alternative exchange mechanisms.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Herbalife Venezuela’s net monetary assets and liabilities denominated in Bolivars was approximately $82.9 million
and $26.8 million, respectively, and included approximately $99.2 million and $34.8 million, respectively, in Bolivar denominated cash and cash equivalents. These remeasured
amounts, including cash and cash equivalents, that are reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet using the published SITME rate of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar
may not accurately represent the amount of U.S. dollars that the Company could ultimately realize. While the Company continues to monitor the exchange mechanisms and
restrictions under SITME, and assess and monitor the current economic and political environment in Venezuela, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to exchange
Bolivars into U.S. dollars on a timely basis or at any particular exchange rate.

Consolidation of Herbalife Venezuela

The Company plans to continue its operation in Venezuela and to import products into Venezuela despite the foreign currency constraints described above. Herbalife
Venezuela will continue to apply for legal exchange mechanisms to convert its Bolivars to U.S. dollars. Despite the currency exchange restrictions in Venezuela, the Company
continues to control Herbalife Venezuela and its operations. The mere existence of the exchange restrictions discussed above does not in and of itself create a presumption that
this lack of exchangeability is other-than-temporary, nor does it create a presumption that an entity should deconsolidate its Venezuelan operations. Therefore, the Company
continues to consolidate Herbalife Venezuela in its consolidated financial statements for U.S. GAAP purposes. The majority of Herbalife Venezuela’s Bolivar denominated
assets and liabilities are currently being remeasured at the SITME rate.

Although Venezuela is an important market in the Company’s South and Central America Region, Herbalife Venezuela’s net sales represented approximately 4%, 2%,
and 2% of the Company’s consolidated net sales for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, and its total assets represented approximately 7% and
3% of the Company’s consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. See Note 14, Subsequent Events, for further discussion of Herbalife Venezuela.

3. Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of finished goods available for resale and can be categorized as follows (in millions):
 

   December 31,  
   2012    2011  
Weight Management, Targeted Nutrition and Energy, Sports and Fitness   $303.8    $223.5  
Outer Nutrition    17.5     11.1  
Literature, Promotional and Others    18.1     13.1  

    

Total   $339.4    $247.7  
    

The following are the major classes of inventory (in millions):
 

   December 31,  
   2012    2011  
Raw materials   $ 19.6    $ 21.7  
Work in process    1.9     2.5  
Finished goods    317.9     223.5  

    

Total   $339.4    $247.7  
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4. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in millions):
 

   December 31,  
   2012    2011  
Borrowings under the senior secured credit facility   $487.5    $202.0  
Capital leases    0.1     1.4  
Other debt    —       0.2  

    

   487.6     203.6  
Less: current portion    56.3     1.5  

    

Long-term portion   $431.3    $202.1  
    

On July 21, 2006, the Company entered into a $300.0 million senior secured credit facility, or the Prior Credit Facility, comprised of a $200.0 million term loan and a
$100.0 million revolving credit facility, with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders. In September 2007, the Company and its lenders amended the credit agreement,
increasing the amount of the revolving credit facility by an aggregate principal amount of $150.0 million to $250.0 million primarily to finance the increase in the Company’s
share repurchase program. See Note 8, Shareholders’ Equity, for further discussion of the share repurchase program and the share repurchase amounts during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010. The term loan bore interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.5%, or the base rate plus a margin of 0.50%. The revolving credit facility bore
interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.25%, or the base rate plus a margin of 0.25%.

On March 9, 2011, the Company entered into a $700.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility, or the Credit Facility, with a syndicate of financial institutions as
lenders and terminated its Prior Credit Facility. The Credit Facility has a five year maturity and expires on March 9, 2016. Based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio,
U.S. dollar borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin between 1.50% and 2.50% or the base rate plus the applicable margin
between 0.50% and 1.50%. The base rate under the Credit Facility represents the highest of the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%, one-month LIBOR plus 1.00%, and the prime
rate offered by Bank of America. The Company, based on its consolidated leverage ratio, pays a commitment fee between 0.25% and 0.50% per annum on the unused portion of
the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility also permits the Company to borrow limited amounts in Mexican Peso and Euro currencies based on variable rates.

In March 2011, the Company used $196.0 million in U.S. dollar borrowings under the Credit Facility to repay all amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Facility.
The Company incurred approximately $5.7 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Credit Facility. These debt issuance costs were recorded as deferred financing
costs on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and are being amortized over the term of the Credit Facility.

On July 26, 2012, the Company amended the Credit Facility to include a $500.0 million term loan with a syndicate of financial institutions as lenders, or the Term Loan.
The Term Loan is a part of the Credit Facility and is in addition to the Company’s current revolving credit facility. The Term Loan matures on March 9, 2016. The Company
will make regular scheduled payments for the Term Loan consisting of both principal and interest components. Based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, the Term
Loan bears interest at either LIBOR plus the applicable margin between 1.50% and 2.50% or the base rate plus the applicable margin between 0.50% and 1.50% which are the
same terms as the Company’s revolving credit facility.

In July 2012, the Company used all $500.0 million of the borrowings under the Term Loan to pay down amounts outstanding under the Company’s revolving credit
facility. The Company incurred approximately $4.5 million of debt issuance costs in connection with the Term Loan. The debt issuance costs are recorded as deferred financing
costs on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and will be amortized over the life of the Term Loan. On December 31, 2012 and 2011, the weighted average interest rate
for borrowings under the Credit Facility, which included borrowings under the Term Loan as of December 31, 2012, was 1.96% and 1.89%, respectively.

The Credit Facility requires the Company to comply with a leverage ratio and a coverage ratio. In addition, the Credit Facility contains customary covenants, including
covenants that limit or restrict the Company’s ability to incur liens, incur indebtedness, make investments, dispose of assets, make certain restricted payments, pay dividends,
repurchase its common shares, merge or consolidate and enter into certain transactions with affiliates. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company was compliant with its
debt covenants under the Credit Facility. The fair value of the Company’s Credit Facility, including the Term Loan, approximated its carrying value as of December 31, 2012,
due to its variable interest rate which reprices frequently and represents floating market rates. The fair value of the Credit Facility is determined by utilizing Level 2 inputs as
defined in Note 13, Fair Value Measurements, such as observable market interest rates and yield curves.
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During 2012, the Company borrowed an aggregate amount of $1,428.0 million and paid a total amount of $1,142.5 million under the Credit Facility. During 2011, the
Company borrowed $859.7 million and $54.0 million under the Credit Facility and Prior Credit Facility, respectively, and paid a total of $657.7 million and $228.9 million
under the Credit Facility and Prior Credit Facility, respectively. During 2010, the Company borrowed an aggregate amount of $427.0 million and paid a total amount of
$487.0 million under the Prior Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility was $487.5
million and $202.0 million, respectively. Of the $487.5 million U.S. dollar amount outstanding under the Credit Facility as of December 31, 2012, $487.5 million was
outstanding on the Term Loan and no amounts were outstanding on the revolving credit facility. There were no outstanding foreign currency borrowings as of December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011 under the Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2012, the aggregate annual maturities of the Credit Facility were expected to be $56.3 million for 2013, $81.2 million for 2014, $100.0 million for
2015, and $250.0 million for 2016.

Interest expense was $16.7 million, $9.9 million, and $9.7 million, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2011 included a $0.9 million write-off of unamortized deferred financing costs resulting from the extinguishment of the Prior Credit Facility, as discussed
above.

5. Lease obligations

The Company has warehouse, office, furniture, fixtures and equipment leases, which expire at various dates through 2023. Under the lease agreements, the Company is
also obligated to pay property taxes, insurance and maintenance costs.

Certain leases contain renewal options. Future minimum rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases and capital leases at December 31, 2012, were as
follows (in millions):
 

   Operating   Capital 
2013   $ 50.1    $ 0.1  
2014    42.0     —    
2015    34.8     —    
2016    21.8     —    
2017    14.3     —    
Thereafter    30.2     —    

    

Total   $ 193.2    $ 0.1  
    

Less: amounts included above representing interest      —    
    

Present value of net minimum lease payments     $ 0.1  
    

Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, was $52.5 million, $49.2 million, and $43.5 million, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment under capital leases are included in property, plant and equipment on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows (in
millions):
 

   December 31,  
   2012   2011  
Equipment   $ 7.7   $10.6  
Less: accumulated depreciation    (7.4)   (9.7) 

  

Total   $ 0.3   $ 0.9  
  

6. Employee compensation plans

The Company maintains a profit sharing plan pursuant to Sections 401(a) and (k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code. The plan is available
to substantially all employees who meet the length of service requirements. Prior to January 1, 2009, employees could elect to contribute between 2% to 17% of their
compensation, and the Company would make matching contributions in an amount equal to one dollar for each dollar of deferred earnings not to exceed 3% of the participants’
earnings. Participants are partially vested in the Company contributions after one year and fully vested after five years. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company amended its
profit sharing plan. Starting January 1, 2009, employees may elect to contribute up to 75% of their compensation; however, contributions are limited to a maximum annual
amount as set periodically by the Code. The Company will make matching contributions in an amount equal to one dollar for each dollar of deferred earnings up to the first 1%,
and then make matching contributions in an amount equal to 50% of one dollar for each dollar on the subsequent 5% of deferred earnings. The contributions become fully
vested after two years. The Company contributed $2.7 million, $2.5 million, and $2.3 million, to its profit sharing plan during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively.
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The Company has non-qualified deferred compensation plans for select groups of management: the Herbalife Management Deferred Compensation Plan and the
Herbalife Senior Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. The deferred compensation plans allow eligible employees to elect annually to defer up to 75% of their base annual
salary and up to 100% of their annual bonus for each calendar year, or the Annual Deferral Amount. The Company makes matching contributions on behalf of each participant
in the Senior Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. The Senior Executive Deferred Compensation Plan provides that the amount of the matching contributions is to be
determined by the Company at its discretion. In 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s matching contribution was 3.5% which aligns with the 401(k) retirement plan match.

Each participant in either of the non-qualified deferred compensation plans discussed above has, at all times, a fully vested and non-forfeitable interest in each year’s
contribution, including interest credited thereto, and in any Company matching contributions, if applicable. In connection with a participant’s election to defer an Annual
Deferral Amount, the participant may also elect to receive a short-term payout, equal to the Annual Deferral Amount plus interest. Such amount is payable in two or more years
from the first day of the year in which the Annual Deferral Amount is actually deferred.

The total expense for the two non-qualified deferred compensation plans, excluding participant contributions, was $2.9 million, $0.2 million, and $2.1 million for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The total long-term deferred compensation liability under the two deferred compensation plans was $29.5
million and $23.7 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The deferred compensation plans are unfunded and their benefits are paid from the general assets of the Company, except that the Company has contributed to a “rabbi
trust” whose assets will be used to pay the benefits if the Company remains solvent, but can be reached by the Company’s creditors if the Company becomes insolvent. The
value of the assets in the “rabbi trust” was $24.3 million and $20.5 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company has employees in international countries that are covered by various deferred compensation plans. These plans are administered based upon the legal
requirements in the countries in which they are established. The Company’s compensation expenses relating to these plans were $7.2 million, $4.9 million and $3.4 million for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

7. Contingencies

The Company is from time to time engaged in routine litigation. The Company regularly reviews all pending litigation matters in which it is involved and establishes
reserves deemed appropriate by management for these litigation matters when a probable loss estimate can be made.

As a marketer of dietary and nutritional supplements, and other products that are ingested by consumers or applied to their bodies, the Company has been and is currently
subjected to various product liability claims. The effects of these claims to date have not been material to the Company, and the reasonably possible range of exposure on
currently existing claims is not material to the Company. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to the allegations contained in the lawsuits. The Company
currently maintains product liability insurance with an annual deductible of $10 million.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries have been subject to tax audits by governmental authorities in their respective countries. In certain of these tax audits,
governmental authorities are proposing that significant amounts of additional taxes and related interest and penalties are due. The Company and its tax advisors believe that
there are substantial defenses to their allegations that additional taxes are owed, and the Company is vigorously contesting the additional proposed taxes and related charges. On
May 7, 2010, the Company received an assessment from the Mexican Tax Administration Service in an amount equivalent to approximately $88 million, translated at the period
ended spot rate, for various items, the majority of which was Value Added Tax, or VAT, allegedly owed on certain of the Company’s products imported into Mexico during the
years 2005 and 2006. This assessment is subject to interest and inflationary adjustments. On July 8, 2010, the Company initiated a formal administrative appeal process. On
May 13, 2011, the Mexican Tax Administration Service issued a resolution on the Company’s administrative appeal. The resolution nullified the assessment. Since the Mexican
Tax Administration Service can further review the tax audit findings and re-issue some or all of the original assessment, the Company commenced litigation in the Tax Court of
Mexico in August 2011 to dispute the assertions made by the Mexican Tax Administration Service in the case. The Mexican Tax Administration Service filed a response which
was received by the Company in April 2012. The response challenged the assertions that the Company made in its August 2011 filing.

The Mexican Tax Administration Service commenced audits of the Company’s Mexican subsidiaries for the period from January to September 2007 and the 2011 year.
On October 19, 2012, the Mexican Tax Administration Service issued a preliminary audit report for the January to September 2007 period which primarily focused on VAT
allegations. The final audit report for the January to September 2007 period was issued on December 11, 2012 and is substantially similar to the preliminary report. The
Company has not yet received any assessment related to this final audit report. The Mexican Tax Authority generally issues an assessment within six months of the final audit
report.
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Prior to the nullification of the assessment relating to the 2005 and 2006 years the Company entered into agreements with certain insurance companies to allow for the
potential issuance of surety bonds in support of its appeal of the assessment. Such surety bonds, if issued, would not affect the availability of the Company’s Credit Facility.
These arrangements with the insurance companies remain in place in the event that the assessment is re-issued. The Company has not recognized a loss as the Company, based
on its analysis and guidance from its advisors, does not believe a loss would be probable if the assessment is re-issued or if any additional assessment is issued. Further, the
Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate a possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome if the assessment was re-issued or any
additional assessments were to be issued for these or other periods. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses if the assessment is re-issued or would have
meritorious defenses if any additional assessment is issued.

The Company received an assessment from the Spanish Tax Authority in an amount equivalent to approximately $4.2 million translated at the period ended spot rate, for
withholding taxes, interest and penalties related to payments to Spanish distributors for the 2003-2004 period. The Company appealed the assessment to the National Appellate
Court (Audiencia Nacional). Based on the ruling of the National Appellate Court, substantially all of the assessment was nullified. The Company began withholding taxes on
payments to Spanish distributors for the 2012 year. If the Spanish Tax Authority raises the same issue in later years, the Company believes that it has meritorious defenses.
The Company has not recognized a loss as the Company does not believe a loss is probable. The Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate a possible loss or range of
loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome if additional assessments for other periods were to be issued.

The Company received a tax assessment in September 2009, from the Federal Revenue Office of Brazil in an amount equivalent to approximately $4.2 million U.S.
dollars translated at the period ended spot rate, related to withholding/contributions based on payments to the Company’s distributors during 2004. The Company has appealed
this tax assessment to the Administrative Council of Tax Appeals (2nd level administrative appeal) as it believes it has meritorious defenses and it has not recognized a
loss as the Company does not believe a loss is probable. The Company is currently unable to reasonably estimate the amount of the loss that may result from an unfavorable
outcome if additional assessments for other periods were to be issued.

The Company received an order from a Rome Labor Court on behalf of the Social Security Authority on March 1, 2012, to pay an amount equivalent to approximately
$7.1 million U.S. dollars translated at the period ended spot rate, for social contributions, interest and penalties related to payments to Italian distributors from 2002 through
2005. The Company has filed a writ with the Rome Labor Court appealing the order and the Social Security Authority filed a response brief. At a hearing on July 12, 2012, the
Social Security Authority announced its intention to withdraw their claim as well as the order to pay the assessment. A hearing on this matter was originally scheduled for
October 23, 2012 but it has been postponed and will be rescheduled.

These matters may take several years to resolve. While the Company believes it has meritorious defenses, it cannot be sure of their ultimate resolution. Although the
Company has reserved amounts for certain matters that the Company believes represent the most likely outcome of the resolution of these related disputes, if the Company is
incorrect in the assessment, the Company may have to record additional expenses, when it becomes probable that an increased potential liability is warranted.

8. Shareholders’ equity

The Company had 106.9 million, 115.8 million, and 117.8 million common shares outstanding at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. In December 2004,
the Company authorized 7.5 million preference shares at $0.002 par value. The 7.5 million authorized preference shares remained unissued as of December 31, 2012.
Preference shares may be issued from time to time in one or more series, each of such series to have such voting powers (full or limited or without voting powers), designations,
preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights and qualifications, limitations or restrictions as determined by the Company’s board of directors.

Dividends

The declaration of future dividends is subject to the discretion of the Company’s board of directors and will depend upon various factors, including its earnings, financial
condition, Herbalife Ltd.’s available distributable reserves under Cayman Islands law, restrictions imposed by the Credit Facility and the terms of any other indebtedness that
may be outstanding, cash requirements, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by its board of directors. The Credit Facility permits payments of dividends as long
as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not exceeded.

During the second quarter of 2007, the Company’s board of directors adopted a regular quarterly cash dividend program. The Company’s board of directors authorized a
$0.10 per common share cash dividend each quarter from the adoption of the program through the second quarter of 2010. On August 2, 2010, the Company announced that its
board of directors approved an increase in the quarterly cash dividend to $0.13 per common share, an increase of $0.03 per common share from prior quarters. On May 2,
2011, the Company announced that its board of directors approved an increase in the quarterly cash dividend to $0.20 per common share, an increase of $0.07 per common
share from prior quarters. On February 21, 2012, the Company announced that its board of directors approved an increase in the quarterly cash dividend to $0.30 per common
share, an increase of $0.10 per common share from prior quarters. The aggregate amount of dividends paid and declared during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010, was approximately $135.1 million, $85.5 million, and $53.7 million, respectively.
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Share Repurchases

On April 17, 2009, the Company’s share repurchase program adopted on April 18, 2007 expired pursuant to its terms. On April 30, 2009, the Company announced that
its board of directors authorized a new program for the Company to repurchase up to $300 million of Herbalife common shares during the following two years, at such times
and prices as determined by the Company’s management as market conditions warrant. On May 3, 2010, the Company’s board of directors approved an increase to this share
repurchase program from $300 million to $1 billion. In addition, the Company’s board of directors approved the extension of the expiration date of this share repurchase
program from April 2011 to December 2014.

On May 2, 2012, the Company entered into an agreement with Merrill Lynch International to repurchase $427.9 million of its common shares, which was the remaining
authorized capacity under this share repurchase program at that time. Under the terms of the repurchase agreement, the Company paid $427.9 million on May 4, 2012 and the
agreement expired on July 27, 2012. The Company received 5.3 million and 3.9 million of its common shares under the repurchase agreement during June 2012 and July 2012,
respectively. The total number of common shares repurchased under the agreement was determined generally upon a discounted volume-weighted average share price of the
Company’s common shares over the course of the agreement. On July 27, 2012, the Company completed this share repurchase program upon the final delivery of common
shares repurchased under the repurchase agreement.

On July 30, 2012, the Company announced that its board of directors authorized a new $1 billion share repurchase program that will expire on June 30, 2017. This share
repurchase program allows the Company to repurchase its common shares, at such times and prices as determined by the Company’s management as market conditions warrant,
and to the extent Herbalife Ltd.’s distributable reserves are available under Cayman Islands law. The Credit Facility permits the Company to repurchase its common shares as
long as no default or event of default exists and the consolidated leverage ratio specified in the Credit Facility is not exceeded. As of December 31, 2012, the remaining
authorized capacity under this share repurchase program was $950.0 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company repurchased 11.0 million of its common shares through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of
approximately $527.8 million, or an average cost of $47.78 per share. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company repurchased 5.5 million of its common shares
through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of approximately $298.8 million, or an average cost of $54.27 per share. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the
Company repurchased 5.7 million of its common shares through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of approximately $150.1 million, or an average cost of $26.13 per
share.

The Company reflects the aggregate purchase price of the common shares repurchased as a reduction to shareholders’ equity. The Company allocated the purchase price
of the repurchased shares as a reduction to retained earnings, common shares and additional paid-in-capital.

The number of shares issued upon vesting or exercise for certain restricted stock units and SARs granted, pursuant to the Company’s share-based compensation plans, is
net of the minimum statutory withholding requirements that the Company pays on behalf of its employees. Although shares withheld are not issued, they are treated as common
share repurchases in the Company’s consolidated financial statements, as they reduce the number of shares that would have been issued upon vesting. These shares do not count
against the authorized capacity under the share repurchase program described above.

9. Share-Based Compensation

The Company has five share-based compensation plans, the WH Holdings (Cayman Islands) Ltd. Stock Incentive Plan, or the Management Plan, the WH Holdings
(Cayman Islands) Ltd. Independent Directors Stock Incentive Plan, or the Independent Directors Plan, the Herbalife Ltd. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, or the 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan, the Amended and Restated Herbalife Ltd. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, or the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, and the Amended and Restated Herbalife Ltd.
Independent Directors Deferred Compensation and Stock Unit Plan, or the Independent Director Stock Unit Plan. The Management Plan provided for the grant of options to
purchase common shares of Herbalife to members of the Company’s management. The Independent Directors Plan provided for the grant of options to purchase common shares
of Herbalife to the Company’s independent directors. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan replaced the Management Plan and the Independent Directors Plan and after the adoption
thereof, no additional awards were made under either the Management Plan or the Independent Directors Plan. However, the shares remaining available for issuance under these
plans were absorbed by and became available for issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2005 Stock Incentive Plan replaced the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan and after
the adoption thereof, no additional awards were made under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The terms of the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan are substantially similar to the terms of
the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2005 Stock Incentive Plan authorizes the issuance of 14,400,000 common shares pursuant to awards granted under the plan, plus any shares
that remained available for issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan at the time of the adoption of the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. The purpose of the Independent Directors
Stock Unit Plan is to facilitate equity ownership in the Company by its independent directors through the award of stock units. At December 31, 2012 an aggregate of
approximately 3.1 million common shares remain available for future issuance under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and the Independent Directors Stock Unit Plan.
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The Company’s share-based compensation plans provide for grants of stock options, SARs, and stock units, which are collectively referred to herein as awards. Stock
options typically vest quarterly over a five-year period or less, beginning on the grant date. Certain SARs vest quarterly over a five-year period beginning on the grant date.
Other SARs vest annually over a three-year period. The contractual term of service condition stock options and SARs is generally ten years. Stock unit awards under the 2005
Incentive Plan, or Incentive Plan Stock Units, vest annually over a three year period which is equal to the contractual term. Stock units awarded under the Independent Directors
Stock Unit Plan, or Independent Director Stock Units, vest at a rate of 25% on each January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15. In January 2009, the Company moved to
granting SARs instead of stock units for its independent directors. In March 2008, the Company granted stock unit awards to its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, which
vest over a four-year period at a rate of 30% during each of the first three years and 10% during the fourth year. In February 2009, the Company granted stock units and SARs
to certain employees subject to continued service, one-third of which vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant, one-third of which vest on the fourth anniversary of the
date of grant, and the remaining one-third of which vest on the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. In 2010, the Company granted other stock units to certain key employees
subject to continued service, one half of which vest on the first anniversary of the date of the grant, and the remaining half of which vest on the second anniversary of the date of
the grant.

Awards can be subject to the following: market and service conditions, or market condition awards; market, service and performance conditions, or market and
performance condition awards; or be subject only to continued service with the Company, or service condition awards. All awards granted by the Company are market condition
awards, market and performance condition awards, or service condition awards. Unless otherwise determined at the time of grant, the value of each stock unit shall be equal to
one common share of Herbalife. The Company’s stock compensation awards outstanding as of December 31, 2012 include stock options, SARs, and stock units.

In March 2008, the Company granted SARs with market conditions to its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, which fully vested during 2012. These SARs vested at
the end of four years subject to his continued employment through that date and the achievement of certain conditions related to the market value of the Company’s common
shares. The market conditions included targets for stock price appreciation of both a 10% and a 15% compound annual growth rate. The fair value of these SARs was
determined on the date of the grant using the Monte Carlo lattice model.

In August 2011, the Company granted SARs with market and performance conditions to its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. These awards will vest on
December 31, 2014, subject to his continued employment through that date, the Company’s stock price appreciating and exceeding a targeted price, and the Company’s
achievement of certain volume point performance targets. The fair value of these SARs was determined on the date of the grant using the Monte Carlo lattice model.

The Company records compensation expense over the requisite service period which is equal to the vesting period. For awards granted on or after January 1, 2006, the
compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting term. Stock-based compensation expense is included in selling, general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of income. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, share-based compensation expense, relating to service condition awards,
amounted to $22.7 million, $19.2 million, and $20.0 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, share-based compensation expense, relating
to market condition awards, amounted to $0.7 million, $2.9 million, and $3.0 million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, share-based compensation
expense, relating to market and performance condition awards, amounted to $4.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and
2010, the related income tax benefits recognized in earnings for all awards amounted to $9.5 million, $7.5 million, and $7.4 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested service condition stock awards was $41.2 million and the related weighted-
average period over which it is expected to be recognized is approximately 1.4 years. As of December 31, 2012, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
market and performance condition awards was $9.0 million and the related weighted-average period over which it is expected to be recognized is approximately 2.0 years.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, excess tax benefits of $29.7 million, $26.2 million, and $9.3 million, respectively, were generated and
recognized from exercises of awards.

Stock units are valued at the market value on the date of grant. The fair value of service condition SARs are estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-
Merton option-pricing model. The fair value of SARs with market conditions are estimated on the date of grant using the Monte Carlo lattice model. Historically, the expected
term of the SARs and stock options was based on the simple average of the average vesting period and the life of the award, or the simplified method. During the fourth quarter
of 2011, the Company began calculating the expected term of its SARs based on historical data as more historical information was available. All groups of employees have
been determined to have similar historical exercise patterns for valuation purposes. The expected volatility of the SARs and stock options are based upon the historical volatility
of the Company’s common shares and it is also validated against the volatility rates of a peer group of companies. The risk free interest rate is based on the implied yield on a
U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issue with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the SARs and stock options. The expected dividend yield assumption is based on the
Company’s historical and expected amount of dividend payouts.
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There were no stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010. The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions
used in the calculation of the fair value for service condition awards for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010:
 
   SARs   Independent Director’s SARs  
   Year Ended December 31,   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010   2012   2011   2010  
Expected volatility    48.4%   46.6%   48.3%   52.1%   49.4%   48.2% 
Dividends yield    2.7%   1.5%   1.8%   2.7%   1.5%   1.7% 
Expected term    5.3 years    6.2 years    6.4 years    3.8 years    3.8 years    3.8 years  
Risk-free interest rate    0.7%   1.9%   2.4%   0.4%   1.0%   1.3% 

There were no market condition awards or market and performance condition awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010. For market and
performance condition awards granted during the year ended December 31, 2011, the following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used in the calculation of
the fair value:
 

   SARs  

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011  
Expected volatility    44.0% 
Dividends yield    1.4% 
Expected term    5.2 years  
Risk-free interest rate    1.2% 

The following tables summarize the activity under all share-based compensation plans, which includes all stock awards, for the year ended December 31, 2012:
 

Stock Options & SARs   Awards   

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual Term   

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value(1)  

   (In thousands)          (In millions) 
Outstanding at December 31, 2011(2) (3)    11,169   $ 22.54     5.5 years    $ 332.8  
Granted    2,109   $ 45.10      
Exercised    (1,862)  $ 10.23      
Forfeited    (83)  $ 41.54      

      

Outstanding at December 31, 2012(2) (3)    11,333   $ 28.62     5.9 years    $ 119.1  
      

Exercisable at December 31, 2012(3)    5,751   $ 18.29     3.9 years    $ 89.8  
      

 
(1) The intrinsic value is the amount by which the current market value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price of the stock award.
(2) Includes 0.9 million SARs with market and performance conditions.
(3) Includes 1.5 million SARs with market conditions.

The weighted-average grant date fair value of service condition SARs granted during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $15.36, $21.23, and
$9.32, respectively. The weighted-average grant date fair value of SARs with market and performance conditions granted during the year ended December 31, 2011 was $17.37.
The total intrinsic value of service condition stock options and SARs exercised during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $98.6 million, $133.8 million,
and $63.8 million, respectively. There were no market condition, or market condition and performance condition SARs exercised during the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011, and 2010.
 

Incentive Plan and Independent Directors Stock Units   Shares   

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value  

   (In thousands)    
Outstanding and nonvested at December 31, 2011    717.6   $ 12.25  
Granted    —     $ —    
Vested    (395.7)  $ 12.71  
Forfeited    (0.3)  $ 6.82  

  

Outstanding and nonvested at December 31, 2012    321.6   $ 11.70  
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The total vesting date fair value of stock units which vested during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was $24.3 million, $19.8 million, and $10.3
million, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

During 2007, the Company adopted a qualified employee stock purchase plan, or ESPP, which was implemented during the first quarter of 2008. In connection with the
adoption of the ESPP, the Company has reserved for issuance a total of 2 million common shares. At December 31, 2012, approximately 1.8 million common shares remain
available for future issuance. Under the terms of the ESPP, rights to purchase common shares may be granted to eligible qualified employees subject to certain restrictions. The
ESPP enables the Company’s eligible employees, through payroll withholdings, to purchase a limited number of common shares at 85% of the fair market value of a common
share at the purchase date. Purchases are made on a quarterly basis.

10. Segment Information

The Company is a nutrition company that sells a wide range of weight management products, nutritional supplements and personal care products within one industry
segment as defined under FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting. The Company’s products are manufactured by third party providers and by the Company in its Suzhou,
China facility and in its Lake Forest, California facility, and then are sold to independent distributors who both consume and sell Herbalife products to retail consumers or other
distributors. Revenues reflect sales of products by the Company to its distributors and are categorized based on geographic location.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company sold products in 88 countries throughout the world and was organized and managed by geographic regions. The Company
aggregates its operating segments, excluding China, into one reporting segment, or the Primary Reporting Segment, as management believes that the Company’s operating
segments have similar operating characteristics and similar long term operating performance. In making this determination, management believes that the operating segments
are similar in the nature of the products sold, the product acquisition process, the types of customers to whom products are sold, the methods used to distribute the products, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. China has been identified as a separate reporting segment as it does not meet the criteria for aggregation. The operating information
for the Primary Reporting Segment and China, and sales by product line are as follows:
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010  
   (In millions)  
Net Sales:       
Primary Reporting Segment:       

United States   $ 816.9    $ 676.9    $ 595.4  
Mexico    496.1     436.9     334.0  
South Korea    421.4     343.5     208.9  
Others    2,059.4     1,786.4     1,411.5  

      

Total Primary Reporting Segment    3,793.8     3,243.7     2,549.8  
China    278.5     210.8     184.4  

      

Total Net Sales   $4,072.3    $3,454.5    $2,734.2  
      

Contribution Margin(1):       
Primary Reporting Segment:       

United States   $ 359.5    $ 286.3    $ 257.0  
Mexico    205.6     191.1     131.7  
South Korea    199.4     163.1     103.0  
Others    906.5     810.0     618.5  

      

Total Primary Reporting Segment    1,671.0     1,450.5     1,110.2  
China(2)    250.1     186.4     165.0  

      

Total Contribution Margin   $1,921.1    $1,636.9    $1,275.2  
Selling, general and administrative expense (2)    1,259.7     1,074.6     887.7  
Interest expense    16.7     9.9     9.7  
Interest income    6.2     7.4     2.3  

      

Income before income taxes    650.9     559.8     380.1  
Income taxes    186.9     144.8     87.2  

      

Net Income   $ 464.0    $ 415.0    $ 292.9  
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   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010  
   (In millions)  
Capital Expenditures:       
United States   $ 81.6    $ 60.4    $ 51.0  
Mexico    2.8     3.5     2.5  
South Korea    4.1     2.1     0.4  
China    15.4     6.6     3.1  
Others    18.9     18.3     11.1  

      

Total Capital Expenditures   $ 122.8    $ 90.9    $ 68.1  
      

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010  
   (In millions)  
Net sales by product line:       
Weight Management   $2,554.9    $2,158.7    $1,698.9  
Targeted Nutrition    944.8     789.6     629.2  
Energy, Sports & Fitness    209.4     169.8     121.3  
Outer Nutrition    146.3     147.8     127.5  
Literature, Promotional and Other(3)    216.9     188.6     157.3  

      

Total Net Sales   $4,072.3    $3,454.5    $2,734.2  
      

Net sales by geographic region:       
North America   $ 841.2    $ 698.6    $ 614.1  
Mexico    496.1     436.9     334.0  
South & Central America    688.8     554.4     390.4  
EMEA    627.8     615.2     527.8  
Asia Pacific    1,139.9     938.6     683.5  
China    278.5     210.8     184.4  

      

Total Net Sales   $4,072.3    $3,454.5    $2,734.2  
      

 
(1) Contribution margin consists of net sales less cost of sales and royalty overrides. See Part II, Item 7 —Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations in this Amendment to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description of net sales, cost of sales and royalty overrides.
(2) Compensation to China sales employees and service fees to China independent service providers totaling $123.5 million, $96.8 million, and $87.3 million for the years

ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses while distributor compensation for all other countries
is included in contribution margin.

(3) Product buybacks and returns in all product categories are included in the literature, promotional and other category.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, total assets for the Company’s Primary Reporting Segment were $1,607.2 million and $1,374.3 million, respectively. Total assets for
the China segment were $116.9 million and $88.8 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, goodwill allocated to the Company’s reporting units included in the Company’s Primary Reporting Segment was $102.4 million for
both periods. Goodwill allocated to the China segment was $3.1 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

As of December 31, 2012, the net property, plant and equipment located in the U.S. and in all foreign countries was $170.9 million and $71.9 million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2011, the net property, plant and equipment located in the U.S. and in all foreign countries was $144.2 million and $49.5 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, the deferred tax assets related to the U.S. and all foreign countries was $68.4 million and $51.4 million, respectively. As of December 31,
2011, the deferred tax assets related to the U.S. and all foreign countries was $67.3 million and $46.2 million, respectively.

The majority of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries designate their local currencies as their functional currency. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the total amount of
cash held by foreign subsidiaries reported in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet was $321.3 million and $246.0 million, respectively, of which $6.9 million and
$9.2 million, respectively, was maintained or invested in U.S. dollars.
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11. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Interest Rate Risk Management

The Company engages in an interest rate hedging strategy for which the hedged transactions are forecasted interest payments on the Company’s Credit Facility. The
hedged risk is the variability of forecasted interest rate cash flows, where the hedging strategy involves the purchase of interest rate swaps. For the outstanding cash flow hedges
on interest rate exposures at December 31, 2012, the maximum length of time over which the Company is hedging certain of these exposures is approximately seven months.

During August 2009, the Company entered into four interest rate swap agreements with an effective date of December 31, 2009. The agreements collectively provide for
the Company to pay interest for less than a four-year period at a weighted average fixed rate of 2.78% on notional amounts aggregating to $140.0 million while receiving
interest for the same period at the one month LIBOR rate on the same notional amounts. These agreements will expire in July 2013. These swaps at inception were designated as
cash flow hedges against the variability in the LIBOR interest rate on the Company’s term loan under the Prior Credit Facility or against the variability in the LIBOR interest
rate on the replacement debt. The Company’s term loan under the Prior Credit Facility was terminated in March 2011 and refinanced with the Credit Facility as discussed
further in Note 4, Long-Term Debt. The Company’s swaps remain effective and continue to be designated as cash flow hedges against the variability in certain LIBOR interest
rate borrowings under the Credit Facility at LIBOR plus 1.50% to 2.50%, fixing the Company’s weighted average effective rate on the notional amounts at 4.28% to 5.28%.
There was no hedge ineffectiveness recorded as result of this refinancing event.

The Company assesses hedge effectiveness and measures hedge ineffectiveness at least quarterly. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the ineffective
portion relating to these hedges was immaterial and the hedges remained effective as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. Consequently, all changes in the fair value
of the derivatives are deferred and recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) until the related forecasted transactions are recognized in the consolidated statements of
income. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements are based on third-party quotes. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded the interest rate swaps as
liabilities at their fair value of $2.0 million and $5.1 million, respectively.

The table below describes the interest rate swaps in aggregate, and the fair value of the liabilities that were outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:
 

Interest Rate   

Aggregate
Notional
Amounts    

Average
Swap
Rate   

Aggregate
Fair

Value   
Maturity

Dates  
   (In millions)      (In millions)    
At December 31, 2012       
Interest Rate Swaps   $ 140.0     2.78%  $ (2.0)   July 2013  
At December 31, 2011       
Interest Rate Swaps   $ 140.0     2.78%  $ (5.1)   July 2013  

Foreign Currency Instruments

The Company also designates certain foreign currency derivatives, such as certain foreign currency forward and option contracts, as freestanding derivatives for which
hedge accounting does not apply. The changes in the fair market value of these freestanding derivatives are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the
Company’s consolidated statements of income. The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign-currency-denominated intercompany transactions and to
partially mitigate the impact of foreign currency fluctuations. The Company also uses foreign currency option contracts to partially mitigate the impact of foreign currency
fluctuations. The fair value of the forward and option contracts are based on third-party bank quotes. The Company’s foreign currency derivative contracts are generally
executed on a monthly basis.

The Company designates as cash-flow hedges those foreign currency forward contracts it entered into to hedge forecasted inventory purchases and intercompany
management fees that are subject to foreign currency exposures. Forward contracts are used to hedge forecasted inventory purchases over specific months. Changes in the fair
value of these forward contracts, excluding forward points, designated as cash-flow hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) within shareholders’ equity, and are recognized in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of income during the period which approximates the time the hedged
inventory is sold. The Company also hedges forecasted intercompany management fees over specific months. These contracts allow the Company to sell Euros in exchange for
U.S. dollars at specified contract rates. Changes in the fair value of these forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges are recorded as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders’ equity, and are recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income during the
period when the hedged item and underlying transaction affect earnings.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the aggregate notional amounts of all foreign currency contracts outstanding designated as cash flow hedges were approximately
$256.9 million and $64.4 million, respectively. At December 31, 2012, these outstanding contracts were expected to mature over the next twelve months. The Company’s
derivative financial instruments are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value based on third-party quotes. As of December 31, 2012, the Company recorded
assets at fair value of $0.5 million and liabilities at fair value of $3.3 million relating to all outstanding foreign currency contracts designated as cash-flow hedges. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded assets at fair value of $4.4 million relating to all outstanding foreign currency contracts designated as cash-flow hedges. The
Company assesses hedge effectiveness and measures hedge ineffectiveness at least quarterly. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the ineffective portion
relating to these hedges was immaterial and the hedges remained effective as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the majority of the Company’s outstanding foreign currency forward contracts had maturity dates of less than twelve months and
fifteen months, respectively, with the majority of freestanding derivatives expiring within one month as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. There were no foreign currency option
contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The table below describes all foreign currency forward contracts that were outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:
 

Foreign Currency   
Average

Contract Rate   
Original

Notional Amount   
Fair Value
Gain (Loss)  

       (In millions)    (In millions) 
At December 31, 2012       
Buy Brazilian real sell U.S. dollar    2.08    $ 12.5    $ 0.2  
Buy Chinese yuan sell U.S. dollar    6.29     1.3     —    
Buy Euro sell Argentine peso    6.66     3.0     —    
Buy Euro sell Australian dollar    1.27     1.4     —    
Buy Euro sell Chilean peso    633.00     1.5     —    
Buy Euro sell Indonesian rupiah    12,935.00     9.7     —    
Buy Euro sell Mexican peso    17.18     143.7     0.3  
Buy Euro sell Malaysian ringgit    4.06     15.2     (0.1) 
Buy Euro sell Peruvian nuevo sol    3.41     2.0     —    
Buy Euro sell U.S. dollar    1.33     82.1     (0.4) 
Buy British pound sell Euro    0.82     2.4     —    
Buy Japanese yen sell U.S. dollar    85.88     9.3     (0.1) 
Buy South Korean won sell U.S. dollar    1,077.18     52.5     0.2  
Buy Malaysian ringgit sell Euro    4.07     0.8     —    
Buy Malaysian ringgit sell U.S. dollar    3.08     21.7     0.1  
Buy U.S. dollar sell Brazilian real    2.05     12.6     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Colombian peso    1,800.10     11.7     (0.2) 
Buy U.S. dollar sell Euro    1.30     174.4     (2.9) 
Buy U.S. dollar sell British pound    1.62     16.2     (0.1) 
Buy U.S. dollar sell South Korean won    1,089.08     6.3     (0.1) 
Buy U.S. dollar sell Mexican peso    13.12     25.4     (0.3) 

Buy U.S. dollar sell Philippine peso    40.99     2.9     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell New Taiwan dollar    28.98     0.8     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell South African rand    8.54     0.7     —    

      

Total forward contracts     $ 610.1    $ (3.4) 
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Foreign
Currency   

Average
Contract Rate   

Original
Notional Amount   

Fair Value
Gain (Loss)  

       (In millions)    (In millions) 
At December 31, 2011       
Buy Chinese yuan sell U.S. dollar    6.34    $ 2.5    $ —    
Buy Euro sell Argentine peso    5.70     3.0     —    
Buy Euro sell Australian dollar    1.30     0.8     —    
Buy Euro sell British pound    0.83     0.8     —    
Buy Euro sell Hong Kong dollar    10.15     0.9     —    
Buy Euro sell Indonesian rupiah    11,985.00     2.2     —    
Buy Euro sell Indian rupee    69.21     2.3     —    
Buy Euro sell Mexican peso    18.14     14.9     —    
Buy Euro sell Malaysian ringgit    4.17     6.0     (0.1) 
Buy Euro sell Russian ruble    41.74     9.2     —    
Buy Euro sell U.S. dollar    1.30     44.8     (0.1) 
Buy Euro sell South African rand    10.89     0.6     —    
Buy British pound sell Euro    0.84     0.8     —    
Buy Japanese yen sell U.S. dollar    77.85     7.0     0.1  
Buy South Korean won sell U.S. dollar    1,161.81     32.2     (0.2) 
Buy Malaysian ringgit sell Euro    4.12     0.8     —    
Buy Malaysian ringgit sell U.S. dollar    3.18     19.0     —    
Buy Peruvian nuevo sol sell U.S. dollar    2.70     6.7     —    
Buy Swedish kronor sell Euro    8.98     1.0     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Argentine peso    4.37     0.8     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Colombian peso    1,943.00     5.1     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Euro    1.37     81.4     4.4  
Buy U.S. dollar sell British pound    1.55     24.1     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Indian rupee    53.30     1.0     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell South Korean won    1,156.38     7.5     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Mexican peso    13.89     37.3     0.4  
Buy U.S. dollar sell Philippine peso    43.79     3.2     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Russian ruble    31.86     1.3     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Singapore dollar    1.28     0.3     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell Thai baht    31.43     0.2     —    
Buy U.S. dollar sell South African rand    8.33     1.1     —    

      

Total forward contracts     $ 318.8    $ 4.5  
      

The following tables summarize the derivative activity during the year ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 relating to all the Company’s derivatives.

Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments

The following table summarizes gains (losses) relating to derivative instruments recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) during the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010:
 

   

Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized
in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the Year Ended  

   
December 31,

2012   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
   (In millions)  
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:     
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to inventory and intercompany

management fee hedges   $ (3.3)  $ 4.1   $ 5.6  
Interest rate swaps   $ (0.6)  $ (2.1)  $ (7.5) 

As of December 31, 2012, the estimated amount of existing net losses related to cash flow hedges recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) that are
expected to be reclassified into earnings over the next twelve months was $5.3 million.
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The following table summarizes gains (losses) relating to derivative instruments recorded to income during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010:
 

   

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income
For the Year Ended   

Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Income   

December 31,
2012   

December 31,
2011    

December 31,
2010   

   (In millions)    
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:       
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to inventory hedges

and intercompany management fee hedges(1)
  $ (1.8)  $ —      $ —     

Selling, general
and administrative
expenses

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:       
Foreign exchange currency contracts

  $ (10.0)  $ 2.7    $ (9.4)  
Selling, general and
administrative expenses

 
(1) For foreign exchange contracts designated as hedging instruments, the amounts recognized in income (loss) represent the amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge

effectiveness. There were no ineffective amounts reported for derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

The following table summarizes gains (losses) relating to derivative instruments reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss into income during the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010:
 

   

Amount of Gain (Loss) Reclassified
from Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Loss into Income   

Location of Gain
(Loss) Reclassified

from Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss into

Income 
(effective portion)

   For the Year Ended   

   
December 31,

2012   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010   
   (In millions)    
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:      
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to inventory

hedges   $ 0.1   $ (0.3)  $ 1.8   
Cost of sales

Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to intercompany
management fee hedges

  $ 4.5   $ (1.8)  $ 6.6   

Selling, general
and administrative
expenses

Interest rate contracts   $ (3.6)  $ (3.6)  $ (3.6)  Interest expense, net

The Company reports its derivatives at fair value as either assets or liabilities within its consolidated balance sheet. See Note 13, Fair Value Measurements, for
information on derivative fair values and their consolidated balance sheet location as of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011.

12. Income Taxes

The components of income before income taxes are as follows (in millions):
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012    2011    2010  
Domestic   $172.3    $143.9    $ 69.5  
Foreign    478.6     415.9     310.6  

      

Total   $650.9    $559.8    $380.1  
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Income taxes are as follows (in millions):
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010  
Current:     
Foreign   $104.0   $103.3   $ 84.9  
Federal    82.1    55.3    27.4  
State    8.6    7.4    8.2  

  

   194.7    166.0    120.5  
  

Deferred:     
Foreign    (6.3)   (11.8)   (3.2) 
Federal    (2.7)   (8.7)   (29.9) 
State    1.2    (0.7)   (0.2) 

  

   (7.8)   (21.2)   (33.3) 
  

  $186.9   $144.8   $ 87.2  
  

The Company recognizes excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation to shareholders’ equity only when realized. When assessing whether excess tax
benefits relating to share-based compensation have been realized, the Company follows the with-and-without approach. Under this approach, excess tax benefits related to
share-based compensation are not deemed to be realized until after the utilization of all other tax benefits available to the Company, which are also subject to applicable
limitations. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had $25.9 million and $20.6 million, respectively, of unrealized excess tax benefits. Of the $25.9 million of
excess tax benefits at December 31, 2012, $17.7 million relates to foreign tax credits generated and carried forward on US federal income tax returns. If unused, tax credit
carryforwards of $6.3 million will expire in 2020, $4.6 million will expire in 2021, and $6.8 million will expire in 2022.

Venezuela has experienced cumulative inflation of at least 100% during the three year period ended December 31, 2009. Therefore, as of January 1, 2010 the Bolivar is
hyperinflationary for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a result, because Herbalife Venezuela is considered a dual incorporated entity, it is now required to account for its
operations using the Dollar Approximate Separate Transactions Method of accounting, or DASTM. The transitional impact of DASTM resulted in a deferred income tax benefit
of approximately $14.5 million recorded during the first quarter of 2010 which is included within the Company’s consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2010. See Note 2, Basis of Presentation, for a further discussion on Herbalife Venezuela and Venezuela’s highly inflationary economy.

The significant categories of temporary differences that gave rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (tax effected in millions):
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011  
Deferred income tax assets:    
Accruals not currently deductible   $ 48.0   $ 46.4  
Tax loss carry forwards of certain foreign subsidiaries    22.0    16.9  
Depreciation/amortization    13.5    13.9  
Deferred compensation plan    35.6    26.2  
Deferred interest expense    186.9    151.3  
Accrued vacation    4.6    4.0  
Inventory reserve    6.4    4.2  
Hyperinflationary adjustment    3.5    7.4  
Other    8.6    11.3  

  

Gross deferred income tax assets    329.1    281.6  
Less: valuation allowance    (209.3)   (168.1) 

  

Total deferred income tax assets   $ 119.8   $ 113.5  
  

Deferred income tax liabilities:    
Intangible assets   $ 111.7   $ 113.1  
Unremitted foreign earnings    13.9    8.7  
Other    4.5    4.7  

  

Total deferred income tax liabilities   $ 130.1   $ 126.5  
  

Total net deferred tax liabilities   $ (10.3)  $ (13.0) 
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Net operating loss carryforwards of subsidiaries for 2012 and 2011 were $22.0 million and $16.9 million, respectively. If unused, net operating losses and tax credits of
$2.6 million will expire between 2013 and 2022 and $19.4 million can be carried forward indefinitely. Deferred interest carryforwards of subsidiaries for 2012 and 2011 were
$186.9 million and $151.3 million, respectively, and can be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company recognizes valuation allowances on deferred tax assets reported if, based on the weight of the evidence it is more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 the Company held valuation allowances against net deferred tax assets of certain
subsidiaries, primarily related to deferred interest expense carryforwards and net operating loss carryforwards, in the amount of $209.3 million and $168.1 million, respectively.
The change in the Company’s valuation allowance during 2012 of $41.2 million was related to $40.2 million of net additions charged to income tax expense and $1.0 million of
currency translation adjustments recognized within other comprehensive income. The change in the Company’s valuation allowance during 2011 of $29.5 million was related to
$31.8 million of net additions charged to income tax expense, reduced by $2.3 million of currency translation adjustments recognized within other comprehensive income. The
change in the Company’s valuation allowance during 2010 of $65.4 million was primarily related to net additions charged to income tax expense.

At December 31, 2012, the Company’s U.S. consolidated group had approximately $66.4 million of unremitted earnings that were permanently reinvested from certain
foreign subsidiaries. In addition, at December 31, 2012, Herbalife Ltd. had approximately $1.6 billion of permanently reinvested unremitted earnings relating to its operating
subsidiaries. Since these unremitted earnings have been permanently reinvested, deferred taxes were not provided on these unremitted earnings. Further, it is not practicable to
determine the amount of unrecognized deferred taxes with respect to these unremitted earnings. If the Company were to remit these unremitted earnings then it would be subject
to income tax on these remittances. Deferred taxes have been accrued for earnings that are not considered indefinitely reinvested. The deferred tax liability on the unremitted
foreign earnings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $13.9 million and $8.7 million, respectively.

The applicable statutory income tax rate in the Cayman Islands was zero for Herbalife Ltd. for the years being reported. For purposes of the reconciliation between the
provision for income taxes at the statutory rate and the provision for income taxes at the effective tax rate, a notional 35% tax rate is applied as follows (in millions):
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2012   2011   2010  
   (In millions)  
Tax expense at United States statutory rate   $227.8   $195.9   $133.0  
Increase (decrease) in tax resulting from:     
Differences between U.S. and foreign tax rates on foreign income, including withholding taxes    (97.9)   (78.1)   (71.1) 
U.S. tax (benefit) on foreign income net of foreign tax credits    1.8    (8.8)   (19.3) 
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowances    40.2    31.8    65.4  
State taxes, net of federal benefit    7.3    5.2    5.9  
Unrecognized tax benefits    6.6    1.1    (10.9) 
Venezuela DASTM hyperinflationary impact    —      —      (14.5) 
Other    1.1    (2.3)   (1.3) 

  

Total   $186.9   $144.8   $ 87.2  
  

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company benefited from the terms of a tax holiday in the People’s Republic of China. The tax holiday
commenced on January 1, 2008 and concluded on December 31, 2012. Under the terms of the holiday, the Company was subject to an 11% tax rate in 2010, a 12% tax rate in
2011, and a 12.5% tax rate in 2012. The Company will be subject to the statutory tax rate of 25% in 2013.

As of December 31, 2012, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including related interest and penalties was $47.1 million. If the total amount of unrecognized
tax benefits was recognized, $38.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits, $5.7 million of interest and $1.7 million of penalties would impact the effective tax rate. As of
December 31, 2011, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including related interest and penalties was $39.0 million. If the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits
was recognized, $32.1 million of unrecognized tax benefits, $5.5 million of interest and $1.1 million of penalties would impact the effective tax rate.
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The Company accounts for the interest and penalties generated by tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense. During the year ended December 31, 2012,
the Company recorded an increase in interest and penalty expense related to uncertain tax positions of $0.2 million and $0.6 million, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded an increase in interest expense and a reversal of penalty expense related to uncertain tax positions of $0.1 million and $0.1 million,
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recorded a reversal of interest and penalty expense related to uncertain tax positions of $2.9 million. As
of December 31, 2012, total amount of interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits were $5.7 million and $1.7 million respectively. As of December 31, 2011,
total amount of interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits were $5.5 million and $1.1 million respectively.

The following changes occurred in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 (in millions):
 

   

Year Ended
December 31,

2012   

Year Ended
December 31,

2011   

Year Ended
December 31,

2010  
Beginning balance of unrecognized tax benefits   $ 32.4   $ 31.6   $ 39.3  
Additions for current year tax positions    7.8    5.5    4.3  
Additions for prior year tax positions    4.5    2.0    1.1  
Reductions for prior year tax positions    (0.1)   (0.9)   (2.3) 
Reductions for audit settlements    (0.3)   (0.7)   (8.6) 
Reductions for the expiration of statutes of limitation    (4.9)   (4.5)   (2.4) 
Changes due to foreign currency translation adjustments    0.3    (0.6)   0.2  

  

Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest and
penalties)   $ 39.7   $ 32.4   $ 31.6  

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits    7.4    6.6    6.9  
  

Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits (including interest and
penalties)   $ 47.1   $ 39.0   $ 38.5  

  

The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing audits by taxing jurisdictions around the world. The Company’s estimate of the potential outcome
of any uncertain tax position is subject to management’s assessment of relevant risks, facts, and circumstances existing at that time. The Company believes that it has
adequately provided for these matters. However, the Company’s future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to its estimates in the period the audits are
resolved, which may impact the Company’s effective tax rate. As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s tax filings are generally subject to examination in major tax
jurisdictions for years ending on or after December 31, 2008.

The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by up to approximately $27.9 million within the next
twelve months. Of this possible decrease, $26.0 million would be due to the settlement of audits or resolution of administrative or judicial proceedings. The remaining possible
decrease of $1.9 million would be due to the expiration of statute of limitations in various jurisdictions.

13. Fair Value Measurements

The Company applies the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, or ASC 820, for its financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value into three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement
date.

Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The Company measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value as discussed throughout the notes to its consolidated financial statements. Foreign exchange currency
contracts and interest rate swaps are valued using standard calculations and models. Foreign exchange currency contracts are valued primarily based on inputs such as
observable forward rates, spot rates and foreign currency exchange rates at the reporting period ended date. Interest rate swaps are valued primarily based on inputs such as
LIBOR and swap yield curves at the reporting period ended date. Assets or liabilities that have recurring measurements and are measured at fair value consisted of Level 2
derivatives and are shown below at their gross values at December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
 

   Derivative Balance Sheet Location   

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)
Fair Value at
December 31,

2012    

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)
Fair Value at
December 31,

2011  
      (In millions)  
ASSETS:       

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:       
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to inventory and intercompany

management fee hedges   Prepaid expenses and other current assets  $ 0.5    $ 4.4  
Derivatives not designated as cash flow hedging instruments:       
Foreign exchange currency contracts

  
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets   $ 0.7    $ 0.8  

      

    $ 1.2    $ 5.2  
      

LIABILITIES:       
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruments:       
Foreign exchange currency contracts relating to inventory and intercompany

management fee hedges   Accrued expenses   $ 3.3    $ —    
Interest rate swaps   Accrued expenses   $ 2.0    $ 5.1  
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:       
Foreign exchange currency contracts   Accrued expenses   $ 1.3    $ 0.7  

      

    $ 6.6    $ 5.8  
      

The Company’s deferred compensation plan assets consist of Company owned life insurance policies. As these policies are recorded at their cash surrender value, they
are not required to be included in the fair value table above. See Note 6, Employee Compensation Plans, for a further description of its deferred compensation plan assets.

The following tables summarize the offsetting of the fair values of the Company’s derivative assets and derivative liabilities for presentation in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
 

   Offsetting of Derivative Assets  

   

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized

Assets    

Gross
Amounts

Offset in the
Balance Sheet  

Net Amounts
of Assets

Presented in
the Balance

Sheet  
   (In millions)  
December 31, 2012      

Foreign exchange currency contracts   $ 1.2    $ (1.2)   — 
    

Total   $ 1.2    $ (1.2)   — 
    

December 31, 2011      
Foreign exchange currency contracts   $ 5.2    $ (0.7)  $ 4.5  

    

Total   $ 5.2    $ (0.7)  $ 4.5  
    

 
   Offsetting of Derivative Liabilities  

   

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized
Liabilities    

Gross
Amounts

Offset in the
Balance Sheet  

Net Amounts
of Liabilities
Presented in
the Balance

Sheet  
   (In millions)  
December 31, 2012      

Foreign exchange currency contracts   $ 4.6    $ (1.2)  $ 3.4  
Interest rate swaps    2.0     —   2.0  

    

Total   $ 6.6    $ (1.2)  $ 5.4  
    

December 31, 2011      
Foreign exchange currency contracts   $ 0.7    $ (0.7)   — 
Interest rate swaps    5.1     —  $ 5.1  

    

Total   $ 5.8    $ (0.7)  $ 5.1  
    

The Company offsets all of its derivative assets and derivative liabilities in its consolidated balance sheet to the extent it maintains master netting arrangements with
related financial institutions. As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, all of the Company’s derivatives were subject to master netting arrangements and no
collateralization was required for the Company’s derivative assets and derivative liabilities.

14. Subsequent Events

On February 19, 2013, the Company announced that its board of directors approved a quarterly cash dividend of $0.30 per common share to shareholders of record as of



March 5, 2013, payable on March 19, 2013.

Subsequent to the year-ended December 31, 2012, borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility, excluding the Term Loan portion, increased to $500.0
million, and there was approximately $195.2 million of unused available credit as of February 19, 2013. These borrowed monies were primarily used for common share
repurchases under the Company’s share repurchase program described below. As of February 19, 2013, the Company had approximately $987.5 million of total borrowings
outstanding under the Credit Facility, including the Term Loan and revolving credit facility.

During January and February 2013, the Company repurchased approximately 4.0 million of its common shares through open market purchases at an aggregate cost of
approximately $162.4 million, or an average cost of $40.61 per share.

In February 2013, the Venezuela government announced it is devaluing its Bolivar currency. They announced that the current 5.3 SITME rate will be eliminated and that
the CADIVI rate will be devalued from 4.3 Bolivars to 6.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. As of December 31, 2012, Herbalife Venezuela’s net monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in Bolivars was approximately $82.9 million and included approximately $99.2 million in Bolivar denominated cash and cash equivalents which were remeasured
at the published SITME rate of 5.3 Bolivars per U.S. dollar. This new 6.3 CADIVI rate is 16% less favorable than the previously published 5.3 SITME rate. If during 2013, this
new 6.3 CADIVI rate or an alternative unfavorable exchange rate is used for remeasurement purposes, then the Company will have to record a foreign exchange loss to its fiscal
year 2013 consolidated statement of income to the extent this exchange rate is less favorable than the previously published 5.3 SITME rate, and the Company’s Bolivar
denominated cash and cash equivalents will have to be reduced accordingly. The Company continues to monitor the current exchange restrictions in Venezuela and is assessing
what exchange rate it should use prospectively for remeasurement purposes. See Note 2, Basis of Presentation, for a further description of currency restrictions in Venezuela.

In late 2012, a hedge fund manager publicly raised allegations regarding the legality of the Company’s network marketing program and announced that the hedge fund
manager had taken a significant short position regarding the Company’s common shares, leading to intense public scrutiny and significant stock price volatility. The Company
believes that the hedge fund manager’s allegations are inaccurate and misleading. Subsequently, the Company has engaged legal and advisory firms to assist with responding to
the allegations and to perform other related services in connection to these recent events.
 

70



Table of Contents

15. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)
 

   2012    2011  
   (In millions, except per share data)  
First Quarter Ended March 31     
Net sales   $ 964.2    $ 795.1  
Gross profit    768.0     632.3  
Net income    107.9     88.8  
Earnings per share     

Basic   $ 0.93    $ 0.75  
Diluted   $ 0.88    $ 0.71  

Second Quarter Ended June 30     
Net sales   $ 1,031.9    $ 879.7  
Gross profit    828.2     708.6  
Net income    132.0     108.6  
Earnings per share     

Basic   $ 1.13    $ 0.91  
Diluted   $ 1.09    $ 0.86  

Third Quarter Ended September 30     
Net sales   $ 1,016.9    $ 895.2  
Gross profit    815.3     719.9  
Net income    111.9     107.5  
Earnings per share     

Basic   $ 1.03    $ 0.92  
Diluted   $ 0.98    $ 0.86  

Fourth Quarter Ended December 31     
Net sales   $ 1,059.3    $ 884.5  
Gross profit    848.2     713.7  
Net income    112.2     110.1  
Earnings per share     

Basic   $ 1.04    $ 0.95  
Diluted   $ 1.00    $ 0.90  
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 SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereto duly authorized.
 

HERBALIFE LTD.

By:  /s/ JOHN G. DESIMONE
 John G. DeSimone
 Chief Financial Officer

Dated: December 16, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities and on the date indicated.
 
Signature   Title   Date

/s/ MICHAEL O. JOHNSON   Chief Executive Officer, Director,
Chairman of the Board

(Principal Executive Officer)

  December 16, 2013
Michael O. Johnson

    

/s/ JOHN G. DESIMONE   Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

  December 16, 2013John G. DeSimone     

/s/ BOSCO CHIU   Senior Vice President and Principal Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

  December 16, 2013Bosco Chiu     

/s/ LEROY T. BARNES, JR.   Director   December 16, 2013
Leroy T. Barnes, Jr.     

/s/ RICHARD P. BERMINGHAM   Director   December 16, 2013
Richard P. Bermingham     

/s/ CAROLE BLACK   Director   December 16, 2013
Carole Black     

/s/ PEDRO CARDOSO   Director   December 16, 2013
Pedro Cardoso     

/s/ RICHARD H. CARMONA   Director   December 16, 2013
Richard H. Carmona     

/s/ JONATHAN CHRISTODORO   Director   December 16, 2013
Jonathan Christodoro     

/s/ KEITH COZZA   Director   December 16, 2013
Keith Cozza     

/s/ JEFFREY T. DUNN
  

Director
  

December 16, 2013

Jeffrey T. Dunn     

/s/ MICHAEL J. LEVITT   Director   December 16, 2013
Michael J. Levitt     

/s/ COLOMBE M. NICHOLAS   Director   December 16, 2013
Colombe M. Nicholas     

/s/ MARIA OTERO   Director   December 16, 2013
Maria Otero     

/s/ JOHN TARTOL   Director   December 16, 2013
John Tartol     
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Exhibit 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, Michael O. Johnson, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Amendment No. 1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Herbalife Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
/s/ Michael O. Johnson
Michael O. Johnson
Chief Executive Officer

Date: December 16, 2013



Exhibit 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION

I, John G. DeSimone, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Amendment No. 1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Herbalife Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

 
/s/ John G. DeSimone
John G. DeSimone
Chief Financial Officer

Date: December 16, 2013



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 Adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with this Amendment No. 1 to Annual Report of Herbalife Ltd., or the Company, on Form 10-K/A for the period ended December 31, 2012 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, or the Report, I, Michael O. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
 

/s/ Michael O. Johnson
Michael O. Johnson
Chief Executive Officer

December 16, 2013

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with this Amendment No. 1 to Annual Report of Herbalife Ltd., or the Company, on Form 10-K/A for the period ended December 31, 2012 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, or the Report, I, John G. DeSimone, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
 

/s/ John G. DeSimone
John G. DeSimone
Chief Financial Officer

December 16, 2013

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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